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Arshiya

Complex is simple

ARSHIYA LIMITED

CIN: L2732MH1981PLCO24747

Reg Off: 402, Level 4, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagor Estate, F Block, Dr. Annie Besan! Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400018
Tel: +91 22 4230 5500 Faxe +91 22 4230 5555 E Mall : info@arshiyalimited.com Webslte; www.crshiyalimited.com

NONCE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 33 Annual Generol Meeting {AGM) of the members of Arshiya Limifed is scheduled fo be held on
Wednesday, 10" September, 2014 at 3.00 p.m. of Hall of Culture. [Nehru Centre), Worll, Mumbiai — 400018 1o fransact the following
business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the oudited financidl statement sof the Company for the financial yeor ended 31* March,
2014 and reports of the Board of Directors and of thé Auditars thereon,

2. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Ajay $ Mittal {DIN 00226355), who refires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
Re-appointment

3. To appoint Audlters and 1o fix their remuneration by passing the following resclution os an Ordinary Resclution with or without
modification|s):~

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of fhe Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to tire, M/s, M. A. Paiikh & Co: Chartered Accountants (Firm
Regisiration No. 107556W} be and are hereby re-appointed as statutory ouditors of the Company to hold office for a period
of 3 (three} years for cuditing the accounts of the Company from the finoncial years 2014-15 o 2016-17 (subject to
sotification of the ‘appointment by the members ot every onnual general meeting to be held during the period) at such
remunerdtion as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors. '

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To appoint Prof. G. Raghuram (DIN: 01099026}, os an Independent Director and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Crdinory Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuont to the provisions of Sections149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Cormpanies
Act, 2013 ond the Rules made thereunder fincluding any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force} read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2012, Prof. G, Raghuram {DIN: 01099024), a non-
executive Director of the Company, who has. submiited a declargtion that he meets the criteria for Independence as
provided.in section 149[4} of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an independent
Director of the Company 1o hold office for five consecutive years with effect from September 10, 2014 up 1o September 09,
2009,

5. To appoint Mr. Ashish Bairagra (DIN: 00049591}, as an Independent Director and in this regard to consider and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections] 49, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the, Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including ainy statutory modifications) or re-enactment thereof for the. time
being in torce) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashish Boiragra {DIN: G00495%1), o non-executive
Director of the Company, who_has submitted a dectarafion that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in
section 149(é) of the Act and who s eligible for appointment, be and Is hereby appointed s an Independent Director of

the Company to held office for five consecutive years with effect from September 10, 2014 up fo September 09, 2019."

6. To appoint Mr. Rishabh Shah (DIN: 004941 0}, as un Independent Director and in this regord 1o consider and if thought fit, to
pass with or without modification(s], the following reselution as-an Qrdinary Resolution:-
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“RESOLYED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections]49, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder [including any statutory modification(s] or re-enactment therect for the fime
being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Comparies Act, 2013, Mr. Rishabh Shah (DiN: 00694140), @ non-executive
Direcior of the Compony, who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criterio for independence as provided in
section 149{4) of the Act and who is eligible for oppointment, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company to hold office for five consecutive year with effect from September 10, 2014 up fo September 09, 2019."

7. To gppoint-Mr. Mukesh Kacker (DIN: 01549078}, as an Independent Director and in this regard to consider and if thoughi fit,
to pass with or without modification(s}, the foliowing resolufion as an Crdinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursucnt to the provisions of Sections149, 150, 152 angt any other opplicable provisions ¢f the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rutes made thereunder [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) read with.Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mukesh Kacker (DIN: 01569098}, a nonrexeculive
Director of thé Company. who has submitted o declaration that he meets the criterig tor independence as provided in
section 149{6) of the Act and who is eligible for appoiniment, be and is hereby appointed us an Independent Director of
the Company to hold office for five consecutive vears with effect from September 10, 2014 up fo September 09, 2019."

8. To guthorize the Board to create charges on the assets of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass
following résqlution os special resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of resolutions paossed al the Annual General Meeting of the Company held ‘on 24h
‘Seplembser, 2008 and earlier on the subject matter and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1}{a) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any. of the Act {including any cmendment thereto or re-enactmenit thereof],
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors. of the Company (hereincfier colled "the
Board"] fo morigage and/or charge ony of its assets, movable and/or immovable, wherever situated, both present-and
future, which dre gligible for being offered as.securty for the curent and future borowings by the Company, to the extent
of the bomowing powers of the Company at any point of fime, in favaur of one or more secured lenders being banks,
financial institutions, body comporates, or other persons and / or of one or mdre security trustees representing the secured
lenders,.on such terms and conditions at such time(s) and in such form and manner and with such ranking as to priority as
the Board in its absolute discretien may think fit.

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or person(s) as may be authorized by the Board be and is/are héreby quthorized to
finakise the foim, extent and manner of, and the documents and deeds, as may be applicable, for creating the appropriate
mortgages and/or charges on such of the immovable andfor mevable properties of the Company oh such fems and
conditions and at such firme(s)/iranchies} as may be decided by the Board in consultation with the lenders and for reserving
the aforescid right and for performing all such acts and things as may be necessary for giving effect to this resolution,”

9. To authorize the Board 1o Borrow funds on behalf of the company and In this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass
following resolution os special resolution, -

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of resolufions passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Compariy held on 24m
September, 2008 and earlier on the subject matter and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1){c} of the Companies
Act, 2013 {*Act") and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any omendment thereto of re-enactmerit
thereof], consent of the Company be and is hereby gccorded fo Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter called
“the Board"} to borrow any sum or sums of money, from time o fime, at their discretion, for the purpose of the business of
the Company, which together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from femporary loans obtained
from the Compony's bankers in the ordinary course of business] may exceed at any fime, the aggregate of the paid up
capital of the Company and its free reserves {that is o say. reserves not set apart for any specific purpose] for a sum not
exceeding rupees 5000 crores (Rupees five thousand crores only) and that the Board be and is hereby empowered and
authorised o arange ond fix the terms and conditions of all such monies to be borrowed from time to time os to interest.
repayment, security or otherwise as it may think fit.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving sffect to the above. the Board of Directors of the Company and/ or
Committee of Direciors constituted for this purpose be and is hereby authorised fo take all such actions and to give all such
directions as may be necessary or desirable and also to sette any question or difficulty that may arise in regard to the
proposed investiments or loans made or guarantess given of securifies to be provided and further to do all Such acts,
deeds, matters and things and to execute all such deeds, documents and writings as may be necessary, desirable or
expedient in connection therewith.”

10. Increasing the limits to make Joans or investmeants and to give guarantees or to provide security in connection with a loan
madeé under Section 184 of Companies Act, 2013. To consider and if thought fit. to pass-with or without maodification(s}, the
fallowing resolution as a Special Resolution; ’

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 184 of he Compuanies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder as. amended from fime to
time and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 & 2013 (including any omendrnent thereto or re-
enactment thereof forthe fime being in.force), if any, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board
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of Directors to make any loans or investments and e give ony guarantees or to provide security in connection with a loan
made by any other person fo, or 1o any other person by, a body carporate as the Board of Directors may think fit, for an
amount not exceeding Rs, 5,000 Crore {Rupsees Five Thousand Crores only) notwithstanding thot such investments,
outstonding loans given or fo be given and guorantees and security provided are in excess of the limifs prescribed. under
Section 184 of Companies Act, 2013 as in their absolute discretion deem beneficicl and in the interest of the Company.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be dnd is hareby cutherised to delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred to any Committee of Directors or any one or more Directors of the Company.”

"RESCLVEDR FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board of Directors of the Company end/ or
Committee of Directors Constituted for this purpose be and is-hereby authorised to take all such actions ond to give all such
directions as may be necessary or desircble ond also to setfle any question or difficutty that may arise in regard to the
proposed investments or loans made or guarantees given or securities to be grovided and further to do all Such acts,
deeds, matters and things and fo execute all such deeds, documents and writings 0s may be necessary, desirable or
expedient in cannection therewith.”

For and on Behalf of the Board

Ajay § Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director

_ DIN: 00224355
Date; 30t July, 2014

Pluce: Mumbai _
Registered offfce: 402 Level 4, Ceejay House,Shiv Sagar Estate, £ Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400018

NOTES

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TQ APPQINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A
POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUTH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.A person can act as proxy
on behalf of members not-exceeding fifty [50) and holding in the aggregate not mere than ten percent of the total share
copital of the Company. A member holding more than ten percent of the. totat share capital of the Company carying
voting rights may appoint a single persen as proxy ond such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

2. The instrument of Proxy. in order fo be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company. duly
completed and signed; not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is senf herewith,
Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, sociefies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as
applicable.

3. Explanatory Sfatement under Section 102 of the Componies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto in respect of Iterm Nos. 4 fo 10 of
the Notfice.

4. The details of Directors proposed for appointment / re-appointment under ltem Nos. 2 and 4 to 7 of the Notice, as per
requirernent of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges, are provided in the explanatory
statement and annexure to the notice.

5. The Nofice of the 339 Annual General Meeting and instructions for e-voting. along with the Attendance Slip’ and Froxy Form
ond the copies of the Annual Report for 2013- 14 is being sent by electronic mode to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with the Company/ Depasitory Participanis(s) for communication purposes, unless any member has requested for
a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual Repart
for 2013-14 are being sent in the pemitted mode, '

6. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physicdl form, upeon
making a request for the same, by post free of cost, For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the

Company's investor email id:grev. redressal @ arshivalimited.com

7. The Notice of the 339Annual General Mesting and the Annual Report will be gvailable on the website of the Company

arshivalimited

8. Al the documents refered to In this Notfice, as well as the Notice ond the Arnual Report, will be available at the
Compcny's Registered Office in Mumbai for inspection during normal business hours on working days up to the date of the
Annval General Meeting.
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9. Members/Proxies should bring duly filled in Attendance Slip in the form annexed hereto and tender the same at the
enfrance of the meeting hall.

10. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report at the meeting.

1. Reprasentative of corporate members should send/carny & duly cedified copy of the Board Resclution/Power of Attormey
-avthorizing the attendance and voling at the meeting.

12. Members ore requested to send their queries, if any, at leost seven days in advance to the extent possible, so that the
infermation could be made gvailable at the meeting.

13. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Monday, the 8th August, 2014 o Wednesday, the
10th August, 2014 (both days inclusive). '

14. Members are requested fo nofify change, if any, in its/his/her address to the Registrar & Share Trarsfer Agents of the
Company quoting their folio number or to thelr respective Depository Participant, os the cqse may be, regording shares
held in physical or electronic form.

15, Members are requested to send all the comrespondence concerning registration of transfers, transmissions, sub-division,
conselidation of share cerlificates or any other share related motters fo M/s. Bigshore Services Pvi. Lid; Registrar & Share
Transfer Agents, E/2 Ansa industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Andheri {East), Mumbai-400072.

16. Members desirous of making @ nomination in respect of their shareholding in physical form unger Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2013, are requested fo send the same o the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents in the prescribed
form.

17. Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform M/s Bigshiare Services Pvt. Lid, the Company's Registrar & Share
Transfer Agents immediately of the following:
a. The change in the residential status upen return to India for permanent setttlement;
k. The parficulars of the bank account maintained in India with complete name. bronch, account type, account number
and address of the bank with pin code number.

18. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Profection Fund [Uploading of information regarding unpaid and
unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rutes, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed
amounts lying with th the Company as an 7" August, 2013 {d ate of last Annual General Meeting) on the website of the
Compony {www.arshivainternational.comy} as also on the Ministry of Corporate Affairs Website,

The details of dividend declared are given below:

Date of For FY Dividend Per Due Date of the proposed
Declkrafion shore (Rs) fransfer to tha IEPF

10.09.2007 200607 2.50 21" October, 2014

24092008 00708 080 5" Novermber, 015

29.09.2009 200809 080 10™ November, 2016
24092010 2009-10 100 28" Octlober, 2017

2009.2011 2010-11 1.20 1 November, 2018
1809.2012 201112 1.40 29" October, 2019

19. Members who have not encashed the Dividend Worrants for the above years are requested to write to-the Compariy for
revalidation of Dividend Warrants belore such unclaimed dividend is fransterred 1o the Investor Education and Protection
Fund, are requested to wirite to the Company’'s Registfrar and Transfer Agents, Bigshare Services Private Limited,
Immediately. Members are requested to note that dividends not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the
LCompany's Unpoid Dividend Account, will, as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Section 205A of the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1954), be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. -

20. The Securities and Exchonge Board of India (SEBI} has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number [PAN)
by every participant in the securifies market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, tharefore, requested to submit
their PAN fo their Depository Participant(s}. Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to the
Company.
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21. The Company alse request you to update your emall address with your Depository Participant to enable us to sand you the
Yuarterty reports and other communications via e,

22. The Ministry of Carporate Affairs has token o 'Green Iritiotive in Corperate Governance' by issuing circulars aliowing
paperess complionces by Companies through electronic mede. The Shareholders can now receive. varous nofices and
documents through elecironic mode by registering their e-mail addresses with the Company. The Members holding shares
in electrenic form are requested to fegistér their e-micil addresses with their Depository Participanis cnly,

23, The businesses s sét out in the Nofice may be transacted through electronic voling system under Section 108 of the
Companies Act. 2013, read with Rule 20 of Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, The Company is
pleased to offer the facility of voling through electronic means, gs.an allemate, to all its Members to enable them to cast
their votes electonically instead of casting their vote of the Meeting. Please note that the voting through elecironic means
is optional,

24. The voling through electronic means will commence on Tuesday, September 2, 2074 at 09:00 a;m, and will end on Thursday,
September 4, 2014 af 06:00 p.m. The Members will not be able to cast their vote electrenically beyond the daote and fime:
mentioned above. Duing this pefiod sharghclders of the Company, holding shores either in physical form or in
demateralized form. as on eut off date [recoerd dote) for e-voting of August 7, 2014 may ¢cast their vote electronically. The
e-voting miodule snall be disebled for voting therecfter. Once the vole on o resolution s cast by the shareholder, the
shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

25, The Company has dppointed Mr, Manoj Mimani, Proctising Company Secretary to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the
electronic voting process in a fair and transparent manner,

26. The Scrufinizer shall. within a period not exceeding three working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock
the votes inf the presence of at least two witnasses not in the employment of the Company and make o Scrutinizer's Report
of the votes castin favour or against, if any, forfhwith to the Chairmar of the Company.

27. Members who do not have access. to e-voting facility may send duly completed Ballot Form {enclosad with the Annual
Repaort) so as to reoch the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Manoj Mimani, Practicing
Compony Secrefary. [Membership No. ACS No.17083), ¢t the Registered Office of the Company not loter than Tuesday.
September 2. 2014 {6.00 p.m. I5T).Ballet Form received after this date will be tracted as invalid,

28. Members have the cption to request for physical copy of the Ballot Form by sending an e-mai

to grev[gdressdi@arshivalimited.comby mentioning their Falic / DF I and Client ID No.

29. A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voling or by Ballot. If a Member casts votes by beth
modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevall and Bollet shall be treated as invalid,

30. The results declarad along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.arshi com
and on the wabsite of NSDL www.evoting.nsdi.com within two days of the passing of the resolutions at the Thirty Third AGM
cf the Company on September 10, 2014 and communicated to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchonge of India
Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. ' '

31, The procedure and instructions for the voting through electranic means is. as follews:
(a) In cose of Shareholders’ receiving e-mall from NSDL

(il Open e-mail end open POF file viz: "Arshiyd info e-Voting.pdf* with your Client tD or Folic No. as password. The said PDF
- file contains your yser iD and password for e-voting. Please note that the password is an inifial password,

fil Launch intemet browser by typing the following URL: httgs://www.evoting nsdl.com/

fiii} Click on Sharehoider - Login

(v} PutuseriD and password as initial password noted in step {i) gbove. Click Login,

{v]/ Password chonge. meny appears. Change the password with new password of your choice with minimum 8
digits/eharocters or combination thefeof, Nate new password, [t is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care 1o keep your password confidential.

{vil Home pdge of e-Voting opens, Click on e-Voting: Active Voling Cycles,

[vii) Setect "EVEN" Qf Arshiyt Lirmited

fvii} Now you are ready for e~Voting s Cast Vole page opsans
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fix} Cast your vote by selecting oppropriate option and click on “Submit” and-also “Confirm™ when prompted,

=] Upon confimation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be dispiayed

{xi§ Once you have voted on the resclution; you will not be allowed o modify your vote

{«ii} Institutional shareholders [i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy [PDF/JPG Format)
of the relevant Board Resolution/ Autherity letter etc. together with aftested specimen signature of the duly authorized

mgnatory[nes] who are uuihonzed to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mall rmimani222@gmail.comor
1 ; vl6 2 J.comwith o copy morked to gvoting@nsdl.coin.

{xiii} In case of ony queries, you may réfer the Fregquently Asked Questions [FAQs} for Shargholders and e-voting user manuat
for Shoreholders avaitable at the Downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com,

{xiv] If you are dlready registered with NSDL for e-voling then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your
vote.

{xv) You can alsc update your mobile number and e-mall id in the user profile details of the folic which may be used for
sending future communication(s).

b} In case a Member recelves physical copy of the Notice of AGM (for Members whose emall addresses are not
registered with the Company/Depostiicres):

1. Iniftal password is provided in the enclosed ballot form: EVEN (E-Voting Event Number), user ID and password.
ii. Please follow all steps from SI. No. (i} o §i. No. [xiii} above, to cast vote.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS PER SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT 2013,
For Item Neo. 4

Prof. Ganesan Raghurem aged about 5% years holds Bachelors Degree in Technelogy, (B.Tech) from Indian Irslitule of Technology
Modras, Post Graduate Diplorma in Management from indian Institute of Management Ahmedabad, and s Doctorate from Kellogg
Graduate Schoel of Management , Northwestern University, and Evanston, llinols, USA Decision Sciences .

Prof. Raghuram is Professor of the Indian Institute of Management [lIM), Ahmedabad. His specialization comprises Transportation
Policy and mManagement, Infrastructure. and Service Systems, Supply Chain and Logistics Management. His research, consultancy,
case studies and publicafions focus includes railways, pors and shipping, air and road secior, service organizafions, He is ke
authored five books on Logistics and Supply Chain Management, Infiaskucture Development and Flinoncing - Towards o Public-
Private Partnership and Shipping Management, besides several case studies, contributions. in Journals and other publications cand
over 300 paper presentations before several ccademic and industriol forums in Indic and obrood. He was aiso the President of
Operational Research Sociaty of India and is.a member of boards and govemment committées related to infrostructure ond logistics.
He is a Fellow of the Operational Research Seciety of India and Charted Institute of Logistics ang fransport. He has been visiting
taculty at universities in USA, Canade. Yugoslavia, Tonzania, UAE. Singopore and severdl institutions across Indic,

Prof. Raghuram has also held several prestigious positions as Vice Chancellor of Indicn Maritime University, a ceniral university by the
Govemnment of India, Dean {Facully). Indion Institule of Management, Ahmedabad, Indian Railways Chair Professor. Assistant
Professor, AB Freaman School of Business, Tulone University, New Orlearis, Louisiand, USA and a Lecturer with Kellogg Graduate
Schoo! of Manogement amengst others.

He joined the Board of Directors of the Company in the year 2007.The detcils of the directerships and memberships in committees of
other companies held by him are pravided in Annéxure | to the nofice.

He does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company.

Section 149 and section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia specifies that:

la) Independent Directors shall hold office for a term of upto five consecutive years, and shall be eligible for re-appointiment for a
further period of five years, subject to passing of special resolution by the Shareholders in General Meeting; ond [B] An Independent
Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation af the annual general meeting.

The new provisions further provide that the Independent Directors shall give a confirmation of independence and meeting of the
prescribed criteria, as mentioned in section 147{8) of the Compariies Act, 2013. Prof. Raghuram is o director whase period of office is
lickle to determination by retirement of directars by rotation under the erstwhile applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1954,
However, in terms of section 149{13) of the Compeanies Act, 2013, an independent director is not liable 1o retice by rotation. Therefore,
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in temns of section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Prof. Raghuram being eligible and offering
himself for appointment is propesed to be appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive yeors for a term upto
‘September 9. 2019.

The Company has received from Prof. Raghuram : {i} consent In writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, {i) intimation-in-Form DIR-8 in terms of Compdnigs [Appointment &
Qualification of Directors} Rules, 2014, to the effect that he Is not disqualified under sub section {2) of Section 184 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and (i} a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6} of Section
149 of the Companies Act,

In the opinion of the Board, Prof, Raghuram fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thefeunder for
his appeintment as an indepeaendent Director of the Company and is independent of the management. Copy of the draft letter for
appoiniment of Prof. Reghuram as an Independent Director wauld ba available for inspection without any fee by the mambers. at
the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday.

The Boord considers thiat his continued association would bie of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue fo
avail services of Prof. Raghuram as an independent Director.

This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under clause 42 of the Listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

Nane of the Directars of Key Monageriol Personnel of the Compary or their rélatives except Prof. Raghuram himself s concemed ‘or
interested in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends resolution set out at item no.4 for your consideration and approval.
For Hem No. 5§

Mr. Ashish Boirogra, aged about 35 years, is Bachelor in Commerce and is practicing Chartered Accountant, Mr. Bairagra has
extensive experience in handiing internal qudits, statutory audits, mancgement cudits. taox advisory ond business advisory
assignments. His. areas of specidlisation include Intemational Taxation, Transfer Pricing, Yealuation, Due Diligence. PE and VC Funding
and Cross Border Business Structuring. He is a Partner of M. L. Bhuwania & Co., Chartered Accountants, which is an independeapt
member of Geneva Group Intemational {GGl). He is also the Regionat Chairperson - Asia of the Intemational Taxotion Practice Group
{ITPG) of GG

He joined the Board of Directors of the Compony in the year 2005.The details of the directorships ond memberships in. commitiees of
other public companies held by him are provided in Anhexure | to the notice.

He does not hold by himself or for any other person on a teneficial basis, any shares in the Company.

Section 149 and section 152 of the Campanies Act, 2013, inter glia specifies that:

{0) independent Directors shall hbld office for a tarm of upto five consecutive years, and shall be eligibie for re-appointment for a
further period of five years, subject to passing of special resolution by the Shareholders in Generai Meeting; and {b) An Independent
Cirector shall not be liable to retire by rotation at the annval general meeting.

The new provisions further provide that the independent Directors sholl give a confirmation of independence and meeting of the
prescribed crileria, as mentiened in section 149[¢) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr Ashish Bairagrais a director whose period of office
is liable to determingtion by retiremaent of directors by rotation under the erstwhite applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1954,
However, in teris of section 14%(13) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director is not liable to retire by rotation. Therefore,
in ferms of section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr Ashish Bairagrabeing eligible and offering
himself for appointment is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years for o ferm uptoe
Saeptembyer 9, 2019,

The Company has received from Mr Ashish Bairagra: i} consent in wiiting to act os director in Form DiR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of
Companies [Appointment & Qualification of Girectors) Rules, 2014, {ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Director) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he Is not disqualified under subs section {2) of Section 184 of the Companies
Act, 213, and {iii] o declaration 1o the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section {6} of Section
149 of the Companies Act.

In the opinicn of the Board, Mr Ashish Bairagro fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
for his appeintment as an Independent-Director of the Company and is ingependent of the management: Copy of the draft lefter
for appoiniment of Mr Ashish Balragraos an Independent Director would be availoble for inspection without any fee by the members
at the Registered Office of the Company during normal businiess hours on any working day, exciuding Saturday.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desiable to continue fo
avail services of Mr Ashish BGiragraas an Independent Director.
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This Explenatory Staterment may also be regarded as o disclosure under clause 49 of the Listing agreemenit with the Stock Exchanges.

Mane of the Directorsor Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relafives axcept Mr Ashish Bairagra himself is concemed or
interesied in the resclution,

For Hem No. &

Mr, Rishabh Shah aged about 43 years, hoids o Bachelors Degres in Arts and Low. Mr. Shah Is @ practicing legal counsel and a legal
consultant who advises on several arees of civil law, in particular, commercicl documentation, property documentation, vorious
arecs of banking. commercial contracts, company restructuring and securities law. Banking and Corporate law and filigation being
his areas of speciafisction, He has over 20 vears of experience representing major corporations as legal counsel.

He joined the Board of Directors of the Company in the veor 2005.The. details of the directorships cnd membarships in committees of
other companies held by him are provided in Annexure | to the nofice.

He holds 7,955 equity shares of the' Company.

The Company hos received from Mr, Rishabh Shah: i) consent in wiiting te act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of
Companies [Appaintment & Quaiification of Directors| Rules, 2014, {ii} infimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies {Appointment &
Gualification of Directors} Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub section {2] of Section 144 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and (i) o declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independetce as provided in sub-séction (8} of Section
142 of the Componies Act.

In the opinion of the Boord, Mr. Rishabh Shah fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act. 2013 and rules made thereunder
for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company -and is independent of the. managsmeni. Copy of the draft letter
for appeintment of Mr. Rishakh Shah as an Independent Diréctor would be available forinspection without any fee by the members
at the Registered Office of the Company during nommal business hours on any waorking day, excluding Saturday.

The Board ¢onsiders that his continued association would be of immense benefit o the Company and it is desirable to continue 1o
avail services of Mr, Rishabh $hahos an Independent Director,

This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as d disclosure under clause 49 of the Listing ogreement with the Stock Exchanges.

Norie of ite Directors or Key Manageriol Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Mr. Rishabh Shehhimself is concemed or
inferested in the resolution.

For tem No. 7

Mr. Mukesh Kacker aged about 57 yedrs holds a Bachelors Degree in Science [Phystcs, Mathernatics & Stofistics), o Masters Degree in
Arts (Political Science} from Allchabad University and also a Masters Degree in Economies (Public Policy} from Harvard University, USA,
He is an IAS Officer of the1$79 batch.

Mr. Kacker had aimost three decades of experience of working in the Government as an 1.A.S, officer before he opted for voluntary
retirement in 2007 to work in the greas of infrastructure. and finance, and has held important senior positions, both in policy
farmuiation rofes as well as in executing capacities. As Member, National Highways Authority of Ingia [NHAI), he was in the vanguard
of personnel leading India’s highwdys revolution and wos instrumental in planning and executing a major portion of the Golden
Quadrilateral. As Joint Secretary {Petrochermicals), he drafted the National Policy on Petrochemicals and concepiudlized the poicy
‘on Investmant Regions anchored by big Petrochemical units. In his state codre of Madhya Pradesh, He has held various positions
including Secretary fo the Govemment, Managing Directers of two state Public Sector Undertokings and Secrefary fo the Chief
Minister,

In view of his experience in the infrastructure sector, the Government of India inducted him as Member, Task Ferce on Infrastructure
Developrment and Mega Projects. Mr. Kacker hos also served as Director General of CUTS Institute for Regulation and Cormpefition
{CIRC).

te is the founder-promater of Kacker & Daughter Infrastructure Consultancy Sérvices Lid. Curéntly he is the Non-Executive Chairman
of indus Concessions India Pvi. Ltd., a Spanish multi-national working In the field of highways construction. Mr. Kacker is also on
Independent Director on the Board of Capri Global Copitat Uid., o nen-banking-finance compony {NBFC).

He jeined thie Board of Diréctors of the Company in the year 2009. The details of the directorships and committeas of other
companies held by him provided.in Annexure | o the notice.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Mukesh Kacker fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act; 2013 ond rules miade thereunder
for his appointment as an Independent Diractor of the Cormpany and is independent of the management,
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The Company has received from M. Mukesh Kacker: (i) consent in wiiting to act as director in Form CIR-2 pursuant 1o Rule 8 of
Componies {Appoiniment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 201 4; [ii) infimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies [Appointment &
Quclification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the efiect that he is not disquolified under sut section (2) of Section 144 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and {ii) a declaration fo: the effect that he meets the criterio of independence as provided in sub-section (6} of Section
149 of the Companies Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Mukesh Kacker fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is indegendant of the management. Copy of the draff letter
for appoiniment of Mr. Mukesh Kacker as an Independent Director would be gvdilable for inspection without any fee by the
members ot the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on ony working day, excluding Saturday.,

The Board considers that his continued ossociation would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desiroble to continue to
avail services of Mr, Mukesh Kacker as an Independent Director,

This Explanatery Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under ciause 49 of the Listing agreament with the Stock Exchanges.

Norie of the Directors or Key Monagerial Personnel of the Company or thelr relatives except Mr. Mukesh Kacker himself is concemed
or interested in the resclution

tem No.B

The shareholders of the Company have provided their consent fo the Boord of Directors of the Company by way of Ordinary
Resolution(s) under section 293{1) {a} of the Companies Act, 1956 dated 24 September, 2008 for creation of security/charge over
the assets of the Campany in favour of banks, financial institutions, other lenders and securty trustee for securing the omounts
borowed/to be borowed from the secured tenders and interest and other dues payable to the said lenders. Section 180{1)[a) of the
Companies Act, 2013, effactive from 12th September. 2013, provides to the effect that the Board of Directors of the Company shall
not fell, lecse or otherwite dispose of the whole or substanticlly the whole of the undertaking of the Company or where the Company
owns more than one undertaking, the whole or substantially the whole of any of such undertakings excep: with the consent of the
Company occorded by way of a Special Resolution,

It is. therefore, necessary for the members to pass o Special Resolution under section 180(1}{a) ond other applicoble provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 as set ouf in ltem No, 8 of the Notice to enable the Boord of Cirectors to mertgage and/or charge: any of the
Company’s assets for the cument and fulure borrowings by the Company, 1o the extent of the borowing pawers of the Company at
any point of tife, in favour of any bank(s} orbody(ies] corporate or person(s) o finoncial institution(s} or security trustes.

The Direciors commend the Resolution at Ilemn No. 8 of thé Notice for the approval by the members of the Compony by way of
Special Resolution.

Nene of the Directors and Key Managerial Personniel of thé Company ond. thelr relatives i concemed or interested, inancial or
atherwise, in the Resolufion set cut at item No. 8 except to the extent of their respective shareholding in the Company to the same
extent os that of every other member of the Company in the Rasolution set out at Item Ng. 8.

ltem No.¥

At the.Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 24, 2008, the members of the Company had, by way of
Ordinary Reselution, in pursuance of the provisians of Section 293(1) [d) of the Coemparnies Act, 1954, accorded their consent o the
Board of Direciors of the Company to botrow any sum or sums of money, from time to time; for the purpose of the business of the
Company, which together with the monies already bomrowed by the Company [apart from temporary loans obtaired from the
Company's bankers in the ordinary course. of business| may exceed ot any time. the aggregate of the paid up capital of the
Company and its free reserves (that is to say reserves not set apart for any specific purpose) for.a sum not excesding Rs. 5,000 Crores
{Rupees five thousond Crores).

Section 180(1){c} of the Companies Act. 2013, effective from 12th September, 2013, provides to the gffect that the Board of Directors
of the Company shalt not borow money, where the money to be borowed, fogether with the money dlready borowed by the
Compony will exceed the aggregate of the paid up capital of the Company ond its free reserves {that is to say reserves not set apart
for eny specific purpose) opart from témporary loans. obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business
except with the consent of the Company accerded by way of a Special Resolution,

the Directors recommend the Resolution at Itern No. ¢ of the Nofice for the approvel by the members of the Company by way of
Special Resglution.

None of the Directors and Key Manageriol Personnel of the Compony and their relatives s concerned or interested, financial or

otherwise, except te the extent of their respective shareholding in the Company to the sams extent as that of every other mersber
of the Company in the Resolution set out atitem No. ¢,
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For tem No. 10

To qid the financial requirements of its subsidiary companies, the Compony makes investmients and gives loans tothe subsidiary
companies as and when needed. The Company alsc pravides corporate guarantees on behalf of its subsidiary companies to the
barks/financial institutions for the financial assistance provided by them,

As par Companigs Act 2013, a Company can give a loan to. bodies corporate of give any guarantees or make Investments in the
secuiities of any other body corporate with the approval of the Board of Directors if the same is within the permissible timit of either
100% of free reserves or 80% of the paid vp share capital and free reserves.

Inter-corporate leans, investments ¢an be made and Cerporateguarantees beyondihe aforesaid limits by Company required. an
approval from its members by d Special resslution.

Since the amount of existing Investments/loans/ corporate guarantees mode by the Company including the proposed financing
argngement that may be engaged by the subsidiary companies, exceed the prescribyed limit, $his approval is sought to enable the
Board of Directors with powers for making further investments/ loans/ guarantees and providing securities, whenever required on
reed basis.up to an amount of Rs.5000 Crore., '

Approval of shareholders of the Company is sought to authorise the Board of Directors to make the Investiments/ loans/ Corporate
Guaraniees as may be required from time fo time within the aforescid limit, These investments, loans, guarantees and securifies are
made / proposed to be made out of own fsurplus funds internal occruals / borrowed funds, the objective of which is opfimum
vfilization of funds of the Company and qlso to achieve long term strategic dnd business objectives. The inveéstments, loans,
guarantees and-securities will be made on terms and conditions rmost beneficial to the Company and of prevailing market rates, The
Ditectors are satisfied that this resolution would be in the interest of the Company and its members ond accordingly recommend the
Resolutions tor your approval.

Your Directors recommend the Resolution in item no. 10, as a Special Resclution for your approvai.

None of the Dirgctors and Key Monogerial Personnel of the Company and their reldtives is concemned -or interested, financicl or
otherwise, except to the extent of their respective shoreholding in the Company to the some extent as that of every ofher member
of the Company.

ANNEXURE | TO NOTICE

Name of the Director

Directorship held in other companies

Committee position held In other companies

Name of the Commitiee Name of the Company
Prof G, Raghurom « NABARD Consultancy Services Pyt Limited Audit Commities » Adani Ports and Special
vindian Register of Shipping Economic Zone Limited -
* Adani Parts and $pecial Economic Zone Member
Lirnited
« Hindustan Petroleum Cerporation Limited » Hinciustan Patrolewm
* Vigya Varghini Education Foundation Corporation Limited -Member
+ DARCL Logistics Limitad +Indion Resister of Shipping-
« Take Solutions Limited Member
+ Alcock Ashdown [{Gujarat) Limited Remuneration Committee. + DARCL Logisfics Limited -
Member

CSR & Sustainability

» Hindustan Patroleurn

Development Committee Corparation Limited -Member
Shareholders/Investors' + Adani Ports and jpecial

Grievences Commiftee

Economic Zone Limited -
Member

« Hindustan Petroleum
Corporation Limited -Member

M, Ashish Baircgra

* ACM Shipping india Limited

= Mouve Consultancy Services Limited
» MLB Advisory Services Limited

+ Arshiva Rail Infrastructyre Limited

Audit Committes

« Arshiya Rail Infrostructure
Limited- Chairman

Mr. Ajay 5 Mittaod

« Arshiyo Rail Infrastricture Limited

« Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrestructure Limited
« Arshiya Tronsport and Handling Limited

+ Arshiya Ingushiat & Distribution Hub Limited
+ Arshiva Northern FTWE Limited

+ Arshiva Lifestyle Lirmited

* Mego Custodial Services Limited

* Mega Fin lindia} Limited

+ Mega Capital Broking Private Limited

* Rudradev Properties Private Limited

» Castlelino Consuttancy Private Limited

Audit Committee

« Maga Fn {india| timted.-
Member

= Arshiya Indusirial & Distibution
Hub Umited,- Member

+ Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Lid.-
Memiber

« Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limited.
-Member

Shareholders Grievances

« Mega Fin {indic) Limited, -
Member

Remuneration Committee

» Arshiva Industrial & Distribution
Hub Limited.- ‘Chairmaon

 Arshiva Rail Infrastructure
Limited.-Member

+ Arshiya NMorthiem FTWZ Limited.
~-Memier

Mr. Mukesh Kacker

Capr Global Copitat Limited

Mr. Rishabh Shah

NIL

NIL
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

To
The Members of
Arshiya Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 33" Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31* March, 2014.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL RESULTS- ARSHIYA LIMITED

Particulars
Income from operations and other Income 31.654.86 | 72.432.06
Expenditure 48,974.28 70,337.45
Profitf{Loss) Before Depreciation & Tax {17.319.42) 2094.61
Depreciation 1,958.10 1,990.83
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Exceptional ltems {19,277.52) 103.78
Exceptional tems (Net) 10,667.35 1,542,95
Prior pariod ltems{Nat) {81.26) —_
Pm_.\"ision for Taxation (95.83} (38.67)
Profit/{Loss) After Tax (29,767.68) (1,400.50)
Balance brought forward (29,767.88) (1.400.50)
Amount adjusted pursuant tc scheme of amalgamation - (7646.06)
Amount availabte for Appropriation (29,767 68) (1,400,50)
Balance carried to Balance Shest (29.767.88) {1,400.50)

Bj SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS - ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

. {Rs. in Iac_s _ —
Particulars sl 1T ¥ il
Income fram Qperations and other Income 53,647.61 114,843.56
Expenditure 100,017.23 127.400.54
Profit/{L.oss)} Before Tax & Exceptional ltems (46,369.62) (12,756.97}
Exceptional ltem 21,265.95 _542.77
Tax Expanses 2,073.63 {584.42)
Profit/{Loss) After Tax before Minority Interest {84,622.95) (12,715.32) |
Less: Minority interest ] - -
Net Loss for the year (84,622.95) (12,715.32)

On a Consolidated basis your Company has recorded a loss during the previous year. The general overall slowdown in industrial
growth and sluggish trend had its negative impact on your Company's operations, Besides, Your Company had to face various
constraints in the day to day operations due to regulatory and other issues which have severely impacted the performance of the
Company. The regulatory & operational hurdles impacting the operations of the company are as.under:

Stoppage of Transhipment of cargo from Mumbai Port to FTWZ
Delays in Duty Drawback

Non availability of Customs EDI System in FTWZ

Import General Manifest {({GM) approvals for FTWZs

MNon recegnition of Arshiya FTWZ as a port for import.

' & &+ & 9

Howaever, the Company has been consistently taking up these Issues at the highest levels of Government and wﬂhb the new
Government in place, it is expected that the issues will be résolved sooner than later to enable smoother day to day operations and
better performance.

In the meantime, several initiatives and measures to rationalise expenses, costs, improve effective utilisation of human & material
resources to the optimum level have been taken.
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Your Management considered it expedient to contain high finance costs so that cash flow can be channelised {o operations for further
productivity. To.effectively service the borrowlings and at the same time make the resources. available for the day to day operations of
the Company, your Management thought it advisable to undertake a Corporate Debt Restructuring {CDR) whereby the Company's
obligations to pay interest and principal on borrowings has been deferred by availing certain concessions like moratorium ete. from
the Bankers.

DIVIDEND:

In view of losses, the Directors regret their inability to recommend dividend for the financial year ended 31™ March, 2014,

BUSINESS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK:

World class logistics infrastructure on a pan India basis, created by your Company provides for unified supply chain as-an unique concept ang
servis as an one stop shop for all the needs of logistics,

Arshiya plans to capitalize on India's mammoth logistics opportunity by being India's only Unified Supply Chain Infrastructure and Solfutions.
Group, With a rich legacy in the logistics and supply chain industry in India, Arshiya's unique business model makes it a pioneering company in
the country.

{n Arshlya Rail & Rail Infrastructure:

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure started its operations in February 2009. Qur unique model has resulted in Arshiya Rail belng the second
targest Private Container Train Operator (PCTO} in India. This company is operating total 20 container trains at present and mostly in
domestic sector. The company stands atop with regard o freight transportation per annum among all PCTO.

{1} Arshiya Free Trade & Warehousing Zones (FTWZ):

Over the last few decades India has been losing investments to neighbouring economiies, which were being rsad by global corporations
as bases for feeding India, due to lack of comparabla infrastructure availabillty in India.

With FTWZs developed by Arshiya, cur country will be able to leverage ‘Soft Infrastructure’ such as skilled manpower, cost
competitiveness, regulatory framework, IT connectivity, as well as "Hard Infrastructure’ such as dedicated state-of-the-art mega logistics
parks FTWZs, rail connectivity, industrial & distribution hubs, transport & handling and werld class supply chain management services.
FTWZ will be a game changer for international as well as domestic cormpanies which are-importing, exporting or re-exporting products
to and from India.

FTWZ provides assistance to various potential clients for import and export, who struggle hard to recover taxes and dutles paid while
impart of the inputs and other merchandise. They face the burden of spending heavy amounts towards recovery expanses apart from
the time consumption or have to forego the duties paid because of Jack of provisions. Through FTWZ they reduce thelr cost burden
because of avaitable special provisions in Law.

The first FTWZ developed by Arshiya in Maharashira near MumbaifPanvel is a credential for FTWZ concept in India. With over 500
customer base domestic as well as international, India can be proud of providing a successful unified supply chain concept in the
country.

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ), a subsidiary has developed an FTWZ at Khurja to cater to the needs of North India. The
state of the art railway siding at Khurja will further reduce the overali logistics cost betwsen gateway ports and FTWZACD.

Being a ploneer in FTW2 business in India, ANFTWZ Is facing a few regulatory challenges which have been taken up at the highest
{evel with concerned Government authorities and the authorities are appreciative of the issues and your Management hopes to get alf of
the issues sorted out at the earliest,

(1) Arshiya Industria! & Distribution Hub:

Your Directors hereby inform you that the operations of AIDHL, a subsidiary has remained sluggish through out the year as its business
modsl was based on Implementation of Goods & Services Tax as aiso FDI In retail taking off. However, both the svents have not
happensd and accordingly your Directors are hereby convering the AIDHL inlo sector specifice SEZ pertaining to
IT/TES/Elactronics/Hardware equipments etc. as also setting up an Inland Container Depot and proposes to merge this company into
Arshiya Transportand Handling Limited another group company. The necessary Scheme of Amalgamation has been filed with the Hon'ble
Bombay High Court and the approvals from concemed authorities have been applied for.
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v} Arshiya Northern FTWZ Ltd. (ANFTWZ)

Your Directors hereby inform you that tha operation of ANFTWZ have remalned sluggish due to the regulatory issues being faced by
the. company and sccordingly your Directors are hereby converting the ANFTWZ into sector specific SEZ pertaining to
Chemicals/iPharmaceuticals/Bio-technology and proposes to merge this company into Arshiya Transport & Handling Ltd, another group
company. The requisite Schame of Amalgamalion has been filed with the Hon'ble Bombay High Court and the approvals from
concemed authorities have been applied for.

(v} Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited provides end-to-end supply & demand chain solutjons and is committed to evolving
end-to-end strategic solutions across supply chain management by using innovative technology.

Subsidlary Companies (As on 31* March, 2014]

As required under the listing agreements with Stock Exchanges, a consolidated Financial Statement of the Company and all its
subsidiaries prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards 21 and 23 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountarits of India
{ICAI) giving details of financlal resources, assets, liabilities, income, profits, etc. of the Company, its assoclates and subsidiaries, after
alimination of minority interest as a singte entity, is annexed. The statemant pursuant to section 212(t){e) of the Companies Acl, 1956,
contalning details of subsidiaries of the Company forms part of the Annual Report.

In accordarnice with the general circular issusd by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India dated 8" February, 2011, the
annual accounts and other documents of the Subsidiary Companies are not baing attached with the Annual Report of the Company.
The Annual Accounts of the above referred subsidiaries as at 31" March, 2014, and related detailed information will be made available
to any member of the Conmipanyfits subsidiaries seeXlng such information at any point-of time and the same will also be available for
inspection by any Member of the Company/ its subsidlaries at the Registered Office of the Company. In addition, the Annual Accounts
of the said subsidiaries will be made avaiiable for inspection at the Registered Office of the respective subsidiary companies.

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT:

The Company had alletted 1,36,00,000 convertible warrants at Rs.145/- per warrant to promoters/ promoters group on prefarential basis
pursuant to the special resolution passed by the members of the Company at their meeting held on 18" October, 2012, These wamants
have been converted into equity shares (in the ratio of 1 share for 1 warrant) of Rs. 2/- each at a premium of Rs.143/- per share in three
tranches i.e. 53,00,000, 52,50.000 and 30,50,000 during the financial years. 2014-2015, 2013-2014 and 2012-2013 respectively,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has been following the principles of good Corporate Govemnance over the years and lays strong smphasis on
transparéncy, accountability and integiity. As per clause 49 of the ligting Agreement entered into with BSE and NSE, a separate section
on Corporate Governance forms part of this Annual Report.

A Certificate from.a Practising Company Secretary confirming compliance with the. conditions. of Comorate Govermance under Clause 49
of the listing Agreement is also attached to this Report.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Suhas Thakar - Executive Director ceased to be the director of the Company. consequent to the superannuation w.e.f. 31st March,
2014. Mr. Sandesh Chonkar and Mr. James Beliran ceased to Directors consequent to resignation w.e.f. 21" August 2013 and 68"
September 2013 respectively. Mr, Ajay $ Mittal — Managing Director retire by rotation and being eliglble, offer himself for re-appointment
at the ensuing Arinual Ganeral Meeting. in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 these Diractors
are being appointed as Independent Directors to hold office as per their tenure of appointment mentioned in the notice ensuing Annual.
General Meeting of the company.

The Company has recsived declarations from all the Independant Directors of the Company confirming that, they meet the with the

criteria of Independance as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Companles Act, 2013 & Clausse 49 of the Listing Agresment
with the Stock Exchanges.

Brief details of the Directors proposed to be -appointed / Re — appointed as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are
provided in the. notice of the Annual Gensral Meeting forming part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the. provisions of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with regard to the Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors confirm that:

a} in thi preparation of the annual accounts, the applicablé accounting standards have been followed and there has been no material
departures;
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b} the selected accounting policies were applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent o0 s to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2014, and of the loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d} the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Your Company had engaged Mr. Mano] Mimani, Practising Company Secretary, 1o review Secretarial Compliance for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2014. The Secretariai Compliance Certificate addressed o the Board of Directors of the Company forms part of this
Annual Report. The Secretarial Compliance Certificate confirms that the Corripany has complied with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Depositories Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges and all the Regulations of SEBI as applicabla to
the Company including SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and the SEBI {Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992,

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource Department of your company ls instrumantal in bultding employees capabilities through structured talent acquisition
and its development through technical and need based training. For your Company, employees are the most valuable assets.
Attracting. training, growing and retaining ialented professionals continue to be the focus for Human Resources division of your
Company. Pay for performance philosophy helps us in rewarding high performers thereby motivating tatent and enhancing ratention.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:

As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company lays. considerable eriphasis on health, safety aspects of its human capital,
operations and overall working condltions. Thus being constantly aware of its obligation towards maintaining and Improving the
envirenment, all possible steps are being taken o meet the toughest environmantal standards on poltution, efffluents, etc. across
various spheres of its business activities.

Arshiya’s Rall Infrastructure division especially plays & pivotal role in the mitigation of pollution and reduction of fuel used for road travel
through its unlque Rail solutions that it provides to corpotations at pan-india level,

Your Company has implemented several proactive measures towards ensuring its logistics infrastructures especially the FTWZ in
Mumbai and Khurja, along with the Industrial & Distribution Hub are environment friendly. Following measures are being implemented in
Mumbai FTWZ, which will be followed across locations:

= Development of green area: Re-plantation of trees in the FTWZ,

* Conservation of top soil by removing and storing it before the digging/ pifing work. The top soil was re-used for developing
the green areas

*« Provision provided in the storm water drainage system to allow ground water recharging

* Sewage treatment plant in all the facilities — Mumbal FTWZ, Khurja FTWZ ag wall as the Khurja Industrial and distribution
Hub. Water treated in these plants is being re-utilized for watering of the landscaping.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company sincerely believes that growth needs to be sustainable in a socially relevant manner. Today's business environment
especially in India therefore demands that corporates play a pivetal role in shouldering social. responsibility. Your Company is
cornrmitted to its endeavour in social responsibilities for benefit of the comrmunity.

Under the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiative of the Company ‘Arshiya Cares', your Company has pledged to join hands
with organizations who are working towarde finding simple sofutions to the infrastructure prablemns that India faces. Following CSR
initlatives have been undestaken by your Company in the social front:

Emergency Fire Fighting Service: The Mumbai FTWZ at Sai Village, Panvel has a 24x7 emargency fire fighting vehicle (Foam
Tender) inside the zone managed by trained persennel. This service is supporied by dedicated infrastructure which includes

* Fire extinguishers and Signage (Fire safaty plans)
. Celling based water sprinklers for the stores and office space
. Beam Detectors for Smoke and Fire Detection
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. Fire Hydrant System with hose reels and underground water storage tanks
- Emergency Fire exit doors and staircases
. Building Management Systetn with Monitoting and

Public addréss systems o provide emergency response

The above facilities are available 24x7 to-the residents in the vicinity of Sai Village and Panvel aréa. free of charge through a toll free
number

Emergency Ambulance Service:

The Mumbai FTW2Z at Sai Village, Panvel has a 24x7 emergency ambulance service dedicated for residents in the viclnity of Sai
Viliage and Panvel aréa. Stationed in the premise of the zone, it Is equipped with expert staff trained in Trauma treatment. This
service is available to the local population free of charge through a toll free number.

Electricity Distribution Facility:

At the Mumbai FTWZ at Sai Village, Panvel, your Campany has created additional capacity in its electrical infrastructure to enable
supply of electricity to the surrounding villages.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information: as required undar Section 217(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the
raport of Board of Diractors) Rules, 1968 are set out as under:

Conservation of Energy: The operations of the company involve low energy oonsumptlon Adequate measures have been
implamented to conserve energy such as ~

*  Roof of the warehouses at our FTWZs and Industrial & Distribution Hubs have been designed with MR24 standards with
roof insulation which gives temperaturé variation of §Degree with ambient temperature. A provision of installation of solar
paneis has been made on the roofs to generate renewable energy

*+ Oyientation of the warehouse buildings has bean done In such a way that there is less heat transmission resulting in saving
the electricity consumption: by minimizing heat loss in the HYAC system.
Techneology Absorption: Arshiya sincerely believes in utilising tectinclogy to improve productivity, efficiancy and quality of its business
operations and working environment.
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

- Foreign Exchange received — Rs. 108,794,746/-
. Foreign Exchange incurred — Rs.  11,999,650/-
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2A} of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,
1975 as amended, the names and other particulars of employses are set out in the Annexure to the Directors Report. However, as per
the provisions of Section 218(1){b){iv) of the sald Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all
members of the Company, Any member, who is interested in obiaining such particulars about the employees, may write to the
Company at Registered Office of the Company,

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The observations in the Auditors Report are self explanatory and need no furiher explanations.

With respect to the comment of the Statutory Auditors in note 48(ii) to financial statement your Directors wish lo clarify that the company
i In provess of making an application to the central Government in the raspect and that the said executive director was a professional
non-promoter Direclar of the Company.

Further notes to the financial statements, as referrad in the Auditors Report, are self-explanatory and therefore do not cafl for any
further comments and explanations under section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.

AUDITORS

M/s M.A Parikh & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, Auditors of the Comipany, retire at the ensuing Anhual General Meeting and
are eligible for reappeintmeant.

Your directors recommend the appointrment of Mfs, M.A Paiikh & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 107556W) as

Statutory Auditars of the Company, subject 1o approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received letter from Mfs. M.A Parkh & Co, Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the

17



ARSHIYA LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

prescribed limits under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for such appointment. The necessary
resolution seeking your approval for appointment of Statutory Auditor has beaen incorporated in the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

ACKNCWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would itke to express their gratitude for the assistance, support-and co-operation feceived from Government of India, the
State Governments and other Government agencies and depariments, investors, bankers, financial institutions and all other
stakeholders,

Your Birectors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the executives, staff and
workers of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay S Mittal
Chairrnen & Managing Director
DIN: 00226355
Place: Mumbai.
Dated: o™ July, 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

In the year 2013-14, the global economy showed signs of revival after almost 4 years since the onset of the financial crisis. The recovery this time was
different as developed economies consolidated while most emerging markets {aced challenges to reviving growth. in the process, the financlal system
has emerged stronger while fiscal balances in the developed world are improving. The synchronized efforts of central banks and governments
continued with record low interest rates and monetary stimulus measures, USA finally introduced a gradual taper of its stimulus which has so far not
destabilised global financial markets. The remarkable tumaround in their fiscal balance due to steep expenditure cuts introduced earlier ¢can once
again be restored thus providing. a filllp to growth. The European Union alse made some recovery though an uneven one. The north, led by Germany,
had a solid year, reducing unemployment and boosting living standards. Across the Mediterranean the pattam was more disappointing, with Italy,
Spain, Portugal and Gresce all enduring a year of rising unemployment, however, the numbers have started to improve. Europe and the euro are not
out of trouble, but.the acute phase of their difficulties may be past. The emerging and developing economies faced challenges to growth, with some
easing in the second haif of 2013, Investment weakness continues to hamper the economy with tightening of external funding and financial conditions.
New investments have stagnated amid an -erosion of business sentiment, unfavorable global environmient and weak domestic demand. Thess
aconomies were Impacted by supply side consiraints due to structural and policy bottlenecks leading in turn to high inflation and volatile exchange
rates. In 2014, investment cycle is unlikely to. pick up in a rabust mannér until business sentirment Improves and credible signs of domestic demand
revival are seen.

The sub-Sahara Africa region reglsterad a strong growth of 4.8% in 2043 underpinned by investments in naturat resources and infrastructure, Growth
is projected to acceierate to about 5.5% in 2014 reflecting positive domestic supply-side developrments and the strangthening in global recovery.
Global growth s expected to be better in the current year; as the develeped world consolidates further. In the advenced economies, rigks to economic
activity associated with very low inflation have coime to the fore, especially in the euro area, where large output gaps have contributed to low infiation.
Emerging market sconomias will have to tackle inflatichary pressures and currency volatliity in the shoit and medium-term as they atfempt to revive
growth. There is a risk of continuing tight financial conditions leading to a higher cost of capital leading to a further stowdown in investments. Also the
recent gec-political risks may {ead to a renewed bout of increased risk averslon in global financial marksts.

Overview of Indian Economy:

The GDP growth of Indian economy was 4.7% in the year 2013-14, The economy has remained chaflenged as growth has been balow 5% in the last 7
quarters between Q1, 2012-2013 to Q4, 2013-2014. The only exception in this period was G2, 2013- 2014 when GDP grew by £.2%. This slowdown
coincided with & decline in savings, low and sluggish grawth in fixed capital formation over successive quarters, persistently high inflation, low
business confidence and particularly inadeguate structural policy measures which have had a prefound effect on potential growth, The year witnessed
sustained high inflation and a highly volatiie exchange rate in the first haif of the year. The subsequent tightening of monetary policy efféctively choked
sconomic recovery. Domestically, structural reforms did not proceed at the pace expected by markets, as bottlenecks continued to hamper investmant
projects, particularty in the critical power sector. Since early September, external pressures have eased somewhat, in large part due to the
postponement of “tapering” by the US Federal Reserve, which helped to stabilize global interest rates. This has led ta a retum of capital infiows,
Simultanaousty, the RBI took a number of measuras to boost reserves, while the govemment has. acted to reduce the- current acecount deficit and
shore up investor confidence. Indeed, the cument account deficit has shrunk guite remarkably from a high of 4.7% of GDP in 2012-13 to 1.7% in 2013-
14. As a resutt, the INR has recovered, and asset prices have moved higher. With the exception of agriculture, all the other sectors in the economy
continued to remain weak in 2013-14, The industrial sector continued to lag and deciined by 0.1%, a 22 year low. The entrenched stagnation in
gconomic growth over two year's reflects a subdued investment and consumption demand which has resulted in contraction in producticn of
manufacturing sector, capital goods and consumer durables in the current year. Also, growth in services sector which is the largest contributar to GDP
remained almost stagnant at 8.2% in 2013-14 with growth decelerating in the trade, hotel, transport and communication sector. The only sub-sector
that recorded a strong growth of 12.9% was financing, insurance and reai estate. India's earlier consumption-lead growth story post 2008 continued to
falter, with both private and government sector consumption decelerating in 2013-14, Growth in govemment consumption, which sharply picked up in
the first quarter, remained subdued for the rest of the year as fiscal pressures intensified. Also, private final consumption expenditure which has the
largest share of 60% in the GDP, slowed down further at 4.9% in 2013-14 from 5.0% in 2012-13. On the investmant side, gross fixed capital formation
declined by 0.1% in 2043-14 from an already negligible growth of 0.8% in 2012-13. However, it was the extarnal sector that stemmed the rot, with a
gradual recovery in the exports (8.4%) due to competiveness galns from weaker currency and pickup in demand in some advanced economies, and a
contraction in imports (-2.6%) due to a sharp policy driven moderation In gold imports.
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Global logistic industry outlook

Logistics is one of the most important basic industrles for any économic growth as it is the management of the flow of products from the place of their
origin to' the place of their consumption, thus the industry also involves the Integration of material handling, warehousing, packaging, transportatitn,
shipping security, inventory management, supply chain management, procurement, and customs service,

The global legistics industry mainly comprises a complex range of freight and cargo related transportation sectors, such as shipping, warsheusing,
caurier, and road / rail / air freight. According the report from CandM Research, the total global logistics market reached a value of about $4 trillion in

2013, rapresenting an almost 10% of global GDP. The globai transportation services market is fastest growing seclor with more 7% yaar on year
growth since 2011, now it is expected to generate ravenue of 3.8% trillion in 2016. The US currently mccounts for more than a-42% of glebal
transportation services sector. '

Ovar the naxt few years the global logistics market will see the growth in demand away from traditional Western economties to the emerging markets of
China, India, other Asian economies, the Middle East and Latin America. Howsver the size of the LS and European logistics Industries will séill remain
strong. '

Some mafor market segments of global logistics Industry

The-global air transportation services industry has been experiencing & decline in growth rate since 2012, whils the aifine market is expected to reach
£137 billion by 2017. After generated around $184 billion in 2011, the global rall freight industry will have an-annually growth rate of more than 6% until
2015, and the industry growth will increase to a yearly rate of 8%, reaching $286 biliion by 2016, predicted by MarketLine. The industry consumption
volumes have remained the growth of 4% year on year. Road freight industry is so far the leading segment In the global logistics industry, representing
over 74% of the overall industry in terms of valua. The global road fraight market is.expacted to top £2.2 trilion in 2015, which is a 28% increase over
S years period since 2010. The US represents for 56% of the world road freight sector in terms of valus. The global shipping industry is expected to
surpass 730 mitlion TEUs by 2017, according to Gtobal Industry Analysts. Shipping containers is currently the major way of giobal trading, the market
performance is boosted by the increasing demand of trade, investments in port terminal facilities, and the rising of glebal maritime transport networks,
Over tha next few years, the global shipping sector is expected to grow mainly due to the rising demand for oil and liquefied gas in Asfan countries.

Domestic Industry Overview, Industry Structure & Developments

India's need for infrastructure creation in the logistics sector is striking. In just a decade India has seen its economic size mare than double t6 §1.37
trillion (2012} and total foreign merchandise trade muitiply fram 20% of GDP (2000) to 42% of GODP (2(12). This growth has been accompanied with a
phenomenal rise in the volume of freight traffic movement over the period. Mowever, logistics infrastructure and services in the country have arguably
riot developed at the same pace to support and further this growth. Going by global standards, the Indian logistics sectar Is characterized by concerns
around higher costs, lower profitability, lack of adequate availability of trained mangower resources and lower adoption of technology in its processes.
These concerns are also reffected in thie drop In india’s rank on World Bank's Logistics Performance Index {LFI), which measures a country's
parformance on six key criteria. Over the past five years, the country's LPI rank has fallen from 37 (2007) to 46 (2012) a3 its score has stagnated over
the period while competing countries hava improved on the same. India lags behind other major markets such as Brazll {41), China {28), US (9}, and
Germany (4). Particularly, India's rank on gquality of trade and transport-related. infrastructure {ports, railroads, roads and information technology),
which is one of the six criteria, has deteriorated from 47 (2010) to 56 (2012). Congestion witnessed on roads ahd ports, Ionger dwell times on ports,
longer overall transit times and cverloading of frucks leading to faster deterioration of road Infrastructure would reflect this.

For any economy, the logistics sector, encompassing transportation, warshousing, cargo consolidation and border clearances, would form the
backbone of its trade, and associated economic activity and growth of key sectors. The cast of trading whether by sea, land or air forms a critical
component of the final price of a commeodity. An efficient logistics system reduces this cost, providing a competitive edge and propelling economic
activity. As per a McKinsey study, inefficiencies in Jogistics Infrastructure cost the Indian'economy an aextra $45 billion, about 4.3% of the GDP, every
year. It warns that a 2.5 timea growth in freight traffic demand by 2020 (compared with 2010 levels) will put further stress on India’s infrastructure.
However, such high demand prospects also present an opportunity for fogisties Industry players in lndia. The Emerging Market Survey, 2013,
‘conducted by Transport Intelligence (Ti) ranks India as the second most attractive logistics market in the fulure after China, and its position has not
changed over the past four years, As a fast growing economy with one of the largest consumer markets, industries such as automobile,
pharmaceuticals, FMCG and retail will drive tha demand for logistics in India in the future. Further impetus will come from the increasing emphasis on
enhaneing manufacturing and exports. The current stress on the logistics systern and its performance suggests that one of the key issues is
inadequacy of transportation logistics infrastructure.

In recent years, the Indlan government has-accorded high priority to this and allocated graater public budiget to boost overall infrastructure spending.
Planning Commission has budgeted for an initial infrastructure investment of Rs. 4.1 trillion (9,95% of GDP) over the 12th Five Year Plan {FYP) period
(2012-2017) in order to sustain a real GDF growth rate of 9% over the period. This ts almost double the amount proposed under the 11ith Five Year
Plan (2007-2012) In real terms. The government has opened up the sector to private invastmsnt to bring in better technology, operational efficlencies
and othar best practices. Initiatives have been taken to facliitate private participation and attract private, foreign and multilatéral finance to the sector.
Planning Commission estimates of mobifization of private investment during the 1 fth FYP indicate that out of the plan outlay for respective sactors,
abeut 80% in Ports, 64% in Airports and 16% in Roads came through private sector. But globat and domestic economic slowdown over the past two
Yyears has stymled overall infrastructure creation. Moreover, several issues have cropped up — some universal actoss sectors and others more specific
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to certain sub-gectors, On one hand, the gloomier macroeconomic conditions — slowing growth, rising inflation and interest rates have welghed on the
risk appetite of lenders; on the other, such conditions have distressed devalopers, whose balance sheets falt greater stretch on account of low liquidity
and cash flows compared with earlier years, This was furthar complicated by changes in project viability in many cases as initial traffic projections were
deemed overestimated. Creation of infrastructure was also detayed on account of issues related to environmental clearances, land acquisitions as well
as sector specific challenges that stalled financial closures for awarded projects or impacted investor interest for new projects.

Passanger and freight traffic on Indian Rallways has seen a consistent increase during the peried from FY 2008-07 to FY 2011-12 at a CAGR of
8.54%.and 8.70% respectively. Comparatively, creation of infrastructure has not kepl pace. Infrastructure addition took place at a snall's pace with
CAGR for addltion of line capacities and rolling stock ovar the same period baing less than 5%. As a result, rail infrastructure has been facing stress
and major routes face congestion and oversaturation. Particularly in the freight segment, fram which Indlan Rallways (IR} eams nearly 70% of its
revenue, IR has been losing market share to roads sector. Given that rail transportation forms Ig hugely important especlally for transportation of major
bulk commedities like coal, cement, food grains and iron ore, inadequate railway capacity expansions and modernisation could stymie future economic
growih of the country. A McKinsey Study highlights the under-utilization of rail infrastructure as & means of transportation and poinis out that rail
transport costs in India are about 70% more than that in the US12. It estimates that the share of rail in the freight market would decline to 25% over the
next few years, if adequate investments are not made. Planning Commission, in its 12th FYP document, has also noted the scope for improvement in
the productivity levels of IR in comparison {6 Chinese and Russian Railways,

Recognizing the potential, Ministry of Railways {MoR} set ambitious growth targets in the 11th and 12" FYPs and initiated policias to create
opportunities for private participation. The targets for 11th F¥YP were set considerably higher than those achieved in 10th FYP and with focus on
creation of infrastructure, these targets were achieved and, in fact, surpassed in certain catagories, However, the throw forward of the projects was
also quite high including projects for building up of 132 New Linas. Investmant plans have baen sot at still higher levels for the 12th FYP emphasising
completion of the big ticket Eastem and Western Dedicated Freight Corridors projects. Similar ambitious targets have been set for acquisition of roliing
stock with more than 100,000 wagons and 25,000 coaches being planned to be acquired during FY 2012-13 to 2018-17. MoR targets to increase rail's
freight markst share by at least 2% during the period.

Traditionally, IR has depended on general budgetary support (GBS), market borrowings {EBR} and internal generation for financing its expenses and
investments. During the 11th FYP, IR aimed for overall investmants worth Rs. 2,332.% billien to be financed largely through EBR and internal
generation. However, intemal generation for IR did not materialize to the desired extent, over this period, despite improvement in revenue-eaming
freight traffic, on account of incraase In wages following the implementation of the: Sixth Pay Commission, Much of the investrnent was financed
through GBS and market borrowing through Indian Raitways Finance Corporation. Indian Railways has been able to atiract private investment at
around 4% of its plan outlay. In line with the physical targets for acquisition of rolling stock and creatlon of rall infrastructurs, Indian Raitways is
envisaged to require an investment of Rs. 5,192.2 billion over the 12th FYP,

The large upfront costs of selting up rail infrastructure, willingness to leverage efficiencies of private sector and the urgency of creating this
infrastructure has led tha government to open up the sector to private investment. One ¢f the key initiatives included opening up of the container rail
business for private investrnent in 2006-07. it allowed the eniry of private container train operators who have until date brought in an investment of
about Rs. 60 billion (based on an industry estimate) which includes rolling stock, terminal facilities, containers and a substantial amount of License
Faa, This investmant could arguably have been higher, had IR policy on container rail transportation been more supportive. IR has invited PPPs in
manufacturing rolling stock and locomotives at two factories in Bihar, The Cabinet has approved setting up of these factories at Madhepura and
Marhaura and these projects are likely {o generate interest from leading intemational manufacturers,

Since the commencement of the 12th FYP period, several key poticies have bean announced in a bid to attract private investment in developmant of
rall infrastructure, The most successful policy has been the one on Private Freight Terminals which has for the first time provided for private
construction and operation .of fail terminals on private land by third parties. In a very short pericd, over 40 PFTs have either already become
operational or are in different stages of construction, approval, commissioning or notification. A draft policy on rail terminals at private ports was also
anngunced. The Cabinet Committee on Infrastrycture has approved the policy for private participation in rail connectivity and capacity enhancement
projects, suggesting five generic models for private investment in rail infrastructure. )t is understood that these have been developed keeping the
coneemns of the private sector in mind. Ministry of Railways (MoR) has also announced the new Autorncbile Freight Train Operation (AFTO) Scheme,
2013 to facilitate private participation in supply of special wagons. Furthemmore, the Cabinet has approved the formation of a Rall Tariff Authasity (RTA)
which will recornmend rmodifications to tariffs for freight and passenger segments o the Railway Board from time to time considering both input costs
and volatile market conditions. Raitway Board has requested approvals for foreign diract.investment in projacts such as the elevated rail corridor in
Mumbai, the dadicated freight lines, port connectivity projects and station development for infrastructure construction and maintenance as well,

Interaction with the MoR reveals that some private players have expressed Interest in port connectivity projects, and currently interactions are on to
understand project viability and risk sharing. However, the appetite of davelopers for large infrastructure projects on PPP in the railway sectar needs to
bie tested. Thus far, private investment in railways has not been as much as it has been In other infrastructure sectors. On account of factors such as
requirement of high upfront investment, as well as lack of precedance of projects, policies and regulatory framework attractive for private. investment,
evaluating viability and risks for projects in raitways is perceived to be harder. The proposed framewarks need to provide greater clarity on models
within which private and public entities could participate. For instance, IR does not prefar private participation in train operations and it makes the
monitoring of IR's operating perfortmance on the concerned stratch difficult for the private Investor, Private container train operators expect a level-
playing field to be able to compete or collaborate with CONCOR and create a success story. Presently, the enthusiasm for PPPs or any private
participation with IR appears to be fow and would perhaps néed to be tested going forward. On the whole, while the sector offers a major opportunity,
more needs to be done In terms of secior governance, facilitation of private participants and opening up of Indian Railways to attract private
participation, More than 90% of India's international trade volumas are carried through the sea route, making ports one of the most critical components
of India's freight valua chain. Total traffic handied at major and non-major ports of India increased io 933 million tonnes. Over the yoars, share of major
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pors has come down in the overall port traffic with the current levels being around 60%. Infrastructure for both major and non-major ports has
aftracted significant investment in recent years, augmenting overall port capacity to 1.3 billion tonnes. However capacity additions at major ports have
been limited and coupled with better efficiency and product mix at non-major poits have allowsd the shifting of cargo volumes from major to non-majer
ports speclally private ones like Mundra and Dhamra ports. However, improvements in efficiency of port operations have been mixed. While average
output per ship berth day has improved, the average turnarcund time and average pre-berthing detention time have deteriorated from 2006-07 levels.
Average capacity utilization at major ports is around 72%. As the global economy revives, pressure on the port infrastructure can be expected to
increase.

To be able to address the anticipated traffic by F'Y 2016-17, significant capacity additions have been planned over the 12th FYP. Overall port capacity
is expected to be increased from its present level of 1.3 billion tonnes to 2.3 billion tonnes. The existing: capacities are more targeted towards liquid
bulk / POL and Containerlized movements, [t may also be important to add specialized facilities for bulk commodities such as imported coal to enable
handling of larger quantities of the same. Restriction of iron ore exports has led to release of certain capacities at ports handling such traffic spacialty
Mormugao and Paradip. Depending upon future regulations around this movement and demand for iron & steel, the traffic for coal and iron ore could
increase. Capacity enhancements have been planned at both majer ané non-major ports with certain non-major Greenfield ports having been planned.

However, Greenfield non-major ports planned by the State. governments have been delayed on account of slow land acquisition, security and
anvironmearnt clearances.

Key augmentations planned by major ports include deepening of berths, construction of jetties and rail/ road connectivity. The 12th FYP stresses on
increasing the share of containerised cargo at ports in order to capture a greater share of international trade. Shipping companies have focused on
setting up captive faciities as well since these are relatively more insulated from the fluctuations in interriational demand and. offer a cushion in the
current economic scenario.

There is & huge scopse for capacity creation and efficiency improvemaent {o ensure improvement on a ‘loglstics performance index’ (tme and cost). The
government and respective authorities must faclitate private sector parlicipation. Over the pasl two years, environment clearances and fand
acguisition emerged as key lssues that coupled with economic slewdown jecpardised projects under implernentation / reaching financial closure, which
adversely affected investor sentiment. The economic slowdown significantly chenged viability of many projects across sectors, parily because of
aggressive bidding by private sector on some projects, This experience must be leveraged ¢ put in place mechanisms that ensure projact risks are
identified and project viability and traffic projections are assessed objectively before the award of project. Also, steps must be laken to address any
major project viability risks that materialise, before they begin to affect the larger investment sentiment and/or create several project delays,
Furthermore, there is a requirement of continuously evalving the risk sharing framework between tha private sector and the govemment. While the.
PPP frameworks for roads and ports sectors are at an advanced stage of development, having undergone several rounds of revision, thare are likely
10 be areas for continued focus. For instance, in the Roads seclor, renegotiation of certain provisions under the concessions are being sought by the
private sector to make the project development viable after bidding (for instance, allowing back-ending of payments of premium). Proposed revision in
the guidelines for seiting of tariff for major ports is axpacted to aliow greater role of competitive forces in tariff determination and to praviding a level
playing field betwaan major and non-major ports. For other sectors PPP framework developmant would need to be focused on. Private investmenit in
craation of rail infrastructure could take-off subsequent to the private sector paricipation policias announcad by Ministry of Railways, provided the
coNCession agreemants for the sama are also finalized and notified. Developmenit of air cargo complexas on PPP basis is presently gstting bubdled as
part of the overall airport development and may need separate focus — especially in as fer as it contributes to storage / movement of specialized
{perishable) cargo. Time has also come that an integrated approach is adopted ta plan investments in the sector, For axample, while greater private
participation is resulting in rapid port capacity expansion, adequate evacuation infrastructure i.e. roads and railways need to be built to fransfer goods
between the hinterand and ports. Simitardy, rallway infrastructures ngads to be developed faster, and the existing network strengthened on major
freight routes, as roads get congested quickly with passenger as well as freight traffic despite rapid expansion. Planning and implementation in these
sectors must be undertaken in a coordinated manner to ensure that economic value is actually created.

QOutiook

The total warehousing space requirement in India is expected to grow at a CAGR of 9% form an estimated 918mn sq. ft. in 2014 to 1439 n Sq.ft by
2019. There are three main sectors which drive warehousing space in India, namely Manufacturing, censumptien and EXIM. The highest growth of the
three sectors is expectad to be in the EXIM sector which is expected to grow at'a CAGR of 13% from an estimated requirement of 211mn sq. ft in
20114 to a projected requirement of 386 Mn.Sq.ft in 2019. India’s containerized traffic in TEUs has grown at an annual average grown rate of 11%
fueling robust demand in ogistics infrastructure.

ARSHIYA'S BUSINESS OFFERINGS

Arshiya's businesses offer unique sofutions by way of unified supply chain infrastructure and warehousing facilities along with value added services
and capabitity of providing all related technology solutions and end-to-end fransportations.

The Indian Logistics. industry, hitherto dominated by un-grganised players, now has innovative and 'game changing' solutions through Arshiya Group
having created world class and compestitive logistics infrastructure solutions such as:
» Freae Trade and Warehousing Zones (FTWZs)
¢ To enable EXiM {Export-iImport) cargo consolidation, vatue additiorn, inventory financing and to allow India to become a regional trading and
transhipment hub.

* Industrial and Domestic Distribution Hubs
o For Domestic cargo value additien, consolidation and light manufacturing.
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* Rall Infrastructure Solutions )
o To compriga innovative customized containers for specific product types, service level agreements on timelines and delivery with key
performance indicators. '
o State-of-the-art Rail Terminals with modern equipment o increase speed of loading/unloading and churn,

FREE TRADE ZONES - engines of growth across the world

Free Trade Zones (or Free Trade and Warehousing Zones — FTWZs in the Indian context), are a globally estabiished goncept and a key reason
bahind the success. of economies such as Dubai, Singapore and China, are essentially an open market where International and domestic traders can
meet to store their cargo, pesform value addition and transact business with each other.

This businass of international frading af Frae Trade Zones is supporiéd by an eco-systemn of global logistics and supply chain players which cater to
the storage and value addition needs of these traders and by internatienal financial institutions which finance international cargo through the provigion
of Warghouse Receipts. Established commodity exchanges like the London Metal Exchange {LME) and Dubai Multt Commodities Centre (DMCC) elc.,
maintain inventories in such Free Trade Zones.

As prominent examples of the success of Free Trade Zones:

& The $hanghai Free Trade Zone at Walgaoqlao in Shanghai has over 9,300 companies registered in the zone, including 135 of the Fortune 500
companigs. From an .economically backward country in 1970 to its gigantic success, FTZs have basn the single mast crilical macroeconomic
factor for Ching's rise. This one Free Trade Zong has handled trade volumes in excess of $100 billion in 2012,

» Singapore has managad to establish itself as a global trading and tfansshipment hub as the entire.country is designated as a Free Port. Singapore
Free Trade Zone has over 7,000 companias operate through these zones.

s The Jebel Ali Fres Zone {JAFZA)} in Dubai contributes over 26% of Dubai's GOP and generates 160,000 direct jobs by servicing over 6,400
companies from tha zone and contributes to 25% of Dubai Port's container traffic.

% As an example of the potential of these zones, global commodities exchanges like the LME approve Warehouses exclusively in global Free Trade
Zones and thé cargo stored in these Warehouses are bought and sold either electronically {over the exchange) or are earmarkad for physicat
delivery by global importers, exporters and end-users and are financed though Warshouse Receipts or LME Warrants by global financial
institutions exclusivety in Free Trade Zones

s Approximately 5% of the tatal volumes of metal cargo traded on LME {or over US$ 700 Billion or around 7 Million Tonnes of Non Ferrous Metals
Cargo) is carge earfnarkéd for physical delivery globally, which Is bought and sold by traders or end-ysers and is financed through Warehouse
Receipts or LME Warrants, thereby acting as a catalyst for global Trade. Arshiya ig.in discussions with global trading major to carryout these
activities in its FTWZ,

Lastly, the present activities being carried at FTWZs. are in itself smployment potentiat, and a huge opportunity for growth in trade volumes, aconormic

growth and reduction in transaction costs and to attract forsign capital into Ihdia. In the previous financial year 2014, Arshiya's FTWZ in Muimbai alone
has handled trade volumes in excess of US$1.3 Billion.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Cempany faces the following Risks and Concerns;

Economic Risk

A part of business is substantially dependent on the prevailing global economic conditions. As witnessed in previous years, global trade directly
impacts our FTWZ business. Factors that may adversely affect the gikobal economy and in turn Indla’s economic growth, that could affect the FTWZ
Include siowdown in the rate of infrastructure development, inflation, changes in tax, trade, fiscal and monetary policies etc. However, given the
planned infrastructure investments in FY 2013-2017 will rise. to a cumulative US 1 Trillion compared to US 542 billion in FY 2007- 2012, growth In
global EXIM traffic and with increasing outsourcing of the legistics function by companies, we do not expect to be significantly affected by this rigk.
Competition Risk

Arshiya is pioneer in setting up FTWZ in the country and as such there is no competition in near future. The criterta of minimum 100 acres of land for

selting up an FTWZ makes it all the more comfortable from the competition pérspective as the land acquisition in the current context is not considered
as simple activity.
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Trade Risk

Our business can be affected by the rise and fall in the levels of imports and exports in the country. Given the projected growth in the Indian economy
and expected recovary in global trade, rising spendang in the infrastructure and manufacturing space and increasing per capita and disppsable income,
it Is estimatad that imports will continue to rise steadily. The Company is also focusing an high margin segment which is essentialiy dependent on
imparts and exports of containerized cargo in India. With expected EXIM trade increase along with the growth in containerization, FTWZ business is
expected to be good in coming years. Thus, we believe we have adequate mitigation in place for trade risk,

Regulatory Rigk

The company Is facing certain regulatory issues; which it has taken up with the relevant Government Authorities and the same is being sorted out.
After the clarity in the regulatory issues, it is expected that the business would grow substantially as all industry predictions suggest that this will be the
trend in the future as well and we do not expect this risk to affect us materially in the coming years.

Liability Risk

This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to cargo, equipment, life and third parties which may adversely affect aur business. The
Company attempts to mitigate this risk through contractual obligations and insurance policies.

Execution Risk

The Company has already imptemented the project and has developed sufficient project implementation risk and thus does not envisage any
execution risk in future.

OPPORTUNITIES

» Growth in GDP and EXIM Trade
o ~2x relationship between grawth rates of GDP and the logtstics industry.
o Postracession resurgence of sectors like retait and manufacturing to drive volume growth,
o Growth in EXIM trade — diract positive impact on port-oriented logistics, 1.5-2x GDP multiple for EXIM container trade

¢ Rising Outsourcing and Consolidation.
o Current outsourcing of togistics at around 52% in India. _ _
o Many more - increasingly considering outsourcing and 3PL models to reduce cost and focus on core businesses, giving to. rise to industry
consolidation

* Rapid Supply Side Changos
o -Significant private investrnent - warehousing and improverment in transportation systemns
o Moving away from ‘Store-n-Transpdrt’ to real supply chain management

» Kay Regulatory Changes
o Introduction of GET - Leads to creation of integrated supply chain facilities llke warehousing
© near consumplion centers
o Privatization of sectors like container rail, rail freight terminals, port and airports
o FDlin retail marketing and distribution — Will increase opportunities for intermediary logistiés service providars

s Significant Spending on Infrastructure
¢ Gowvt. spanding over US-300 billion on infrastructure in 12th five year plan of which - 27%
¢ 1o be spent on rail, road, aviation and port projects
o Approx. US$ 500 billlon expected to. be spent in logistics infrastructure development in
coming decade

Over next 5-10 years, India ls expacted to evolve .as a moderate-sized export hub for key sectors. such as automotive, engineering goods,
Pharmaceuticals, and processed foods. Moreover within the next 2-3 years, consumption led economic. growth is likely 1o continue supporting import
into the country. India also. offers thi significant a cost arbitrage opportunity when compared with other regions.

JNPT port where one of the FTWZ of the company Is lecated handled more than 55% of India's total container {raffic. its dominance as the most viable
port and Navi Mumbai's accessibility to major manufacturing destinations across India makes it one of the most preferred logistics and warehousing
destination in India.

The JNPT port is already working at a 120% capacity on an installed capacity of 3.8 million TEUs. The Port is expected to add another terminal

thereby more than doubfing Its capacity to 10 million TEUs by 2016. This will cansequently increase demand in logistics and warehousing activity In
the region.
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THREATS

Despite showing immense growth potential, the Indian Logistics and warehousing industry encounters various issues and challenges today which are
discussed as under:

India lacks efficient road and rail network to facilitate smooth mevement of goods. Alsa there is over dapendence on the road Infrastructure unlike the
developed countries where rail is an equally mode of fraight movement. The rall network in our country is saturated due to limited addition in tracks
‘during the past decads. Likewise, cargo handling capacity of our ports is also inadequate leading to delay in delivery. The typical turnaround time. of
Indizn ports is twice that of the neighboring ports of Colombo and Singapore. Such transport refated issues in furn affact the export and import time
which in tum pose a challenge.

Company does not envisage any threat as we are the piorieers in the industry,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company maintains & system of intemal controls designed to provide a high degree of assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reilability of finangial controls, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
organization is well structured and the policy guidelines are weil documented with pre-defingd autfiority. The Company has also implemented suitable
«controls to ensure that all resources are utilized optimally. financial fransactions are reported with accuracy and thers is strict adherence to applicable
laws and regulations.

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The Company has built on its business vislon, and created world-ctass infrastructure facilltios. The change in regulatory procedures — more explained
below impacted the Company operations during the last two.quarars of the year under review due 1o the following reasons:

» Stoppage of Transhipment of cargo from Mumbal Fort to FTWZ

o Mumbai port customs in September 2012 stopped the movement of cargo from Mumbal port to FTWZ in Panvet which is continuing te hamper
the operations.

©  Your Company is in discussion with the customs and ministry officials and awalts clarification for the same.

e Delays in Duty Drawback

¢ Lack of procedural clarity for claiming the duty drawback for exports- made through FTWZ, due 1o this exporter is being deprived of major
benefits that an FTWZ offers. ]

© Your Company Is trying to get clarlfication regarding the same from customs and ministry officials.

¢  Non-availability of Customs EDI system in FTWZ _

¢ EDI link system s used by customs for getting relevant notifications, instructions, exchanges rates, vatuation references, historic data etc. to
facilitate imports and exports.

o Non avallability of EDI link system at FTWZ, has resultad in delays in the imports and exports procedurss at FTWZ.

o Company has installed all the required data exchange facilities and 1T connactivity for implementing the EDI and have requested the highest
authorities for allowing EDI link at FTWZ,

= mport General Manifest (IGM} approvals for FTWZs

o An IGM is a regulatory document to be filed with customs by camier of goods into the ¢ountry, In this case the shipping lines.

0 The IGM details the particulars of goods to be transshipped. The IGM specifies the location at which the goods would be cleared from
custams,

o As per existing statutory provisions, tha IGM cannot list an FTWZ as the end location. Due 1o this constraint, shipping lines are nol moving
their cargo to FTWZ.

= Non-tecognition of Arshiya FTWZ as a port for Import of few ifems especially cars

0 Imports of cars into India are permitted from specified Ports/ICDs which does not include Arshiva FTWZ. About 1000+ cars were initially
handlad by Arshiva FTWZ, based on temporary approvals from DGFT, This approval was subsequently withdrawn,

o This resulted In car companies withdrawing their decision to use Arshiya FTWZ.

o However, the matter is presently under consideration as your Company has presented the case to highest govemning authorities including
DGFT and Finance and Commerce- Ministries that Arshiya FTWZ has all tha required facility, customs systems and competent customs
officials posted in FTWZ and hence should be treated at par with other ports sligible for importing cars.

» Marketing FTWZs as a Concept '

¢ FTWZis.a new concept in india so miarkating it is a challenge.

o Arshiya has undertaken a detaifed customer awareness programme to educale its customar base about the advantages of using an FTWZ
over the ordinary warehouses. '

The abave factors affacted the ulilization of capacity arising out of huge capitat expenditure and consequently impacted the operations of the

Company. The Goempany could not reach the scale of operations as planned and, hence not succeeded in ganerating revenue to sustain smooth
aperations. Due to this the Company approached its term lenders undsr Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) mechanism for Snancial restructuring.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2013-14 - Based on standalona Financials

+ Total income {decreased] by 56.97% from Rs. 701.15 crore in 2012.13 to Rs. 301.69 crofe in 2013:14

e EBIDTA [decreased] by 92.37 % from Rs. 153.16 crore in 2012-13 ta Rs. 11.68 crore in 2013-14

= EBIDTA margin [reduced] from 21.84% in 2012-13 to 3.87% in 2013-14

& Net Profit margin [declined] from (2.00%} in 2012-13 to (9.87%) in 2013-14

Segmental Performance {Rs in crores}
Turfiover Yy

1544 ‘Increasel {flecreasy),

Forwarding 258.28 573.76 (54.98%)

FTWZs / Industrial & Distribution Hubs 43.41 127.39 {65.92%)

Total tumover 301.69 701.15 (56.97%)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2013-14 — Based On Consolidated Financials

Segmental Performance

Total income [decreased] by (54.67%) from Rs. 1138.59 ¢crore in 2012-13 to Rs. 576.55 crore in 2013-14
EBIDTA [decreased] by (107.57%) from Rs. 183.34 crore in 2012-13 to Rs. {13.87) crore in 2013-14
EBIDTA margin [reduced] from 16.09% in 2012-13 to (2.69) by (116.69%) in 2013-14

Net Profit margin [ declined] from (11.16%) in 2012-13 to {(163.82%) in 2013-14

{Rs. in crores)

Tupnover

1344 ) _ cronse)
Logistics 258.55 626.14 -58.71%
FTWZs/Distripark 64.66 211.40 -69.41%
Containarized rail transport operations 193.35 301.79 -35.93%
Seftware - 0.26 -100.00%
Total tumover 516,56 1139.59 =54 .67%

THE YEAR THAT WILL FOLLOW

With the ongoing efforts of your company, the year ahead may see mors. clarity on the regulatory aspects, movement of carge and remaval of
restrictions on FTWZ. FTWZ to become trading hub and a possibla cenduit for increasing global trade of the country.

There could be good snough reason to believe for a robust, comprehensive and businass-friendly policy for the FTWZ sector in very near futirs,

The Group may decide to reduce the freight forwarding and transportation business with more focus on maximising the usage of the created assets.
The Company will also focus on completing the Phase |l of lts Panvel FTWZ Project, ICD, and additional Rakes.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) initiative, at Arshiya encompasses praclices related to Identification, assessment, monitoring and
invastigation of various risks to our business. Risk management is integral and fundamental to Arshiya's business. Since Afshiya is operating in a
highly competitive environment, it is exposed to various strategic and operational risks like trade related risks, financial risks, economic risks, lability
and regulatory risks. The Company has processes in place to safeguard its assets and liability risks through adequate and appropriate insurance
coverage and the Company proposeas to further strengthen the same.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements made in the management discussions and analysis report relating to the Company's objectives, projactions, outiook, expectations,
estimates and others may constitute “forward looking statements” within the meaning of appﬁcab!_e laws and regulations, Actual results may differ from
stith expectations, profections and so on, whether express or implied. Several factors could make significant difference to the Company's operations.
These include climatic conditions and economic conditions sffecting demantd and supply, government regutations and taxation, natural colamities and

$0 on, over which the Company does not have any diract conlrol,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'S PHILOSCPHY ON CORPCRATE GOVERNANCE

The Company emphasizes the need for full transparency and accountability in afl its transactions, in order to protect the interests of its
Stakeholders. The Board considers itself as a Trustee of its Shareholders and acknowledges its responsibilities towards them for creating and
safeguarding their wealth. Your Company continuously endeavours to uphold the valugs of fransparency, integrity, professionalism and
accountability, and improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis to help the Company move forward.

The amended nomns are aligned with the provisions of the companies Acgt, 2813, and aimed to encourage companies to 'adopt best practices
on Comporate Governance'

We firmiy believe that independence of Board is essantial to bring objectivity and transparency in the management and in the dealings of the
Company. As on March 31, 2014, the majority of our Board members - 4 out of 7 — are independent members. An Independent Director is
nominated as a chairman of Audit Committee

COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT
. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

{A) Compoeition of Board

The Beard of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Promoter Director and Non-Executive Independent Directors, who
have in depth knowledge of the business and industry, The composition of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchanges.

As at 31" March, 2014, the Company has Seven Directors on its Board with a Promoter Director as Chairman, Of the Seven Directors
(including one Woman Director), and Four are Non-Executive independent Directors. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they
meet the ‘Independence’ criteria as menticned under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

(B) Attendance at Board Meetings.

During the year under consideration seven meetings of the Board were held on the following dates with a gap not exceeding four menthg
between two mestings: 30" May, 2013, 15 June 2013, 3rd July 2013, 21™ August, 2013, 11" November, 2013, 10" February, 2044 and 27*
March, 2014.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year and the number of
Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in other Companies are given herein below. Other Directorships do
not inctude directorships in Private Limited Companies, Section 256 Companies and Companies Incorporated cutside India. Chalrmanships of
Board Committees includa only Audit and Share Transfer & Investor Relations Committee.

Sr. | NAME OF THE Category Number of Board Directorships | Membership / Attendance
No. | Director meeting during the | in other Chairmanship of at the
¥r. 2013 - 2014 Public Committess in other A.G.M Heid
Director's Companigs Public Companies on Tth
Attendance August,
2013
Held Attended Chairman | Membership
1| Mr. Ajay S Mittal PO 7 7 8 1 7 Present
Mrs. Archana A . 3
2 Mittal PD 7 6 3 Absent
3 | Mr. Ashish Bairagra NEI 7 7 4 1 1 Present
4 | Mr. Rishabh Shah NEI 7 & - B N Absent
5 | Prof. G. Raghuram NEI 7 6 8 - 6 Absent
& | Mr. Mukesh Kacker NEI 7 5 1 N N Absent
7 | Mr. Suhas Thakar* ED 7 5 2 - - Present
Mr. James . R
8 | Beltran** NEI . 7 3 0 Absent
Mr. Sandesh ) R -
9 | Chonkar™* ED 7 3 9 Present
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PD: Promoter Director, ED: Executive Director; NEI: Non Executive Independent Diraector
*  Resigned w.e.l: 31/03/2014

** Resigned w.e.f: 06/09/2013

“**Resigned w.e.f. 21/08/2013

IL. COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committes in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

The Committee oomprlses of 2 Non Executive Independent Directors and 1 Promoter Executive Director. Mr. Ashish Bairagra is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. Eight meetings of the Audit Commitiee were held during the year on the dates given below;

30" May 2013, 3 July 2013, 30" July 2043, 21" August 2013, 21% October 2013, 11 November 2013, 10" February 2014 and 1* March, 2014,

Details of meetings attended by its membars till 31* March, 2014 are given below:

Sr, No. Name of Members No. of meetings:held |No. of meetings attended
1. |Mr. Ashish Bairagra - GChairman 8 8
2. |Mr. Rishabh Shah - Member 8 8
3. |Mr. Sandesh Chonkar - Member# 8 2
4. EMr. Ajay S Mittal* - Member i} 2

#Resigned w.e.f. 21* August, 2013,
“Appointed as member of Audit committee w.e.f. 21% August, 2013,

The Chairman of the Augit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting held on 7" August, 2013 to answer Member's queries.

The meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors as special invitees. The Committee also invites
such of the other Directors or Executives as it considers appropriate fo be present at the meeting. The Company Secretary/ Compliance Officer
acts as the secretary to the Commiitiee. Minutes of each Audit Committee meeting are placed before, and when considered approprlate. are
discussed in the meeting of the Board. The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the adequacy of the internal contrél functions, and reviews the
Intemnal Audit Reports including those related to Internal Control weaknasses, if any. The Audit Committes is provided with necessary assistance
and information to carry out their functions effectively.

Powers and Terms of Reference of the Committee: _

The Audit Committes assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing -and reporting
practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee's purpose is to oversee the acoounting
and financial reporting process of the Company, the audits of the Company's Financial Staternents, the appointment, independence, performance
and rermuneration of the Statutory Auditors, the performance of Internal Auditors and the Company’s Risk Management Policies. The Committee,
inter afia, performs the following functions:

1 Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information fo ensure that
the financial statament is correct; sufficient and credible.
9 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the
Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit faes,
3 | Approval of payment 1o Statutory Alditors for any othér services rendered by them
4 Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval,
with particular reference to:

a Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to. bs included in the Board's
repoit in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956.
£hanges. if any, in Accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same,

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Management,
Significant adjustments made In the Flgancial Staterments arising g q agdlt findi ngs

Disclosu@_ of any related pa p [11 transac ons
Qualifications in the draft Audit Report.

5 Reviewing, with the managerent, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the board for approval,
€ | Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds as and when raised through an issue
{public issue, rights issue, preferential Issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by tha monitoring agency rmonitering the
utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommandations to the Board to take up
steps in this matter.

o0 [~ |cL ey |Or
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7 | Reviewing with the Management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, and adequacy of the Internal

confrol systems.

g | Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit department,

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, teporting structure coverage and frequency of

internal audit,

9 | Discussion with Intemnal Auditors on any signilicant findings and foliow up thareon.

10 | Reviewing the findings of any intemal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irreg'ﬁlarity or a failure of Internal control systems of a matenial nature &nd reporting the matter to the Board.

11 | Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 85

post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem,

12 | Telock into the reasons for substantial defaukts if any, in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

13 | To review the functiening of the Whistle Biower mechanism, in case the same Is existing.

14 | Carrying out any othar function as is assigned ko the Audit Committee.

15 | Such other powers & duties as may be required to be included in terms of Listing Agreement amended from time to

time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr, Ashish Bairagra, Chairman, #Mr. Rishabh Shah and Prof G. Raghuram. Two members shall be the
quorum for the meeting of the said Cormmiltes. The Company Secretary / Compliance Officer acts as a secretary to the committee The minutes of
the Meeting of the Committea shall be placed at the meeting of Beard of Directors,

The broad terms of reference of the Remuneration Committes are as under:

To daetermine the Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors including pension rights and any compensation
payment, including recommendation for fixation and pericdic revision of compensation policy (including performance bonus, incentives,
perguisites and benafits) for senicr management parsonnal,

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year under review on 30™ May, 2013.

SHARE TRANSFER & INVESTOR GRIEVANCES AND ALLIED MATTERS COMMITTEE

The Share Transfer and Investor Relations Committee was renamed as Share Transfer & Investor Grievance and Allied Matters Committee with
effect from 30™ March, 2013.

The Committes had been reconstituted as follows by the Board at its meeting hetd on 21" August, 2013 consequent to resignation of Mr.
Sandesh Chonkar from the Board of the Company.

a.  Mr. Rishabh Shah Chairman
b, Mr. Ashish Bairagra Mamber
¢.  Mr. Ajay S Mittal Member

The Company Secretary { Compliance Officer acts as secretary to the Committee.

The broad terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

i) | To deal and approve shares [ securities transfers, requesl for split, issue of duplicate Shares certificate.

i) | To delegate Authority to the Senior Executives for approval of Transfer & Transmission of securifies
___| Iissued by the Company,

i) | To daal with the.Investors complaints.
iv} To maintain, develop and improve relations with the investors.

Details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

ISr.No. Name of Membars No. of meetings held No of meetings attended
1. Mr. Rishabh Shah 3 3
2. Mr. Ashish Bairagra 3 3
3. Mr. Suhas Thakar* 3 1
4, Mr. Sandesh Chonkar** 3 1

*Resignad with effact fram 31" March, 2014

*Rasigned w.e.f 21" August, 2013

The meetings of the. Shate Transfer & Investor Grievance and Alied Matters Committee were held Three times during the year on .21* June,
2013, 1" March, 2014 and 24™ March, 2014

29



ARSHIYA LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

During the year under review, Three Complaints were received from the sharaholders, which were adequately resolved by the Company /
Registrar & Transfer Agent {RTA) M/s Big share Services Private Limited leaving a balance of Nil complaints as on March, 31, 2014,

COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The Committes of Directors comprises of Mr. Ajay S Mittal, Chairman, Mr. Ashish Bairagra, Mr. Suhas Thakar and Mr. Rishabh Shah, The
Committea has been delagated with various powers of the Board to enable the Management to take various timely decisions in the best interest
of the Company.

The Committee meets as and when required and the Minutes of the Committee of Direcfors are placed at the next meeting of the Board. During
the year three meetings were held on 16" September, 2013, 18" September, 2013 & 5" December, 2013. With respect to cther Committaes, i
the Board Meeting is held on the same day after any Committes Meating then Chalrman of such Committee briefs the' Board of the discussions
and decisions taken af such Committee Meeting and the minutes are accordingly ptaced in subsequent Board Meeting.

Sr.No. Name of Memberz . No. of meetings held No of mestings attended
1. Mr. Alay S Mittal 3 3
2. Mr. Ashish Bairagra 3 3
3. Mr. Sandesh Chonkar* 3 0
4. M. Rishabh Shah 3 3
5. [Mr. Suhas Thakar (Retd. }# 3 3

* Resigned w.e.f 21st Augusf 2013
#w.e.f. 1st June, 2013

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has laid down a-code of conduct for all its Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company which is posted on
the Company's website, All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed tompliance with the said Code of Conduct,

CODE CN INSIDER TRADIING

The Company has framed and implemented a Code on Prevention of Insider Trading in accordance with the Code prescrined by SEBI|
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1892. The Coda is applicable to all Directors, Senior Management and Designatad Employees.

Nl SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

Clause 49 of the Listing agreement with the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of india Limited, defines a “material non-listed
Indian subsidiary” as an Unlisted Subsidiary Company, incorporated in India, whose turnover or net worth {i.8, paid up capital and free reserves)
sxceeds 20% of the consolidated tumaver or net worth respectively, of the Listed Halding Company and its subsidiaries in the immediataly preceding
accounting year.

The Company has 13 subsidiary Companies, including 4 step down subsidiaty as on 31.03.2014. Further, it has one. “Material non-listed Indian

Subsidiary, and in compliance with the conditions specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, one Independent Directors on the Board of the
Company, have been appointed as Directors on the Board of the Material non-fisted Indian Subsidiary , as well as on its Audit Committee.

IV. DISCLOSURES

a} | Related Party Transactions _

Transactions with related parties have been disclosed in Note No. 44 of Notes forming part of the Standalons
Financial Statements in the Annual Report. However, these transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the
Company's interest. The Audit Committee has reviewed these transactions as per provisions of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agresment

b) | Disclosure of Accounting Treatmaent

In the praparation of the Financial Statoments, the Company has followed the accounting standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent applicable.

c) | Disclosure of Risk Managemeant

Your Company is well aware of risks assoclated with its business operations and various projecta under execution,
Comprehensively Risk Management System is being put in place Involving classification of sk, adoption of risk’
mitigation measures and a strong mechanism to deal with potential risks and situation leading to rise of risks in an
sffective manner. '

Senlor Professionals conversant with Risk Managament systems have been entrusted with the said task with a brief to
implement the Risk_Management.

d) Impfementation of Compliance Management System:

Your Company has in place a wellstructured Legal Compliance Management System to monitor pertodical
complisnces on regular basis and review reports are discussed at the Audit Committes Meetings. Mr. Shyam Rathi is
the Compliance Officer with effect from 21% August, 2013,
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e} Proceeds. from Public lssues, Rights lssues, and Preferentlal Issues gtc.
The Company has not made any issue of Equity Shares under the Company's Employee Stock option Scheme during
the year and hence not received any proceeds therefrom.

The Company had allotted 1,38,00,000. convertible warrants at Rs.145/- per warant to promoters/ promoters group an greferential
basis pursuant to the special resolution passed by the members of the Campany at their meeting heki on 18" October,
2012. These warrants have been converted irito equity shares (in the ratio of 1 share for t warrant) of Rs, 2/- each at a
premium of Rs.143/- per share in three tranches i.e. 53,00,000, 52,50,000 and 30,50,000 during the financial years
2014-2015, 20113-2014 and 2042-2013 respactively.

f) Management Discussion & Analysis: _
Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms part of Annual Report.

a) Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appoiniment of Directors:
The detailed profiles of Directors proposed for appointment/ reappointment at the Annual General Meeting, are
pravided in the Annexure to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration paid to Directors

Your Company benefits from the professional expertise and invatuable experience of the Independent Directors in their individual capacity as
gompetent professlonals/business executives in achieving corporate excellenca, During the period, there were no pecuniary relationships or
transactions between the Company and any of its Nen-Executive Directors. The Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Non-
Executiva Directors,

Details of Sitting Fees/Remuneration paid to Non-executive ang Executive Directors jor the year ended March 31, 2013 are given balow:

a) Nen- executive Directors;
Sr.No. Name of Director Sitting Fees paid | No. of shares held
{Rs.) {Face Value Rs.2/- each}
1. Mr. Ashish Bairagra 180000 _Nil
2. Mr. Rishabh Shah 160800 7955
3. Prof. (3. Raghuram 120000 NI
4. Mr. Mukesh Kacker 100000 Nil
5. Mr. James Beltran* Nl il
*resignad with effect 06/08/2013
b} Executive Directors:
Sr. Name of Director Salary, Perquisites, No, of Shares held
No. Allowances and {excluding Stock
Commission paid Option)
{Rs.} _
1. [ Mr. Ajay S Mittal-Chairman & Managing — Director NIl il
2. | Mrs, Archana Mittal - Joint Managing Diractor Nil Nil
3. | Mr. Sandesh Chonkar** — Executive Director Nit Nil
4 Mr. Suhas Thakar* - Executive Director 1,14.58,469 Nil

*Resigned with effect from 3170372074
**Resigned w.e.f 21% August, 2013

Consequent to their request for waiver of the remuneration for the year 2013-2014, Mr. Ajay S Mittal & Mrs. Archana A Mittal the Board of
Diractors had approved the walver of their remuneration.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Location, time and date whore last three Annual General / Extra Ordinary General Meetings (AGMs ! EGM} were held are given below:

Einancial Year Date & Time Vanue

2012-2013 AGM - Hall of Culture (Nehru Centre), Dr. Annle Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai -
7" August, 2013 at 3:30 p.m. | 400018

20122013 EGM - 18" Oclober, 2012 at | Sal Palace Hotel, Mahakall Caves Road, Chakala, Mumba) 400093
11.00 am

20112012 AGM -1 8“September. 2012 Hall of Harmony {Nehrfu Centre), Dr. Annie Besart Road, Worli, Mumbai —
at 2:30 p.m, 400 818

2010-2011 AGM - 20" September MC Ghina Hall, 4th Floor, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building 18/20, K,Dubash
2011 3.30PM. Marg, Kaila Ghoda, Mumbai 400 001.

In the last three AGMS/EGM, foliowing special resolutions were passed

AGM held on Special Resolution passed
7" August,2013 Change of name of Company from Arshiya international Limited to Arshiya Limited
“18" October 2012 Preferential Issue of warrants convertible into equity shares.
18th September, 2012 ® Ravision in remuneration of Mr. Ajay S Mittal, Chairman & Managing Director
of the Company w.e.f 1" October, 2011 {ill the remaining period of his appointment

3



ARSHIYA LIMITED ANNUAL REPORY 2013-2014

i.@. 14" April, 2014.

s Appoiniment of Mr.Ananya A Mittal, a relative of Mr. Ajay S Mittal, Chairman &
Managing Director's and Mrs. Archana A Mittal, Joint Managing Director of the
Company, as General Manager - Business Development,

®  Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company under section 31 of the
Companies Act, 1956 by inserting new clause 72(4), 94A and 133.

20° September, 2011 & Appointment of Ms.Neha-Srivastava, a relative of Mr. V. Shivkumnar, Executive
Director of the Company, as Manager HR.

s Aleration of the Articles of Association of the Company by replacing Article 106
- the number of Directors shall not be less than 3 and not more than 12.

b} Resolution passed through Postal Ballot
No resclution was passed through postal ballot during the year.

Name and designation of Compliance Cfficer
Mr. S8hyam Rathi — CFO.and Compliance Officer

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) The quarterly, half-yeary and annual financial results are usually published in Free Press Journal and Navashakti.

b) The Company has its own website viz. www.arshivalimited com and the financial results and quarterly shareholding pattern along with other
relevant information useful to the investors are uploaded on the website regularly.

c¢) The 'Investors' section on the Company's website keeps the investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key
and limely information like Finangial Results, Annual Reports, Shareholding Pattern, presentations made to institutional investors and
analysts etc. A brief profile of Directors is also on the Company's website. Members also hava the facility of raising their queries/complaints
on share related matters through a facility provided on the Company's website.

V. CEO !/ CFQ Certiflcation

In terms of the requirements of Clause 48(V) of the Listing Agreement, the CEQ/CFQ Certification is provided as Annexure-11 fo this Report.

V1. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERANCE
Quarterly Corporate Govemnance Report is filed with the exchanges within the prescribed tims.

VIl COMPLIANCE

The Company has complled with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges (expect that the result of the third quarter were taken on record after
the time prescribed under the listing agresment, with due intimation to the stock exchanges), SEBI and other statutory authorities on all matters
refating to capital market.

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exthanges, SEBI or other Statutory Authorities.

Cerlificate of the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of gonditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to this Report.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a) | Date Time and Venue of Date: 10" September, 2014

33" Annual General Meeting Time: 3:00 p.m.

Venue: Hall of Cufture, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
_ Worli, Mumbai — 400018,

b} | Financial Calendar -2013-2014 { iy 1% Qtr Results — on of bafore 14 August, 2014

Tentative) ' '

i) 2™t Results— onor before 14™ November, 2014
i) 3™Qtr Results- on or before 14™ Fabruary, 2015

iv) _Audited Regults for the year- on or before 30" May, 2015

c} | Date of Book Closure 8" September, 2014 10 10 Septembar, 2014
d) Dividend payment date NA
e) Listing on Stock Exchanges Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
The Company has paid the Listing fees for the year 2014-2015.

f) Stock Code Symbol BSE : 506074

NSE: ARSHIYA

g} | Demat ISIN Number INE968D01022
For CDSL and NSDL

h) Market Price Data & Relative Performance:

The monthiy high and low quotations of shares traded on BSE and BSE B / S&P BSE SENSEX during each month in last financial year are &s
foliows:
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Month Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)® B/S4P BSE SENSEX

Month’s High Month's Low Month's Month's High Month’s Low

Price {in Rs, Par | Price (In Rs. Per Volume

Share) Share}
April 13 _ 24.50 ' 14.10 36,981,703 19,622.68 18,144.22
May 13 29.65 19.05 17,44,408 20,443.62 19,451.26
June 13 21.00 14.40 9,89,520 19,860.19 18,467.16
July 13 21,95 12.15 10,36,103 20,351.08 19, 126.82
August 13 14.15 9.92 13,689,282 19,569.20 17,448.71
September 13 13.75 10.60 4,01,732 20,739.69 18,166.17
Cciober 13 16.70 10.91 8,82,580 21,205.44 19,264.72 |
MNovember 13 20.10 14.50 11,88,185 21,321.53 20,137.67
Decernber 13 19.90 15.10 8,73,164 21,483.74 20,568.70
January 14 18.70 13.25 7,83,193 21,409.86 20,343.78
February 14 14.28 10.80 5,562,554 21,140.5% 19.963.12
March 14 18.00 11.16 12,95,042 22,467.21 20,920.98

*Source; www i
The monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on NSE and CNX Nifty
during each month in last financial year are as follows:

Month National Stock Exchange (NSE)" NSE CNX NIFTY*
Month’s High Month's Low Month's Month's High Month's Low
Price (in Rs, Per | Price {inRs. Per | Volume
Share) Share)
Agril 13 24.50 14.05 7371384 5962.3 5477.2
May 13 29.65 19.00 3416040 5229.45 5910.95
June 13 19.80 14.50 1818922 6011 5566.25
| July 13 2215 12.15 2253938 6093.35 5675.75
| August 13 14.05 9.95 1087556 5808.5 5118.85
September 13 13.70 10.60 884223 €1425 5318.9
October 13 10.90 16.70 1794619 6309.05 5700.95
November 13 20.10 15.25 1706917 6342.95 59724
December_13 18.40 ' 15.10 1460742 6415.25 6129.95
January 14 18.50 13.25 821925 8358.2 6027.25
February 14- 14.00 10.75 631899 6282.7 §933.3
March 14 17.9 11.10 2022012 6730.05 6212.25 |

*Source: www.nselndia.com
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J¥ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Blgshare Services Pvt. Ltd,
E-213, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka,
Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 072
Tel.: 91-22-2847 0652/ 40430200
Fax.: 91-22.2847 5207

E-mail: info@bigshareonling.corm

k) Share Transfer System:
All shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent within 15 days of the fodgement, if
documents are found in order. All requasts for dematerialization of shares are processed and the confirmation is given to the respective
depository's i.e National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL} and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) within 15 days.

1){a} Category wise distribution of equity shareholding as at 31* March , 2014:

Category wise distribution of equity sharehoiding as at 31st March, 2014
No. of Shares
Catepory Held % age of Shareholding |
Promoter & Promoter Group 28070225 41.82
Mutual Fund 0 0.00
Trust 0 0.00
all 2091834 341
Bodies Corporate 12883746 19,19
Individual 18804740} 28.01
Clearing Member 295979 D.44
Director / relative 13055 0.02
Empiloyee ‘5460 0.01
NRI 1542038 2.30
Foreign National 450000 0.67
Foreign Company 2771495 4.13
GRAND TOTAL 87128472 100.00

Distribution of shareholiding as on 31" March 2014;

Number of Equity % of total Tetal Helding in % of Total
shares held Total Holders holders Rs. Capital
o1 5000 13440 93.05 9504444 6.81
5001 - 10000 428 296 3182190 2.28
10001 - 20000 272 .88 4072134 2.92
20001 - 30000 80 0.55 2015554 1.44
30001 - 40000 44 .30 1568800 1.12
40001 - 50000 34 .24 1564266 j.12
50001 - 100000 83 0.44 4685058 3.36
100001-89999999 g3 0.57 1129165498 80.94
| Total 14444 100 134258944 100.000

m} Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity:

Approximately 87.96% of the total number of shiares are in dematerialized form as on 31% March 2014. The Equily shares of the Company are
traded on the BSE Limited and National-Stock Exchangs of India Limited..

n) Qutstanding ADRs, GDRs, Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and Impact on Equity.

As on 31% March, 2014, there were no 53,00,000 Warrants Qutstanding for conversion. No ADRs or GDRs, or any other convertible instruments’
wers outstanding for conversion as on 31 March, 20714,
o) Address for Investor Correspondence:

All routine correspondence regarding share transfers, transmission, dematerialization of shares, change of address, non-receipt of dividend etc.
should be addrassed to the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents at:
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(a)

(b)

()

(9

Blgshare Services Private Limited
E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka,

Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 072

Tel.: 91-22-2847 0652/ 40430200
Fax.; 91-22-2847 5207
E-mait: info@binshareonline.com

For complaints/grievances, if any, members are requested to address the same to:

Arshiya Limited

402, Lavel 4, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate,
F-Block, Br. Annie Besnt Road, Worll, Mumbai - 400018
Email :grv.r al Imitedl.

Annexure J:
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUGT

In accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, to the best of

my knowledge and belief and on the basis of declarations given to me, | hereby affirm that all the Directors d@nd the. Senior Management Persannel have
affirmad compliance with the Code of Conduct laid down by the Company as applicable to them for thé financlal year ended on 31st March, 2014.

AJAY S MITTAL
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00226355

Date: 9% July, 2014
Place: Mumbai

Anpiexurs Il )
We, Ajay 5 Mittal, Chairman & Managriing Director and Shyam Rathi CFQ of Arshiya Limited appainted in terms of the: Companios Act, 1956, certify lothe Board that;

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statemaent for the year and that 1o tha best of our knowledge and belief:
(i} these statemants do not contain any materially untrue statement or cmit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i} these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the company's code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for finangial reporting and that We have evaluated the effectiveness of
internal control systems of the company pertaining to nancial reporting and We have disclosed to the auditors and the Awdil Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which We are aware and the steps We have taken or proposs 1o take to
rectify these deficiencies.
We have indicated to'the auditors and the Audit committee

(i significant changes In internal control over financial reporiing during the year;

(i)  significant changes in aceounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed it the Rotes to the financial statements; and

{fil) instances of significant fraud of which Ve have bacome aware and the invalvemant therein, if any, of the management or an efnployee having a
significant rale in the: company's internat control system over finaricial reporting.

Ajay S Mittal Shyam Rathi
Chairman & Managing Director CFO & Compliance Officer
DIN: 00226355

Date: 9 July, 2014
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

T VERNANCE

To,

The Members

Arshiya Limited

402/403, Level 4, Ceejay House,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F Block,

Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Murnbai - 400018

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Arshiya Limited for the year ended 31* March, 2014 as
stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said company with the Stock Exchange.

The Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our- examination was imited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Govemance. It
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinlen on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, and according to the explanations given to us, we certify, that the Company has
complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentiored listing agreement.

We state that majority of the investor grievances were aitended within one month as per the records maintalned by the company.

Wa further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MANGQJ MIMANI
Company Secretaries
[ACS No.17083]

[CP No. 11601]

Place: Mumbal

Date: 31" May 2014
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FINANCIAL SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To.
The members of Arghiya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International Limited)
Report on the financlal statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arshiya Limited ("the company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March-31, 2014,
the Statement of Profit and Loss @nd Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The Financial Statements of the esrlier yéar were audited by the previous Auditors® whose report in respect of certain maiters has been approptiatety
considared by us.

Management's responsibility for the financlal statements

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performante and cash flows of the Company in-accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 {“the Act™) read with General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 Septernber 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Seclion
133 of the Companies Act; 2013, This responsibility includes. the design, implementation and maintenance of infernal control relevant to the preparation
.and presentation of the financial statemants that give a trus and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud er error.

Auditor's responsibiiity

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perfarm the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whather the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures.
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of mateyial misstatement of the financial statemants, whether due fo
fraud or smor, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal control relavant to the company's preparation and fair prasentation of the
financial statements in ordar to design sudit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances. An audit also includes evalsating the appropriateness
of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We balleve that thie audit evidence we have cbtained is-sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinlon;

We draw attantion to Note No. 48(ll), relating to remuneration paid/ provided lo ex-executive Director of the company; which has furned out to be in
excess of the kmits prascribed under section 198 read with Schedufe X fo the Companies Act, 1956 due o the reasons stgted in the nate and hence, it
is subject to the approvel of the Central government.

Qualitied Opinjon:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except forthe effect of the malier described in Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financiai statements give the infarmation required by the Act in the manner so. required and give a true gnd fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles-generally accepted in India;

{a} In the case of the Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of tha company as at March 31,2014;
(b} In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow statemsnt, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
1.  The Company continues to be under severe financial stress as reflected by:
{a) Approval of Corporate Debt Restructuring by Secured Lenders (Banks) (See Note No. 30}
(b) Unpaid Trade Creditors amounting to Rs. 604,351,466/~ (Note No. 10)
(¢) Unpaid employes duss amounting to Rs. 63,957,884/- (Note No. 10)
{d) Overdue foans from bank and other Parties aggregating to Rs. 1,857,615,073(including Interest accrued and due Rs.425,387,805).
(e) Unpaid Statutory dues of Rs, 172,756,457

2. No provigion for diminution in value of investments in subsidiaries having been made for the reascns as stated in Note No 3X(i)
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Other Matter
We draw attention to the Notes lo the Financiat Statemnents as follows:

1. Changes in the Accounting Policies as refarred to in Note No. 32 and Note No. 3I0{1} with a view to comply with the requirements of relevant
accounting standards / pronouncament of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of fridia as stated in the said Notes,

2. Note No 31(a) re: Fixed assets.

3. Note Na. 31(b)(iv) re: Capital wark-in-progress.

Our opinion i8 not qualified in respect of all these matters,

Report On Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, as amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment} Order, 2004 (“the
said Order”) issued by the Central Govemment of india in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companias Act, 1856, on the bagsis of
such checks of the baoks and records of the Company -as we considered necessary and appropriate, and according to the information and

explanations. given to us during the course of the audit, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
of the said Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have obtzined ail the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge and belisf were necessary for the purpose of our
audit; '

{(b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of
those books;

(c) the Balance Shaet, Statement of Frofit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement deait with by this Report are in agreement with the books: of
account;

id} except for the matler described in the Basis for Qualified Qpinion paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss, and Cash Flow Statoment compiy with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub- section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with Genaral Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs in respect of Section 133 of the
Cornpanies Act, 2013 and

(¢) On the basis of writien representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2014, and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
nona of the Directors is disqualified as on 31" March 2014, from being appointed as a director in terma of clause {9) of sub-section (1) of
section 274 of the Companias Act, 1956.

FOR M.A, PARIKH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG.NO.107556W

MUKUL PATEL
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIF NO, 32489
Place: Mumbal

Date; 8™ July, 2014
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The Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the members of Arshiya Limited on the accounts of the company for the year enced 3" March, 2014:

i (a) Purng the year, the Company has updated and reconciled i's jecords for the assets shifted and discarded from the lease premises
surrendered/vacated during the earfier year and has written off the differences between the assets as per the records and their physlcal existence.
The Company has maintained proper records giving detaits of class of assets, additions thereto, dates of put to use and depraciation provided with
amaunts thereof,

{b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

{c} The Fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a substantial part of the fixed assets of the Company and such
disposal has, in our opinion, not affécted the going concemn status of the Company.

il Considering the nature of its business the Company does not require to purchase inventory and hence, the provisions.of clause 4(ii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

fii. {&) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to compantes, firms or
other parties listed In the ragister maintained under Section 381 of the Companies Act, 1956. Consequently, the provisions of clauses 4 lil{b) to 4
Tii{d) of the Order are not applicable.

(b} According to information and explanations given 1o.us, the Company has-taken interest ftee unsecured loan from two parties cavered in the
reglster maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The year end balance of such loans is Rs.1,138,204,264/-and maxirmum
amouni outstanding during the year is Rs.1,375,332,377/-

(c) In our opinion, the ferms and conditions of the said Interest fre loan are prima facta not prejudicial to tha interest of the Gompany.

(@) In respect of the aforesaid lcans there are ne overdug amounts at tha year-end.

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, thera Is an adequata intenal cortrol procedure commensurate with the.
slze of the Company and nsture of #s business for the. purchase of Fixed Assets and sale of Services except In Gur view, there were certain
weaknesses in the internal control system with regard fo purchase and sale of services, which need to be corrected. Further, the activities carriad
on by the Company do not require purchase of inventery and sale of goods.

' $n our opinion and accerding to the information and exptanation given 1o us;

(a) the transactions made in pursuance of contracts or arrangerments that need 1o be entered In the register masrtained under Section-301 of the
Act have been so antered,

(b) the ransactions made in pursuance of such contracts/arangements exceeding value of Rupees five lakhs during the financlal year are of
special nature for which comparable prices ars not svailable, hence we are unable to comment on the reasonableness of the price or
otherwise of such transactions.

"3 The Company has not acceptad deposit from pubiic and hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provigions of Sectlon
584, 58AA, or any other relavant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 and rulas framed thergundéer are not applicable to the Company,

wil, In our opinicn, the intemnal audit function of the Company is caried out by a fim of Chartered Accountants and the interna audit system is
commansurate with the size and pature of it's business.

viil. We have broadly reviewed books of accounts maintained by the Cempany in respect of services rendered pursuanl to rulas mads by Gevernment
of India with regard to the maintenanca of cost racords as prescribed undar section 203(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are of the apinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed basic cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

i {a) The Company is genarally regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues, save and except, income tax deducted at source. The
amears of such oulstanding as of the year-end for a period of more than six months from lts due date of payment are Rs, 110,668,281/

{b) There are no disputed dues in respect of wealth tax, service tax, customs duty and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of
any disputes. Details of disputed dues of Income Tax ancd Value Added Tax which have not besn deposited are as under .

Name of the Nature of Dues Amount involved Period to which the Farum where the dispute Is
Statute {Rs) amount relates pending
Incorme Tax Act, Income Tax 485,003,705 | Assessment Year 2007-2008.| Commissioner of Income Tax
1861 to 2011-2042. (Appeal}
4,350,078 | Assessment Year 2008-2007 | Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
Walue Added Tax Maharashtra Value 2,051,279 | Assessment Year 2005-2006 | Deputy Commisaloner of
Added Tax Sales Tax - (Appeal)
x. The Company has accurnulated losses at tha end of the financial year. It has incurred cash losses during the year but it had not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year. )
XP. The Company hes defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and Financial Institution as under:
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f Uil SEE ¢ Py ] T I TR T
g el B SRR N - J DR - 7 IR i N p STRWTI, : __'._ g i e S 2 i i |
Upto 10 Days - 76,525,459 - 13,867,170
11-30 Days - 2,630,276 - -
31-80 Days -1 14,837,102 - 12,431,924
61-90 Days - 11,117,136 . 13,542,506
917-120 Days - 10,649,250 - 13 324,657
121-160 days - 20,979,765 - 245,600,098
Mors than 180 days 495,000,000 94,759,309 590,000,000 84,397,759
xii. According to the information and explanations glven 1o us, the company has not granted loans and advances on the basis.of security by
way of pledge of shares, debenfures and othsr securities.
xiit. The Company is not a chit fund or a nighi /mutual beneft fund/seciety. Hence, the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,
xiv, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing in or trading in securities,

shares, dabentures and other investments and hence, the provisions of clause 4(xiv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

X, tn our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the terms and conditions on which the company has given
guarantees for loans taken by subsidiares from Banks and Financlal Institutions are prima facle ot prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

i During the year, no term loans have been obtained by the Compeny and hence, the provisions of clause 4(xvl) of the Order are not
applicable 1o the Company.

xvil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given 1o us. and on an overall examination of the Balance Shest of the
Company, we raport that furkis raised during the year on short term basis have, prima facia, not been used for long term investmant.

Xvii. During the year company has allotied 5,250,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 at g premium of Rs. 143 per share upon conversion of 5,250,000
warrants lssued in the earlier year io the parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, The price at which thess
warrants have been converted into equity shares is not prima facie prejudicial t the interest of the company.

Xix: The Cempany has not issued any debentures during the year and also did not have any outstanding debentures as at the end of the
year. Hance, the provisions of clause 4 (xix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XX, The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 {xx) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.,

xxi. To the best of our knowledge and balief, and according to the-information and explanations given to us, and consilering the size ang
nature of the Company's operations, no fraud of materiat signficarce on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

For M. A. PARIKH & Co.
Chartered Accourntants
Firm Reg.No,107556W

Mukul Patsl
Partner
Membership No, 32488

Place: Mumbai
Date: 8™ July, 2014
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Arshiya Limlted (Formerly known as Arshlya International Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2014

Date: Sth Juby, 2014

{Amount in As)
Farlicuiate Notes | Asat | As@t
A%st March, 2014 | '31st March, 2013
I. Equity and Llabillitles
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share capital 3 15,42,58,044 12,37,68,944
{b) Raserves and surplus 4 5,45,75,53,656 5,37.84,55,988
{c) Money recelved against share warants 3(dy 27,45,00,000 83,60,87.500
5.86,67,12,600 6,33,83,02,432
2. Non-current liabilities
{a) Long-tarm borrowings 5 12.44,08,66,930 10,45,37,32,959
{b) Defarred tax liabilities (net) 6 - 15,68,71.859
{c) Other long-term liabilittes 7 4,09,53,062 1.05,54,930
(d) Long-tarm provisions g 60.78,850 1,03,79,328
12,45,78,98,882 10,63,15,39,076
3. Current liabllitles
{a) Shori-term borrowings 9 2,24.74,11,202 2,02,58,12,894
{b) Trade payatles 10 80.43.51,466 2.12.07,92,847
{¢) Other current liabilittes 10 3,47,45,73,.212 4,29,23,51,574
{d) Short-tarm provisions 11 34,58,00,018 6,22.91.393
6,67,22,35,808 8,50,12,48,708
Total 24,90,68,47,380 | 25,47,10,90,216
. Assets
1. Non-current agsets
{a) Fixed assels 12
{i) Tangible assets 10,24,21,69,975 6.64,60,30,031
{il} Intangible assets 15,69,78,84 13,83,20,488
{iily Capital work-in-progress 4.42.07,00,536 6,10,56,12,656
14,81,98,49,325 12,88,99,63,175
(b) Non-current investments 13 8,34,54,72,336 4,08,79,52,656
(c) Long-term loans and advances 14 77,04,38,783 3,60,73,47,252
{d) Other non-cument assets 15 61,33,151 21,18,04.407
9,12,25.44,270 8,80,71,04,315
2, Currant aasets
{&) Trade receivables 16 77,88,90,687 4,17,99,73,463
{b) Cash and bank balances 17 5,67,57,740 5,07,52,058
{c} Shott-term loans and advances 14 -21,86,35,990 34,51,29,874
{d} Other current assets- 16. 1,860,368 19,81,67.331
1,05,44,63,785 3.77,40,22,726
Total 24,99,68,47,380 25,47,10,90,218
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 0.40 Q
Sea accompanying notas o the finencial statements 1-53 i (0}
As par our report of even date
Far M. A, PARIKH & Co For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Directors of Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 107556W
Mukui Patel Ajay 8 Mitial Archana A Mittal
Pariner Chalrman & Managing irector Joint Managing Director
Meambershipg Number: 032489 DIN: 00226355 DIN: 00703208
Shyam Rathi
Chief Financial Officer
Place; Mumbai
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Arshlya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3

Particulars | | Noleg | You
l. Revenue .
1. Revenue from operations 18 3,01,69,57,500 7,01,16,05,879
2. Other income 19 14,85,28.050 23,16,99,991
Total Revenue 3,16,54,85,550 7,24,32,05,870
Il. Expenses
1. Cost of operations 20 2,52,65,05,500 4,96,62,17,581
2. Employee benefits expense 21 19,07,20.855 32,54,67,149
3. Finance costs 22 1.84,87,80,276 1.32,21,67,428
4. Depreciation and amortization expsnse 12 19,58,10,220 19,80,83,491
5. Other expenses 23 33.14,21,181 41.98,92,343
Total Expenses 5,09,32,38,032 7,23,28,27,992
lIl. (Loss) / Profit for the year before exceptional items and tax (1) (1,92,77.52,482) 1,08,77,878
V. Exceptional items (Net) 28 1,06,67,35,327 15,42,95,245
V. Prior Perlod Adjustment (81,36,333) -
VI, Loss for the year before tax {|Il-IV-V) {2,98,63,51,476) (14,39,17,367)
VIl. Tax expense
1. Short/(Excess) provision for prior year (Net) 44{ii) 14,72,88,511 (1,44,967)
2. Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability 41(ii) (15,68,71,858) (37,22,327)
VIl. (Loss) after tax (VI-VIN) (2,97,67,68,129) (14,00,50,073)
Eamings per share of par value Rs.2 each
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 47 {48.07) (2.33)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Sen accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-53

As per our report of even date

For M. A. PARIKH & Co For and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Directors of Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel Ajay 5 Mittal Archana A Mittal
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership Number:; 032489 DIN: 00226355 DIN: 00703208

Shyam Rathi

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbal
[rate: Oth July, 2014
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Arshiya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International Limited)

1

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31* March, 2014

{Amount in Rs)

Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss) before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization sxpense
Leasehold improvements written off
Gain /L.oss on sale of fixed assets (net}
MTM Loss writter off
Interast expense
Interest income
Ancillary borrowing costs written off
Unrealised Foreign Exchange {gain) /loss
Bad debts
Provision for diminution in value of inveéstment and doubtful loan
Reversal of provision for diminution in value of investment and doubtful loan

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for
Trade and other receivables
Trade Payables and other Liabilities
Cash generated from operatlons
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Sale of fixed assets
Advances received against land from subsidiaries Adjusted / refunded (net}
Investment in bank deposits having original maturity period of more than 3 months
Interest received

Net cash flow used in investing activitles

Cash flow from fihancing activities
Issue of Equity shares (inciuding Securities Premium}
Money Adjusted/received against share warrants
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (Net of Repayment)
Proceeds from short-term bomrowings (Net of Repayment)
Loan given o subsidiaries (Net}
Ancillary borrowing costs inctrred
Dividend paid
Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalerits (A+B+C)
QOpening cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents acquired pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation
Closing cash and cash equivalents

Add: Earmarked balances with banks

Closing cash and bank balances

(A}

(B)

(€)

(2.98,63,51,476)

19,58,10,220
1,11,47,526
{1,39,54,022)
3,93,08,598
1,79,67.03.765
(1,86,597)
21,46,02,226

58,37,24,187

(10,00,18,300)

{14,39,17,367)

19,90,83,491
5,42,76,945
2.84,072

1,27.24,43,378
(22,78,26,767)
3,45,22.686
{15,09,849)
4,08,328
10,00,18,300

(25,92,03,873)

1,83,10,12,587
{1,39,37,11,872)

1,28,77,83,217

(2,01,84,26,774)
1,43,69,55,677

17,80,96,842

70,63,12,120

(11,49.87,394)| 8,53 65,385 |
29,30,84,236 |  62,09,46,735
(17.12,10,180)| (2,24,45,75.777)
30,55,67,947 3,569,110
(44,07.95728)|  (5.34,56,549)
(56,33,151)|  2.74,94,998
3,34,043 | 32,31,40,108
(31,17,37,069)] (1,94,70,38,110)
76,12,50.000 |  44,22,50,000
(56,11,87,500)|  83,60,87,500
1,79,03,20,673 | 1,20,09,99,564

22,15,98,308
(36,64,26,673)

(1,81,98,96.203)

1,23,03,41,210
(1,64,57,49,794)
{1,64,95,800)
(9.57.23,316)
(80,96,21.945)

2,56,58,515 | 1,14,20,87.419
70,05,682 | (18,40,03,956)
4,85,13,730 22,84,62,004.
- 40,655,682
5,55,19,412 4,85,13,730
12,38,328 22,38,328 |
5,67,57,740 5,07,52,058
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Notes
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as st out in Accounting Standard 3 (AS 3) 'Cash Flow
Statements' as specified in Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

2 During the year, trade receivables of Rs.409,999,920 {«(Rs. Nil) and loans and advances to subsidiaries of Rs.2,867,519,760 {Rs.
1,341,948,316/9 have been converted into Investments in equity shares and they do not form part of above cash flow statement.

3 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necassary to confirm to cufrent years® classification,

As per our attached report-of even date

For M. A. PARIKH & Co For and on behalf of the Board of

Chartered Accountanis Directors of Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 107556W

Mukul Patel Ajay S Miftal Archana A Mittal
Partrier Chairman & Managing Director Jaint Managing Director
Membership Number: 032489 DIN: 00226355 DIN: 00703208

Shyam Rathi

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: 9th July, 2014
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Arshiya Limited (T%nmrly known ag Arshlya international Limited)

Notes formmg part of the Financial Statements oo

Asat

Particulars HstMarch, 2044 |  3ist uufh 2043
3. Share Capltal
Authorised
85,000,000 (85,000,000} equity sharas of Rs. 2/-each -17,00,00,000 17,00,03,000
llssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid
57,129,472 (61,879,472) equity shares of Rs.2 --each, fully paid up. 13,42,58.944 12,37 58 044

Total 13,42,58,944 12,37,58,944

{a) Reconclilation of shares outstandlng at the beginning and at the end (of the year

R : Asardist mwh 2014 Ay at 315t March, 201
Partieyisrs - RumiBer of Shates Arncunt (I Re). "Numbar of Shares A i RE}.
Belance at the haginning of the year 8,18,79 472 12,37,58,944 5,88,29.472 11,76,58,944
Issued during the year 52,50,000 1,05.00.000 30.50.000 £1,00,000
Balance at the end of the year 8,71,29,472 13,42,58,944 6,18,79472 12,37,58,944

{b) Terms and rights attached to equlty shares

The Company has one ciass of equity share having a par value of Rs.2 par share. Each holder of equity share Is entitied ic: ona vote par share. The
shareholders who held shares an the record date are entitled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval of the.
Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting. ’ '

In the evant of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be enfitied 1o receive remaining asseis of the Company, after distribution of
&ll preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the numbar of equity shares held by the sharsholders.

(t:} Datalls of shares heid by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the a regate shargs In the Company

hiaretioldef o .

_ _ __sharehglding
Archana Mittal 2,15,70,225 1, 9& 20,225 32.03%
Ajay S Mittal 65,00,000 30,50,000 4,93%

{d] Issue of convertible warrants

The Company has alloted 43,600,000 convertibla warranta at Rs. 145/- par warrant to promoters / promoters group on preferential basis pursuant o
a special resclution passed by the members of the Company at their extra ordinary general mesting, held on Dctober 18, 2012. Qut of the same,
52.50,000 & 30,50,000 ware converted {in the ratio of 1 share for 1 warrant} into equity shares of Rs. 2/- each at a premium of Rs, 143/- per share during
the financial yesr 2013-14 & 2012-13 respectively. Pending conversion of 5,300,000 warrants, amount recaived against these wartants of Rs.
274,900,000/~ (Rs. 836,087,500/-) is shown as "Money received against share warrants” in the financial statements. The preceeds from the issue of]
convertthle: wamants issued on preferential basis have been utilised for repayment of short-term borrowings and working capital requirements of the

Company.
{Amount In Rs)

Purticulary. , _ 31st March, 2014
4. Reserves and Surplus
Securifies Premium
Saiance as @t the beginning of the year 5,42,05,68,085 4,50,01,27,085
Add : On issue of Equity Shares 75,07.50,000 43,61,50,000

Pursuant to Scheme of Amaigamation - 45,4291 000
Balance at the end of the year 8,17,13,18,085 5420568085
Amalgamation Reserve *
Balance as at the baginning and end of the year 1,24,80,000 1,24,80,000
Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at the beglnning of the year - .
Add : On revaluation of land [Refer Note no. 12 (c}] 2,28,65,56,239 .
Balance &t the end of the year 2,29,05,56,239 -
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account [Refer note 35(i)]
Balance as al the beginning of tha year {85,59,558} {85.59,558}
Less: Written off during the year 85,509,558 -
Balance at the.end of the year - {85,59,558)
Ganoral Resarve
Balance as at the beginning af the year 9,40,17.534 12,83,43,158
Add : Pursusant to Scheme of Amaigamation - £3,43,25,624)|
Balance at the end of the year 9,40,17,534 5,40,17,524
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LSurplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Batance a3 at the baginning of the year {14,00,50,073) 76,46,06,207
Add : Pursuant to Schere of Amalgamation - {29,44,31,821)
Adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation - (47,01,74,376)
{Loss) for the year {2,97 67,68 129) {14,00.50,073}
|Batance at the nd of the year {2,11,86,18,202) {14,00,50,073)
Total 5,45,75,53,656 §,37,84,55,988
“ As per the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile BDP (India) Private Limited with the Company|
approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature gt Bombay in earfier years, Amalgametion Reserve
is free for all purposes.
{Amount In Rs)
_Qumbnt:,.
Asat —— e T

[Pariicuia _ 3
$. Long-term borrowings
Secured
Term loan from (Refer Note no. 20)
- Banks (Refer Note (a) below)
- Yarm Loan 10.01,51,00,0685 935,22, 77,101 9,73,62,702 77,59,87,585
- Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) 1,65,81,43,561 - 9,84,00,000 -
- Other parties (Refer Note (b) below) 76,66,66,667 1,10,00,00,000 1,34,00,00,004 95,66,66 668
Vehicte loan from bank 9.47.637 12,489,065 301,427 270,553
Finance lease obligations - 2,06,793 206793 1,80.505
12,44,038,66,930 10,45,37,32,959 1,53,63,01,013 1,73,31,14,311
Amcunt disclosed under the head "other current
liabllities - - {1,63,63,01,013} {1,73,31,14,311)
Total: 12,44,08,66,830 10,45,37,32,95% " .

{a} Term loan from banks
t) Securias provided

praposad to halved off into & subsidiarias.

{v) Repayment Schadule of Secured Loans /s as follows -

- First charge on all the present end future movabie and immovable fixed assats including
excluding project assets for Khuda FTWZ project, Khura Digtripark Projec, Nagpur

- Second chargs on Current Assets of the Company but exciudin
and Rslf Project which have been haived off or praposed to halved off into a subsidiarigs,

{ii) The above loans are secured by Joint and several irevocable personel guarantess of twa Fromoter Directors of the Company.

{iii) Fusther the knans are secured by shares pledged by the Promoter Diretor,

{iv) Rate of Interest . - on Bank loan Interest §12% p.a. upto March 2016 and thereafter 13% p.a.

intangible agsats, assignmant of rights and benefits bt
oject assets and Rail Project which have been haived off or

g current assots for Khurja FYWZ project, Khurja Distsipark. Project, Nagpur project assets

afler 1 year from the date of disbursement. During the p
recalled the above loan and the said loan is overdus since

3 March, 2013

¢ Yoar “Form Loyt -
2014-2015 $.73.92,792
2015-2018 26,04,50.000 9,84,24,000
20162017 47,83,50.000 24,60,80,000
20172018 1.01,51,50,000 24,60,60,000
2018-2019 83,07.00,000 49,21,20,000
2019-2020 1,02,58,50.000 49,21,20,000
2020-2021 1,85,09,00,000 8,33,69.%61
2021-2022- 1,07,59,50,000 -
2022-2023 1.23,35,25,000 -
2023-2024 1,02,06,00,000 -
2024-2025 1,02,08,00.000 -
2026-2026 1,00,30,34 065 -
Total 10,11.25,01,857 1,75,65.43 561
{b) Term Loan from other parties

i. Ra 690,000,000/~ (Rs 690,000,000/} is secured by first charge on land belorging to company sliuated at Village Butiborl at Negpur, Maharashtra. The
above foan cames interest @ 15.25% p.a. and penal interest of 4% p.n. Out of the above; Rs 390,000,000/~
end of 3 years from the date of disbursement i.e, Gotober 13, 2011 or on exercise of puticall option after 1
LI:mlamr.:e Rs 300,000,000/ In single installmant at the end of 3.

is repayable in a singls installment at the
year from the date of disbursemant ang
yaars from the date of disbursemant i.e. January 02, 2012 or on exercise of putfcall option
revious year, as per the tarms of sanction letter the lendar has excercised call option and
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Iii. Rs. 266,887 668/ {Rs. 2%?637,868!—) is secured by first and exclusive charge by way of mongage of Company's land at Khurja near Delhi. The above
loan carmies interest of 15% p.a. plus penat interest of 2% p.a. Out of the above, Rs. 80,000,000/~ is repayable in six equal monthly instaliments pftera
mioratorium pericd of 6 months from the date of disbursement i.e. July 21, 2011 and balance in twelve aqual monthly instaliments starting from thirteanth
month from the date of disbursement. During the year 2012-13, the Company had defavited In making payment of four Instaliments aggregating 1o Rs.
106,666,668/-. Consequently In the year 2012.13, pursuant to the facility agreement the lender has recalied the balance outstanding ameunt of Rs.
160,001,000/~ and the said loan is overdue since 9th February, 2013,
iii. Loan of Rs. 1,150,000,000/- is secured by :
- Extlusive charge on afl recsivables and cash flow of the company, as limited to Panvel FTWZ business.
- Campotate Guarantee of Arshiya Supply Chain Manegement Private Limited for the fecliity extended to the company.
- Personal Guarantee of Promoters of Holding Company L.e. Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs. Archana Mittal.
- Pledge of minimurm 49% sharehokding of Arshiya Northen FTWZ Limited and second charge on all Assets of Arshiya Northem
FTWZ Limited,
iv. Tenn Loan carries intarast rate of 15.50%, On non compliance of sanction terms within the stipulated pericd, 2% penal
interest Is payabla.
v. Yeahicle loan and finance lease obligaticns are secured by way of hypothscation of vehicles.
{c) Perlod and amounts of continuing defaults In repayment of long-term borrowings and interest (overdua) az at
March 31, 2014 are as under ;
{Amount In Rs.
{Lendar{ poriod of delays. T Principal] “Total
Bank
0-60 days - 2,83,50,538 2.83,50,536
61-120 days - 15.24.319 15,21,319
121-180 days - 5,53,746 553,748
More than 180 Days - 15,913,789 15,913,799
Cther parties
0-60 days - 3.55,34,881 3,55.34,881
61120 days - 3.47.57 457 347,57 467
121-180 days . 3,32.94,874 3,32,04,874
Moze than 180 Days 95,66,66,668 13,07.03.724 1,08,73,70,392
Total| 85,66,80,000 28,62,30,346 1,19,09,57 614
{Amount In Rg )
An at ' Asat
[Particulsrs: 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 -
6. Deforred Tax Liabllitles (net} [Refer Note no, 41(iil)]
Deferred tax Habiilties
Fiscal allowance on fixed pssels - 25.,68,42 462
Tatal (A) - 25,68,42,462
Deferred Tax Assets
Flscal loss carried forward # - 9,74,83,996
Foreign cusrency monetary iranstation difference account - {29.09,254)
Provision for doubtful dabts - 12,38.082
(Orther iming differences - 41,57,918
Total {B) . 9,99,70,603
# includes Re.9,342,354/- pursuant 1o Scheme of Amalgamation
Deferred tax liabilitles (net} (A-B) Total - 15,68,71,859
7. Gther long-erm labillitles
Security Deposlis from Unit Holders )
- Subsidiary 20,00,000 20,00,000
- Dthars B9,53,082 B5,54,930
Total 1,08,53,062 1,05,54,930
8. Long-erm provisions
Employee benefits 60,78,800 1,03,79,328
Total| 60,78,890 1,08,79,328
2. Shortterm borrowings
Secured
- Short term loan from bank {Refer Note (a) below) 4%,50,00,000 49,50,00,000
- Warking capital loan from banks (Refar Note {b) below) 60,17,06,938 58,88,65.679
Ungecured
= Lean from Directors 1,13,82,04,284 81,43,44,104
- Inter-covporate deposits 1,25,00,000 12,76,03,111
Total 2,24,74,11,202 2,02,58,12,804
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{a} Short term loan from bank :
(1) Securities provided : )
- Second charge on pari-passu basis on entire movable snd immovable fixed assety of the company
- Personal guarantes of two [Hrectors of the Company,
{ii} Tha above loans are secured by piedge of share of the company held by the ona of the Director,
(i} Rate of Interest on sald loan @ 14.10% p.s. and Penal interast 2% p.g.
{h} Working capltal loan from banks
{) Securilies provided :
- First charga on antire Current Assets of the Company biut exctuding current assets for Khurja FTWZ project, Khurja Distripark Project, Nagpur project
assels and Rail Project which have been haived off or praposed o haived off into & subsidiarias.
- Second charge on afl tha present and {uture movable and immovable fixed azsets, assignment of rights and benefits but exciuding project asseis for
Khurja FTWZ project, Khurje Distripark Project, Nagpur project assets and Rail Projact which have bean haived off or proposed to be hived off into
subskdiasias,
(i) The above loans are secured by Joint and several imevocable personal guarantes of jwo Promater Directors of tha ‘Company,
(iii} Furthar the ioan is sacured by shares pladges by the Promolar Directors.
{iv) Rate of Intarest : - on Bank loan interest @ 12% p.a. upte March 2016 and thereaftar 13% pa.
{c} Period and amicunt of continuing default in repaymant of shor-terin borrowings and interest (overdue} ss at March 31, 2014 are as undsr :
' {Amount In Rg.
onthy . . P ‘Pringipal| - great] U1 T 'ﬁ__ﬁ[
1. Banks -
O-60 days - 211,517,571 2,11,57,5M
61-120 days - 2,14,84,518 2,14,84,818
121-180 days - 2,04.26,019 2,04,26,01%
Mora than 180 Days 49,50,00,000 9,32,45.510 5B,82,45,510
2. Inter Corporate deposlits
0-60 days - 343453 3,43,493
61-120.days - 3,568,630 3,58,630
121-180-days - 5,34,452. 5,34,452
More than 180 Days 1,25,00,000 16,068,968 1,41,06,966|
"~ Total 50,75,00,00 15,01,57,459 68,86,57 450
{d) Loans from directors are without interest.
{Amount in Rg.}
Ag at As at
Particulars 313t March, 2014 31st March, 2013
10. Other current llabilitles
Trade payables (Refer Note no. 26,27 .37 & 39) fa) 60,43.51,466 212,07 92,847
Other linbilities
Current maturities of long-term borowings - Banks (Refer note 5) 19,80,94,220 1,73,29,55680
Current maturities of long-tarm borrowings - Others (Rafer note 5) 1,24,00,00,001 -
Current maturities of finance leass obligations (Refer note 5) 2,086,793 1.58,631
Interest agcrued and due on Borrowings 42.53,87,805 44,85.80,332
Unelaimed dividend 11,885,870 11.89.870
Advance recelved from subsidiaries against land (Refer Note no. 49) 92,16,19,406 1,36,24,15,134
Employees Dues 6,39,57,984 6,31,27,134
Staivtory dues 17.27.56.457 20,67,08,389
Trade advances received 4597,512 52,48,777
Interest on Delayed payment of Statutery Dues 432,091,502 1,67.55,856
Graditors for (Refer Note no. 26, 27 & 39)
- Capital expénditure 23,94,94.962 37.2242.242
- Expenses 8.59,76,700 8,30,69,628
{b) 3,47,45,73,212 4,20,23,51,574
Total (a+h) 4,07,89,24,678 6,41,31,44,421
1. Short-term provisions
Employee benefits 87 .42 605 142,682,874
Mark fo market on derivative contracts [Refer Nota No. 354i)] - 33,91,57,413 4,80,08,519
Total 34,59,00,018 §,22.91,393
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T Asat A%t
_.31st March, 2014 st Maich; 2013
12. Non-current investments {Refar Note no, 33)
Valued at Cost unless otherwise stated
hs subsidiary companies - (Trade - unquoted)
300,000 {300,000 Equity shares of Arshiya Hong Kong Limited of USD 1 each 5,32,50,000 5,32,50,000
2,500,000 {2,500,000) Equity shares of Cyberleg Technologies Intermational Pte. Limited 6,95,00,000 6,05,00,000
of SGD 0.10 sach .
100,006 {160,000) Equity shares of Arshiya International Singapore Pte Limited of SGD 1 each 34,31,000 34,31,00¢
3,308,333 {1.600.000) Equity shares of Arshiya Supply Chain Management Privata Limited of Rs 10
each. 42,59,99,920 1,60,00,000
13,586,659 (56,04,976) Equity shares of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited of Rs 10 each * 2.20,56,15,066 96,01,94.318
@
1,10.50.000 {1.,10.50,000) Equity shares of Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully @ 11,05,00,000 11,05,00,000
38,732,491 (30,350,000) Equity shares of Arshiya Rail Infrastructura Limited of Rs 10 each 2,34,15,98,560 1,00,04,00,000
95,50,626 {79,46,624) Equity shares of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited of Rs 16 each * @ 3,14.44,77,700 2,78,35,77,340
50,000 (60.000) Equity shares of Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited of Rs 10 eath 5,00,000 5,00,000
10,000 (10,000 ) Equity shares of Arshiva Technologies {India} Private Limited of Rs 10 each 1,00,000 1,00,000
Total 8,34,59,72,336 4,98,84,52 656
Less :
Provision for diminution in the value of Investmant [Refar note 334ii)] - 5,00,000
8,34,59,72,336 4,98,79,52,656
{All the above equity shares are fully pald up)
Aggregata book value of unquotad investments 8,34,50,72,336 4,98,64,52,855
|Provision for diminution in the valug of Investment 5,00,000

Hub Limited with Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited

The respective Board of Directors have approved the Sch

eme of Amalgamation of Arshiya Northern F

TWZ Limited and Arshiya Indusinial & Distibution
- The equity sharehciders of the respectiveé companies have also approved the said Scheme of]
Amalgamation. The Schems has been filed with the Hon'bls High Court of Bombay on 27th March, 2014 and is pending for approval,

@ Includes i) 7,046,624 (7.046,624) oquity shares In Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limnited, §i
Distribution Hub Limited and fii) 19,978,500 {19.978,500) squity sharas of Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited jv) 11,049,400 {Nif; equity sharesin Arghiya
Central FTWZ Limited which are pledged with the lendars for leans granted to subsidiaries.

) 5,105,769 {5,105,769) equity shares of Arshiya Industriai &

{Amount in Re.}

Non-current Current
As ot As at . Asat Agat
Partictilarg 31st March, 2014 J1at March, 2013, 31st March; 2014 318t March, 2013
14. Loans and advances (Refer Note no, )
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
- Considered Doubtful 1,48,06,800 - - -
- Considered Good 15,00,00.000 37.35,04,473 - -
16.46,06,800 37.35,04473 - -
Less: Pravision for doubthul capital advance (1.46,06,800) - - -
16,00,00,000 37.35,04,473 v -
|eposits 44,856,000 $:33,04,856 . 9,55,200
Loans and Advances to subsidiaries (Refer Note No 43,87.47,370 2,95,98,40,457 - 1,03,17,130
45)
Less: Prevision for doubiful advance (Refer Note No
34) - {9,95,18,300) - -
45,87 47,370 2,86,03,22,157 - 1,03,17.130
Share application money - subsidiary - 8.00,00,000 - -
Others
Advance recoverable in cash of kind . - 1,59,91,720 8,36,24,795
IBalances with govemment autharities _
- Diract tax {net of provisions} 16,56,59,404 15,70,85,081 - -
- MAT Credit Entilement - 4,04,58,808 - -
- Indirect taxes (Refer Note no. 40) - - 20,11,53,752 24,01,80.492
Prepaid sxpenses 15,66,009 26,71,897 14,890,518 86,34,037
Staff advances - - - - 1347320
Total 77,04,38,783 _3,80,73,47,252 21,86,35,990 34,51,29,874
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_ {Amount in Ra.}

Non-current [+ t _
As ot As-at Ag 2t Asat
Particulars 31t March, 2014 34st March, 2013 31st:March, 2014 31st March, 2013
15, Other agaatis
Jlnterest recelvable {Unsecured Considered good)
- Subskdiaries - - - 15,69,77.507
- Fixed deposits . 3,750 4,37,996 285442
- Banks 22,372 -
Unamortized ancillary borrowing costs (Refar Note
No, 32} - 21,13,00,857 - 4,00,04,382
Margin -money deposits with banks having original
maturity period of morg than 12 months 61,33,151 5,00,000 - -
{Rafer note 17 ) _
Total 61,33,151 21,18,04,407 1,60,368 19,81,687,331
{Amount in Rg.}
) As at Asxat
Particulars. _ 31st March, 2014 Aat Maieh, 2013
18. Trade recelvables (Refer Note ne. 27 & 39}
{unsecured considered good, unfess otherwise stated)
Debts putstanding for a period exceeding six months
-Congidered good 169,741,502 45,59,14,302
-Considered doubtful - 36,42,490
1,60,11,502 45,95,56,792
Less: Provigion for doubtful debts - 36,42,490
1,69,71,502 45,59,14,302
Other debts 76,19,28,184 2,72,40,59.181
Total 77,88,99,687 3,17,99,73,463
{Amount In Rs)
Non-current Currant
As at Agat Awm at Asg.at
Particulars 31st March, 20114 31st March, 2013 1=t March, 2014 318t March, 2013
17. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts - - 5.53.88,177 3,68.17.548
Cagh an hand - - 1,31,235 43,79.608
Remittances in transit . - - 73,16,574
- . §,55,19.412 4.85,13,730
Other bank balances
Balances with bank in unclaimed dividend accounts - . 12,38,328 12,368,328
Margin money deposits with banks having original
maturity petiod of more than 12 months 61,33,161 5,060,000 - 10,00.000
61,33,151 5,00,000 12,38,328 22,38,328
Less: Distlosed under other non-currént assets 81,33,151 5,00,000 - -
. - 5,67,57,740 5,07,52,058
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Arshiya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International Limited)
Notes forming part of the financlal statéments
18. Revenue from operations
Revenue from
- Logistic operations 2,57,95,08,876 | 5,73,58,15,706
- Frea Trade Warehousing operations’ 43.41,06,607 1,27.38,93,071
Other aperating revenue - export henefits 33,42,017 17.97,102
Total] 3,01,69,57,560 [ 7.01,15,05,879
19, Other Income
Intarest income from
- Subsidiaries {Refer Nots no. 36) - 220751518
- Banks 1.86,597 70.75,249
Exchange difference {Net) 2,05,87.821 37,609,628
Sundry balanes written back. (iNet) 10,15,78,589 -
Excess provision no longer required writien back 89,38,606 -
Miscellanebus Income 1,72,56, 437 1,03,597
Total|  14,85,28,050 23,16,99,991
20. Cost of operations
Logistic operations 2,49,64,52,722 | 4,93,78,66,942
|Free Trade Warehousing operations | 3,00,52 778 2,83,50,639
Totall 2,53,65,05,500 | 4,98,62,1 7,581
21. Employse benefits expensa (Refer Nota no. 48)
Salary, bonus and other aflowances 18,07.31,262 30,09,41,778
Contribution to provident and other funds 30,85,513 7149443
Stafl welfare expanses 68,94, 080 1.73,75,929
Total]  18,07,20,855 32,54,67,14%
22, Finance costs
Interest expense
- Borrowings 1,79,67,03,765 1.25.34,98,740
- Interest on Delayed payment of TDS 3.08.32,754 1,89.44 638
Other borrowing costs 2,12,43,727 4.97.24,050.
Totall 1,84,87,80,276 | 1,32,21,67,428
23. Other expenses
|Rent 6,66,67.487 10,28,42,985
Rates and taxés 62,53.274 1,96,60,233
Insurance 53,49,319 ‘27,09,985
Electricity charges 1,40,08,436 3,02,86.411
IRepairs and maintenance
- Buitding 37.,33,787 88,24,372
- Others 1,26,37,665 2,76.,60,588
Communication expenses 67,45,358 1,38.07.,393
Travelling and conveyance expenses 25145725 3.64,42,121
Vehicle expenses 67,17,420 1,44,70,578
Printing and stationery 26,558,435 47.54,368
Legal and professional fees 8,31,08,044 4.41,00,754
Security charges 2,51,52,869 3,10,48,247
Auditor's remuneration®
- Statutory audit fees 35,44,729 50,56,920
- Other Services 6,00,000 -
- Cenrtification feas 87,978 2,69,080
- Reimbursement of expenses - 82,579
Advertisement and business promotion expensas 77,684,438 1,35,86,513
Provision for Doubtful advance 1,46,06,800 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) - 2.84,072
Miscellaneous expenses 466,58 417 6.57,17,134
Totall 33,14 21,181 41,98,92,343

* Inctudes Rs, 2,312,707/ (Previous year 5,408,570/-) fees paid to pravious Auditor,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Contingent Liabllitles not pravided for In respect of:
{Amount in Rs.}
2:;‘ Particulars 2014 2013
| (i) Disputed income tax demands 197,610,994 122,197,838
{li} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 513,460,331 167.741.290
{iii} Guarantess/ Letters of credit issued by banks (net of liabilitles provided) Nil 4,494,004
{Iv} Guarantees given on behalf of subsidiaries Loans and other borrowings, 17,843,518.332 15,281,519,332
Cutstanding balances (including interest accrued and due} against such
guarantees is Rs. 13,579,511,639/-
{P.Y.- Rs 12,613,786,374/-)
' 25. Capltal and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exscuted on capital and other account and not provided for (et of advances paid) is
Rs.79,000/- (Rs 987,560,295},
26. MSMED Act - Creditors
The Company has not received any Intimation from “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosures, if any, refating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest payabie as
required under the said Act have not been given, This has been relied upon by the auditors.
27. (i) Management's Opinlon — Current Assets and Liabllitles

In the opinion of the management, cumrent assets, loans and advances and current liabilities are approximately of the value stated, if
realised / paid in the ordinary course of business, Provision for all known liabilities is adequate and is not in excess of amounts
considered reasonably necessary.

Confirmations

The company has sent confirmation letters for confirming the balances as on March 31, 2014 of trade receivables, trade payables,
advances and loans/credit facilities frorm banks/financial institutions. However, certain trade receivables, trade payables and advances
are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. The differences, if any, will be adjusted on final reconciliation/determination.

(i)

28. Details of Exceptional items (net) are as under:

{Amount in Rs.}
2014 2013
a) | Waiver of interest {See Note No. 30) {30,459 002 -
b} | Mark to Market Losses written off (See Note No. 35} 370,982,477 -
¢} | Ancillary borrowing costs written off (See Note No. 32} 214,602,226 -
d} | Leasehold improvements written off 11,147,526 54,276,945
8} | Profit on sale of Assets (net) {13,954,022} -
T} | Reversal of Pravisions for {In respect of its wholly owned subsldiaries)
- Diminution in the value of investments in equity shares (See Note No. 33(ii}. {500,000} 500,000
- Loan giver considered doubtful {See Note No. 34} 99,518,300} 99.518,300
g) | Write back of Managerial Remuneration (See Nots No. 48) (34,075,827) -
h) | Bad Debts Written Off 583,734,187 -
i} Professlonal Fees for Corporate Debt Restructuring 64,776,062
Total 1,066,735,327 154,295,245

Note : Figures in brackets denote items of income nature

29, Revival Plans

_The management of the Company is in the process of restructuring its. business operations as also those of its subsidiarigs in which it has

substantial investments, by —

-

L]

L]

expanding the business volumes,

converting Free Trade Warehousing Zone into Sector Specific Special Economic Zones,
gstablishing an Infand Containar Depot,

tying up the requisite funds for the said purposes.

The above steps shall enable the management to improve Company's Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near future.

30. Corporate Debt Restructuring {(CDR)

During the year, Secured Lenders (Banks) have approved the restruciuring package under “Corporate Debt Restructuring Package”

(CDR), which inter-elia provides for:
@

Reschedulement of the Principal amounts of the loans and dates tharecf.
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{il) Funding of unpaid interest on the Term Loans due from October 2012 1o Octobar 2014 into Funded Interest Term Loans.

(i) Waiver of all liquidated damages/penal charges/penal interest/excess Intarest i.e. in excess of documented rate of all the facilities
from the cut-off date i.e. 1* October, 2012 1ill the commencement of the package.

{b) Secured Lenders hava a right to recompense.

{-] The CDR as aforesaid has been recognized in the Accounts for the year ended 31™ March, 2014 whereby —

()] Balance standing t¢ the oredit of interest accrued and due on loans (net of waiver) as of 31" March, 2013 and interest for the year

aggregating to Rs. 175.85 crores have bean transferred to Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL).

(i) Interest on Secured Loans of Rs, 3.05 crores waived by the Secured Lenders (Banks) has been disclosed in the Statement of

Profit & Loss as “Exceptional ltem”,

{d) Financial impagt; if any, in the rights of Secured Lenders {Banks) to recompanse shall be accounted upon cryswliizatt'on of such rights.

31. Capital Expenditure :
{a)  Fixed Assets ;

In view of revival plans of the Company as refarred to in Note 29, in the opinion of the management, the carrying value of the
Fixed Assets of the Company are not lower than their recoverable amounts and hence, no provision for Impairment of Fiked

Assefs is called for.

(b} Capital work-In-progress as at the year-end of Rs. 4,420,700,536 /- includes

(i)  Bomowing cost (net) capitalized or transferred to capital work-in-progress Rs, NIL {Previous year Rs. 565,205,200}

{ii} Pre-operative expenses of Rs, 1,313,245060/ (Previous Year — Rs. 1,313,245,060/-).
capitalized/transferred to Cagital Work-in-Progress includes:-

Details of Pre-gperative expenses

{Amount In Rg )
2014 2013
Expenditure up to previous year 1,313,245,060 608,125,676
Employee bensfits expense - 245,036,139
Electriclty charges - 3,002,434
Rent - 35,885,511
Rates and taxes - 8,156.278
Recruitment expenses - -
Travelling and conveyance expenses - 8,652,710
Vehicle expenses - 7516273
Legal and professional fees - 19,315,816
Miscellaneous expenses - 9,687,351
Security charges - 522,317
Other financial charges - 12,123,322
interest expense - 553,390,865
Miscellaneous income - (1,807,043)
Interest on fixed deposits - {308,987)
Depreciation/Amartization expense - 10,486,396
Total 1,313,245,060 1,519,875,058
Less : Expenses allocated to Subsidiaries - -
Less : Amount allocated to fixed assets capitalized during the year - 206,629,998
Balance carrled to Balance Sheet 1,313,245,060 1,313,245,060
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(i)  The Company has discontinued its earier practice of charging borrowing costs as attributable to Projects and pre-operatlve expensas
incurred in connection therewith as was done in the earlier years on account of its decision to putting on hold of the incurrence of
expanditure in relation to the project work in prograss/projects.

(iv)  During the year, the Company has put on hold further capital expanditure and incurrence of other expenses in connection therewith due
to non-optimum utilization of the existing capacity as also non-availability of funds for incuming the balance expenditure. The
managemant expects that in near future, the campany shall be able to tie up business agreements as also the required funds which wiil
enable it to complete the Project Work- in- Progress.

32. Unamortised Expenditure

Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangament of borrowings were amortized over the tenure of borrowings till previcus year.
This year, the Company has written off Rs. 252,205,039/~ in respect of the same to the Statement of Profit and Loss as the sald costs are
“period costs”. If the Company had continued its earier practice, the charge for the current year in respect of the same would have been
lower by Rs. 214,602,226/- and the Joss for the year lower by Rs. 214,802,226/,

33. Investments

(i} The Company holds strategic and long term investments in its subsidiary companies, the aggregate cost of which is Rs, 834.60 crores as
on 31" March, 2014. The present “net asset value” of the said investments are lower than their costs of acquisition. However, keeping in
vigw that the said investments are long-term and stratagic in nature as also tha said subsidiartes are In the process of implementing their
respective Revival Plana alongwith the future business plans of the Company, the Management is of the view that the diminution in value
of its investments is temporary in nature and no provision for diminution in value is called for,

{ii} The Company has reversed the provision of Rs.5,00,000/-, made in earlier year for fall in the value of its investments in Arshiya Transport
and Handling Limited in view of the Revival Plans of the irvestee company as also proposed scheme of amalgamation of that company
with two other fellow subsidiaries viz. Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited.

(i} During the year, the Company has been allotied equity shares against Loans & Advances and book debts due to it by its subsidiaries as

under ;
Name of Subsidiary Loans & No. of Equity | Face value per | Premium per Total Amount
Advances/Book Shares share {Rs.) share (Rs.) {Rs.)
Debts
Arshiya Northérn FTWZ Leans & Advances 1,604,002 10 215 360,900,450
Limited
Arshiya Industrial & Loans & Advances 4,981,683 10 240 1,245,420,750
Disgtribution Hub Limited
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Loans & Advances 8,382,491 10 1507 1,341,198,560
Limited
Arshiyva Supply Chain Book Debts 1,708,333 10 230 409,999,920
Management Private Limited

{a) In the case of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited, Arhsiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, the
Company has been allotted equity shares in terms of the Corporate Debt Restructuring Scheme approved by the Secured Lenders
{Banks).

(b) The Share Premium pald by the Company is based on the share valuation repoits obtained by the respective subsidiaries.

34. Provision for Loan
The Company has revarsed. the provision made for doubtful recovery of loan of Rs. 9.95 Crores granted to its subsidiary, Arshiya Transport
and Mandling Limiled, made in the earlier year as the management expects to recover the same in near futuré In view of its revival plans and
its proposed amalgamation with the fellow subsidiaries Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited and Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited.

35. Mark to Market Losses )
(I} This year, the Company has changed its accounting policy of capitalising / deferring its Reserve for Mark to Market Losses (MTM) on its
derivatives (for conversion of rupee loan liability into foreign loan) as done hersto before following -announcemant by the Institute of
Chartared Accountants of India on “Accounting for Derivatives™ by charging MTM losses relating to earlier years in the Staterent of
Profit & Loss, Due to the said change, an amount of Rs. 393.08 lacs from tangible-assets. (net of depreciation) and Rs.85.60 Lacs from
Foraign Currency Translation Reserve Account have been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year, which have been
shown as "Exceptional [tem”.
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38.

3.

34.

39.

1.
m

(I} Further, during the year, an amount of Rs. 3.231.14 lacs in respect of MTM losses upon determination of fair market vailue of derivatlves
entered into by the Company has besn charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company is of the visw that MTM loss has to
be worked out taking intc.account the spot exchange rate(s) on the repoiting date as it is committed to continue derivative contracts {if
their maturity and hence, applying the fair market vatugs presuming that the derivative contracts would be cancelled on the raporting
datg, shall not reflect the correct financial position. However, the Banks who have entered into derivative contracts with the Company
have, intimated that the loss on account of MTM is Rs. 7,088.73 lacs as upto 31st March, 2014 as against the amount of Rs. 3,391.57
lacs determined as per the Company’s view,

(i} If the Company had continued 1o follow the policy of deferring the write off of MTM losses, the charge for the year would have baen
lower by Rs. 3,134.32 lacs,

Intorest from Subsidiarigs

In the sarlier year, tha Company charged Interast amounting to Rs. 220,751,518/ in respact of loans given to its subsidiary companies. In the
current year, in view of management's decision to treat such loans as "quasi equity” in terms. of the requirements of the Corporate Debts
Restructuring Scheme sanctioned by the Secured Lenders {Banks} no interest has been charged io its subsidiaries in respect of said loans.
Such Interest chargeable to the subsidiaries for the current year has niot been ascertained.

Proceedings against Company

Certain lenders and creditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other tegal proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to them which
are at different stages before the respective Judicial forums / authorities. Claims by the said lenders and creditors have been contasted by the
Company in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimate the financial Implications of such
claims.

Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Domestic Distripark Limited

The Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Domestic Distripark Limited with the Company becama affective from 4%
January, 2013. The entire undertaking of the transferar companies including all assets, liabilities and reserves vested in the Company on the
appointed dated, i.8.1% April, 2012 for which necessary impact had been given in the accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2013. However,
certain assets belenging to the amalgamating companies have yet not been transferred in the name of the Company.

Logistic Operations

The Company has decided to phase out its logistics operations. In the wake of said decision, the Company assigned certain qutstanding book
debts eggregating to Rs. 262.66 crares and certain outstanding trade payables aggregating to Rs. 262.12 crores in respect of its logistics
operations for the pariod upte Decamber 31,2013,

Buch bock debts and trade payables aggregating to Rs. 57.2 crores and Rs. 57.06 crores respactively in respact of its logistics operations
cutstanding as on 31st March, 2014 have been assigned on 30th June, 2074 which shall be accounted in the subsequent year.

Mzharashtra VAT Refund Receivable

As per the notification dated 16th May, 2013, issued by the government of Maharashtra, MVAT exemption/refund is available to SEZ
Developer after 15th October, 2011, {Record date). However, the Company has claimed refund of Rs. 17.43 ¢rores In respect of transactions
prior to record date. The Company is of the view that the state governmant has exempted it from local taxes, levies and duties on goods
required for authorized operations by a Developer vide GR daled 12" October, 2001 passed by Industries, Energy and Lebour Department,
Govemiment of Maharashtra, Accordingly, these financial statements reflect a sum of Rs.17.43 crores as refund recelvable on account of
Maharashira VAT. In case the refund is not granted, the necessary adjustment entries shall be recorded in the year in which finality is reached.

Taxation

In view of loss for the year as calculated as per the provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961 (The “Act"), no provision for taxation has been
mada.

{ii) Short/Excess) provision foi prior year (net} Rs. 14.73 crores comprises of Rs. .43 crores being write' back of tax provisions relating to

prior years and provision of Rs. 15.16 crores relating to Financial Year 2012-13.

The Provision for the fihancial year 2012-13 is & consequence of the Company not being able 10 pay the Tax Deducied at Source in
raspect of certain expenses and certain statutory liablfities on or before their respective dus dates resulting into higher taxable income
requiring-additicnal tax provision therefor.

{ili} In view of substantial losses incurred as upto 31st March, 2014, the Company has reversed the Deferred Tax Liabillty of Rs. 15.69 crores

42,

and writien off MAT cradit entittemnent of Rs. 0.23 crore.

Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) — Employee Banefits

a. Brief descriptions of the plans
The Company's defined cantiibution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State: Insurance where the Company has no further
obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company's defined benefit pians include gratuity. The employees are also entitled to
leave encashment as per the Company's policy,
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b. Defined benefit plan — Gratuity (Funded)

{Amount in Ra)
Partlculars 2014 2013
L.Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 9.29% 8.00%
Rate of retum on plan assets 8.70% 8.70%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Altrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Il.Change in defined benefit obligations
Liakility at the beginning of the year 13,982,056 21,846,143
Interest cost 1,118,564 1,856,922
Current sarvice cost ‘3,690,466 7.685.610
Liability transferred by group companies. 785,980 178,145
Liability transfemred to group companies {370,963) (68,627)
Benefits paid (530,770) {2,432 886)
Actuarial (gain) f loss on obligations (10,604,496) {15,083.251)
Liability at the end of the year 8,070,837 13,982,058
lll.Fair value of plan assets
Fair valug of plan assets at the beginning of the year 898,600 2,982,832
Expected return on plan assets 78,004 256,524
Transferred by group companies - e
Transfarred to group companles _ - -
Benefits paid {630,770) {2.432,886)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets {78.004) 80,130
Fair valua of plan assets at the end of the year 385:830 896,800
Total Actuafial gainf({loss) on obligation 10,604,496 15,083,251
IV.Actual return on plan assets
Expected return cn plan assets 78,004 256,524
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets {78,004) 80,130
Actual return on plan assets - 346,654
V.Liabllity recognized in the Ealance Sheet
Liability at the end of the year 8,070,837 13,962,056
Fair valug of plan assets at the end of the year 365,830 896,600
Liabllity recognized In the Balance Sheet 7,705,007 13,086,456
Vi.Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan
assets
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
Vil.Expenses recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 3,690,466 7,685,610
Interest cost 1,118,564 1,856,922
Expected return on plan assets (78,004) (256,524)
Net actuarial {gain) / loss to be on cbligation {10,526,492) (15,173,381}
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss {5,795,466) {5,887.373)
VilL.Balance Shest reconciliation
Opening net liability 13,085,456 16,863,311
Expenses as above (5,795,488) (5.887.373)
Net transfer bygroup companies 785,980 178,145
Nat transfar to group companies (370,963} {68.627)
Clpsing net liability 7,705,007 13,085,456
IX.Expected ampioyers contribution in next year
As per actuarial valuation report 4,958 500 10,256,000
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(Amount in Rs.)

X.Experience adjustments
On plan liability {gain) / loss (14,158,838} (15,509,084}
On plan agsget (loss) / gain {78,004} 90,130
¢.  Leave Encashment {unfunded): {Amount in Rs)
["Particulars i 2014 __2013
LActuarlal assumptions _
Discount rate 9.29% 8.50%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10%
IL.Change In defined benefit obligations
Liability at the beginning of the year 11,576,746 15.461,944
Interest cost 926,140 1,314,265
Current service cost 2,191,132 6,319,696
Liability transferred by group companies 665,034 154,026
Liability transferred to group companies {353.808) {79,500)
Benefits paid (10.,081,028) {13,260,294)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 192,272 1,666,609
Liability at the end of the year 5,116,488 11,576,746
Hi.Llability recognized in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the year . 5,116,488 11,576,746
Liability recegnized in the Balance Sheet _ 5,116,488 11,576,746
IV.Expenses recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Cumrent service cost 2,191,132 6,319,696
Interast cost 926,140 1,314,265
Net actuarial (gain) / loss 192,272 1,666,609
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 3,309,544 9,300,570
V.Balance Sheet reconciflation
Opening net liability 11,576,746 15,461,944
Expenses as above 3,308,544 8,300,570
Beneiits Paid (10,081,028} (13,260,294
Net fransferby group companies: 665,034 154,206
Net transferto group companies {353,808} {79,500)
Clesing net lighility 5,116,488 11,576,746
V1.Experience adjustments:
On plan liability {gain) / loss ] 471,810 1,426,206
Notes:

(i) The estimate of future safary increases has been done on the basis of current salary suitably projected for future; beginning from the end of
the first year taking into consideration the general trend in inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand in the amployment market.

{iy  “Contribution to provident and other funds” is recognised as an expense in note 21 of the statement of Profit and Loss.

43. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Stanctard 17 — Segment Information
Primary Segment Information

The Company operates in two primary reportable business sagments, Le. “Logistics operations and related services” and Free Trade
Warehousing Zone {'FTWZ') operations” as per Accounting Standard 17 — “Segment Reporting”
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{Amount InRy)

Logistic operations FTWZ operations and Unallocated Total
and related related services
garvices
Segment Revenue
External salgs o . )
2,582,850,893 434,106,607 - 3.016,957,500
{5,737,612,808} 11,273,883,071) = {7,011,505,879)
Other income
68,408,238 21,318,034 58,801,780 148,528,050
(264,834} (6,176,298) {(-)2,567,908) (3,873,225
Total Revenue
2,651,259,129 455,424,641 58,801,780 3,165,485,550
{5,737,877.642) {1.280,069.369} {(-)2.567.908) (7,015,379,104)
Segment Resulis
Segment results 124,195,332 132,620,595 (-)335,788,134 (-)78.872,206
{683,852 878} (936,945,825) {(-}565,804,214) {1,054,994,489)
Interest expense 1.848,780,276
- - - (1,272.443,379)
[nterest income -
- - - (227,826,767}
Less:
Exceptional items:
{ Refar Note 28) 1,088,735,327
- — - (154,295,245)
Prior Period ltem {-)8,136,333
- - — {-)
Tax expense/ (-} Crodit (19,683,347
— - - {{-)3,867,294)
Profit/{-)Loss after Tax {-)2,978,768,129
- - - {(-)140,050,073)
Qther Information .
Segment assets 3,704,824,980 16,610,389,778 5,681,632,622 24,996 847,380
_ (5.515,237,508) {15,001,220,861} {4,954,631,849) {(25,471,090,216)
Segment liahilities 852,005,560 14,060,367 586 7.217,671,634 22,130,134,780
{2,381,219,479) {10,660 844, 798) {6.090,623,507) {19,132,787,784)
Capital expenditure Nil 170,994,534 215,847 171,210,181
(419,340) {1,903,299,181) {28.612,295) {1,932 330.816)
Dapreciation and 2,157,553 161,404,705 32,247 962 195,810,220
amortization expense (7.106,717) (130,901,425} (61,076,349) (199,083,491)
Non-cash expenses other 508,713,833 {-)20,285,453 132,858,413 621,286,793
than depreciation/ {(107,02,180) ({-} 676,373} {180,994, 373) (191,020,180}
amortization
Secondary segment informatlon
(Amount In Rs.)
India Outside India Total
Revenue 3,159.831.347 5,654,203 4,165 485,550
(6,708,218,045) (307,161,059) {7,015,379,104)
Carrying amount of assets 24,879,595,777 117,251,603 24 996,847,380
{25,280,349,014) (190,741,202) {25.471,090,216)
Capital expenditure 171,210,181 - 171,210,181
{1,932,330,818) [~} {1,932,330,816)
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Notes:
Geographical segment and its composition are India and Rest of the world

i)  The Company has identified Ingia and Rest of the Workf as geographical segments for secondary segment repoting. Geographical sales
are segregated based on the location of the customer who Is invoiced o in relation to which the sale [s otherwlse recognized.

ii}  Capital expenditure includes expenditure incurred on capital work in progress and capital advances,
44, Related parly disclosures, ais required by Accounting Standard 18 “Related Paity Disclosures” as given below:

Proportion of interast (Including
benaficial intarest) voting

Country of .
Name of the entity power (elther directly/indirectly
Incarporation or through subsidiaries)

Direct Subsidiarles
Arshiya Hong Kong Limited Haong Kong 100% (100%)
Cyberlog Technologies intarnational Ple Limited Singapore 100% {100%)
Arshiya International Singapore Pte Limited Singapore 100% (100%)
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited $3§ India 100% (100%)
Asshiya Transport and Handling Limited India 100% (100%)
Arshiva Northern FYWZ Llmited India 100% (100%)
Arshlya Central FTWZ Limited § India 100% (100%)

Arshlya Industrlal & Distribution Huh Limited $§

Previously Arshiya Northem Domestic Distripark Limited) India 100% (100%)
Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited @ India 100% (100%)
Indirgct Subsidiaries
Held through Arshiya Hongkong Limited
Arshiya Logistics LLC, Dubai U.AE, Nil {100%)
Held through Cyberlog Technologies International Pte Limited
Cyberog Tachnologies (UAE) FZE U.AE. 100% (100%)

Hong Kong 1060% (100%)
Cyberleg Technologies Heng Kong Limited
Arshiya Technologies {India) Private Limited * India 100% (100%)
Held through Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Arshiva Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited India 100% (100%)

Note: Percentage given in bracket relates to previous year.

$$5 12.64% (Nil) held through Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

$ 48.33 % (48.33 %) held through Arshiya Hongkong Limited

$5 9.38 % (14.05 %) held through Cyberlog Technologies (UAE) FZE
@ 5.27 % (8.63%) held through Arshiya Hongkong Limited

* 9.89 % (9.88%) held through the Company

8. (l)Key Management Parsonnel
Mr. Ajay S. Mittal = Chairman and Managing Director
Mrs, Archana A, Mittal - Joint Managing Director
Mr. Suhas Thakar - Executive Director (W.a.f 1/06/2013) (Resigned W.e.f, 31/03/2014)

{llRelative of Key Managemant Personnel )
Mr. Ananya Mittal ~Management Tralnee (Business Development}- W.e.f, 01-04-2013

b. Other related partiss with whom transactions have taken place during the year or balances outstanding as at the reporting
date.
Bhushan Stesf Limited
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited

Note:

The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of AS-18 and the same have
been rélied upon by the suditors.

The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follows

61



ARSHIYA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

{Amountin Rs.)

Subslidlary companles Key management Other related Total
parsonnel and thelr partiés
relatives
Revenue from operations 327,233,020 - 566,803,194 894,036,214
{1,195.453,991) (=) {863,950,842) {2,059,404,833)
Rent paid - - - -
() (=) {1,788.771) {1.788,771)
Interest Income - - - -
{220.751.518) (=) {-=) {220,751,518)
Interest Expenses - - - -
(=) (6,225,480} {=-) {B,225,480)
Dividend income - - - ) -
(26,990,119} {=) {~} {26,990.119)
Remuneration paid - 11,458,469 - 11,458,469
(=} (34,440,523) (-~} {34,440,523)
Recovary of Remuneration - 34,075,827 - 34,075,827
(=} (=) (=) ()
Loans and advances given 3,445,613,217 e - 3,449,613,217
{including reimbursement of {3,846,689,155) () i—) (3,846,589,155)
expenses)
Loans and advances given 6,118,000,940 - - 6,118,000,940
repald/adjusted (including {3,669,313,190) {~) (-} (3,669,313,190)
reimbursement of expenzses)
Loan and advances takan - 790,901,523 - 790,901,523
(=} (1,171.862.053) {==} {1,171,882,053)
Loans and advances taken repaid - 467,041,363 - 467,041,363
fadjusted ) (367.517,949) {=} {357,517,249)
Loans and advances received — - - -
against Land {86,5600,000} (=) {—} {86,500,000)
Loans and advances received 440,795,730 - - 440,795,730
apainst Land refunded/adjusted {139,956,549} {~} {==t {139.956,549)
Issue of Equity Shares on - 761,250,000 - 761,250,000
conversion of warrants -} {442.250,000) {--} {442,250,000)
Share Appfication Money given - - - -
{80,000,000) (=) {-=) {80,000,000}
Money received against warrants - 200,062,500 - 200,062,500
(=} (836,087,500) (=} {836,087.,500)
Investments made 3,357,519,680 - - 3.357,519.680
{1,341.951,516) (=} (=} (1,341,951,516)
Deposit received - - - -
{17,000,000} (=} {==} {17,000,000)
Deposit received adjusted - - - -
(415,000,000} (=) (=) {415,000,000)
Corporate guarantees / securities 2,5562,000,000 - - 2,552,000,000
given {2.906.400,000) (=) =} (2.906.400,000)
Balances as at March 31, 2014
Loans and advances given 458,747,370 - - 458,747,370
{3,127,135,004) () (=) (3,127.135,094)
Trade receivables 119,728,613 - - 119,729,613
{515,734,693) () {170.171.405} (532,806,098}
Advanca from Customer - - 408,415 408,415
(=) ) {~} {=}
Loans, advances and deposits 923,619,404 1,138,204,264 - 2,064,823,668
received {1,364,415,134) {814,344 104) (=) {2,178,759,238)
Corporate guarantees / securities 17,843,519,332 - - 17,843,519,332
given {15,291,519,332) {=) (=) (15,291,518,332}
Investments outstanding 8,345,972,336 - - 8,345,972,336
) {4,988 452 656) {~} (=) {4,988,452,656)
Nots: The following transactions constitute more than 10% of the total related party transactions of same type:
(Amount in Rs.)
Nature of transactlons Nama of the Party 2014 2013
Reavenue from operations Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private 327,233,020 1,195.463,994
Limnited
Bhushan Stesl Limited 566,803,194 863,950,842
Interest income Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited - 116,334,180
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{Amount in Rs}
Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited - 56,088,610
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited - 43,314,351
Rent Paid Arshiya Lifestyle Limited - 1,788,771
Intavast Expenses Mrs, Archana Mittal = 6,225 480
Remuneration paid Mr. Ajay S. Mittal - 34,075,827
Mr. Suhas Thakar_ 11,458,468 -
Recovery of Remungration Mr. Alay S. Mitta) 34,075,827 -
Leans and advances given Arghiya Rall Infrastructure Limited 2,267 604,460 1,197,737,899
Arshiva Northerm FTWZ Limited B09,502,336 1,203,528.909
Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 156,026,597 1,110,496,856
Loans and advances given | Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited 3,983,419,662 1,105,726,276
repaidfadjusted Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 627,225,774 1,825,622, 754
Loans and advances taken Mr. Ajay S Mittal 172,734,331 184,000,000
Mrs. Archana Mitta) 618,167 182 787,809,553
Me. Ananya Mittal - 199,962,500
Loans and advances taken Mrs. Archana Mittal 402,822,195 275,867,949
repaic/adjusted
Mr. Ajay S Mittal £4,219,168 -
Mr. Ananya Mittal - 81,650,000
Loans and advances Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited - 86,500,000
received against land
Loans and advances Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 399,257 624 139,956,549
received against tand
adjusted
Issus of equity shares on Mr. Alay S. Mittal 500,250,000 442,250,000
convarsion of wamants
Mrs. Archana A, Mittal 261,000,000 -
Money received against Mrs. Archana-A. Mittal 195,750.000 -
warnants Mr. Ajay S Mittal 4,312,500 -
Mr. Ananya Mitial - 836,087,500
Share application money Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited - 80,000,000
iven
Investments made Arshiya Industial & Distribution Hub Limited 1,245,420,750 241,949,316
Asshiva Northern FTWZ Limited 360,900,450 1,100.002,200
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 1,341,198,560 -
Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private 409,999,920 -
Limited _
Deposit receivad Arshiya Supply Chaln Managemant Private - 17,000,000
Limited
Depuosit received adjusted Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private - 415,000,000
Limitad
Corporate Guarantees / Arshiva Rall Infrastructure Limited 493,400,000 2.,606,400,000
securities given Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private 100,00,00,000 -
Limited '
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 457,400,000 300,000,000
Arshiva Industrial & Bistribution Hub Limited 601,200,000 -
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{Amount In Rs )

Closing Balances as at
March 31
Loans and advances given Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited 19,306,416 1,735,121,618

Arshiya Indugtrial & Distribution Hub Limited 25,247,939 1.150,303,978

Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 100,485,825 99,518,300

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 304,148,299 -
Trade receivables Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private 119,729,613 515,734,693

Limited :

Bhushan Steel Limited - 17,071,405
Advance from Customers Bhushan Steel Limited 408.415 -
Loans, advances and Arshiva Rall Infrastructure Limited -~ 389,257 624
deposits taken Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited 921,619,404 031,463,233

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private 2,000,000 2,000,000

Limited

Mr. Ajay S Mittal 410,827,664 302,312,500

Mrs, Archana Mittal 727,376,600 512,031,604
Investmants oultstanding Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 2,205,615.068 960,194,316

Arshiya Northem FTWZ 3,144,477,790 2,783 577.340

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 2,341,598,560 1,000,400,000
Money received against Mr. Ajay S Mittal 206,025,000 836,087,500
warrants

Mts. Archana A. Mittal 66,875,000 -
Corporate Guarantees / Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 3.561.100,000: 3,103,700,600
securities given Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 7,698,619,332 7.205,219,332

Arshlya Supply Chain Management Private 1,850,000,000 850,000,000

Limited

Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 4,733,800,000 4,132 600,000

45, Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidiaries (pursuant to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange.

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries
{Amountin Rs}

Name of the Subsidiary {including indirect subsidiary} Amgunt outstanding as on Maximum amount outstanding
March 31, 2014 during the year
Arshiya Supply Chain Managsment Private Limited 9,560,891 53,339,091
{10,317,130) (32,137,000}
Arshiya Rail Infrastructura Limited**** 19 306 416 1 893 615 691
(1.735.121,618) {1.777.413,258)
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited Nil 10,619,201
{99,24,170) {99,24,170)
Arshiya Transpert and Handling Limited 100,485,825 100,705,297
_ {95,088,131) (95,089,131}
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (Previously 25,247 938 1,262,644 405
Arshiya Northern Domestic Distripark Limited) {1,108,938,772} (1,279,173 658)
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Lirnlted 304,146,300 333,548,175
{121.869.738) {1,080.792,965)
«+* Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited has made investmants in following subsidiary

{Numbar of equity shares}

Name of the Company 2014 2013

Arshiva Rail Sidings and Infrastructure Limited 5§0,000 50,000

46, Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 19 — Leases

Finance Lease The Company has acquired vehicles under finance lease, Détalls of lpasa rentals payable are as follows:
{Amount in Rs)

Not later than Later than one Later than five
one year year but not later yoars
than five years

Minlmum lease payments 216,720 1,090,952 -
{216,720) (216,601} {~)

Less: Finance charges payable 9,927 143,316 -
{27,215) {9,808) {=)

Present value of lease rentals 206,793 847.636 -
{189,505) {206,793) {-)
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Operating Lease
R In respect of assets taken on cancellable operating lease

The Gompany has taken certain offices and eguipments on cancellable operating leasa, which are renawable on a periodic basis st the
option of both the lessor and the lessee, Rental paymienis uncer such lease are Rs, 2,765,674/- (Rs. 72,344,612~}

H. In respoct of asgets taken on non-canceltable operating lease

The Company has taken office. premises on non-cancellable operating lease arangements for a period of 5 years. The operating lease
rental payments/provision under non-cancellabis agreements aggregate to Rs. 63,901,813/~ (Rs. 66,383,894/-), Details of contractual
payments under nen-cancellable operating leases are given below:

{Amount in Rs.)

2014 2013
Lease obligations
Future minimum lease réntal payments
- not later than one year 34251232 70,287,668
- later than one year but not later than five years 42517533 87,627 594
- later than five years - -
Total 7,67,68,765 157,815,262

. Total Lease rental payments in respect of operating leases recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss are Rs. 66,667 487/ (Rs.
138,728,506/-) and capitalized during the year is Rs. Nit {Rs, 35,8685,511/-).

a7, Earnings per share has been computed as under:
2014 2013
(Loss) after tax {Amount in Rs.) {2,976,768,129) (140,0580,073)
Woeighted average number of shares {Numbers) 61,922,623 60,074,540
Nominal vaiue per share {Amount in Rs.) 2 2
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted {Amount in Rs.) {48.07) {2.33)
48. Managerial Remuneration
(Amount In Rs.)
Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director
2014 2013 2014 2013
Salaries and Allowances - 31,500,000 8,232,500 -
Perquisites - 51,147 - -
Contribution to Provident Fund - 2,524,680 7.800 -
Retirement benefits - — 3,218,169 -
Total - 34,075,827 11,458,469 -

(i} The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company decided not to-draw any femuneration for the financial years 2012-2013 and 2643-
2014. Consequently, the Board of Direclors of the Company at their meeting held on 2™ April, 2014 dacided that the Company's application
to the Central Government for approval of excess remuneration of Rs. 340.76 lacs paid/provided in the financial years 2012-2013 and 2013-
2014 be withdrawn and accordingly, the same was withdrawn. The entire remuneration paid/provided to the Chairman and Managing Director
for 2012-13 has been recovered during the year ended 31" March, 2014 and shown as “Wiite Back of Managarial Remuneration” and no
provision has been made for the year ended 31* March, 2014,

The Board of Directors of the Company st thelr meeting held on 2™ Agpril, 2014 at the instancs of the Chalrman and Managing Director has
revised his remuneration {0 a tokan amourit-of Rs. 1,000/~ per anum effective from April, 2014,

{ll} In view of absence of profits as also the company not being able to repay its debts and interest payable thereon to lenders; the remuneration
paidfprovided to Mr. Suhas Thakar, Ex-Executive Director, is in excess of iimits prescribed under section 198 read with Schedule XIll of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is In the process of filing an application o the Central Government for approval of excess remuneration.

49, Cument Liabiiities include advances received from subsidiaries for transfer/sale of land, as under;

{Amount in Ra.}

2014 2013
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited - 399,257 624
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited 921,619,408 931,463,233
Arghiya Northarn FTWZ Limited — 31,694,277
Total 921,619,406 1,362,415,134
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§0. (i) Derivative contracts entered into by the Company for hedging purpose-and outstanding as at March 31, 2014

Forefgn currency amount Equivalent amount
{inRs.)
Balances Currency 2014 2013 2014 2013
Long-tarm uUsh 51,807.026 55,356,476 2.772.660,000 3,005,484 ,261
borrowings

{ii) Details of foreign currency transactions/ balances not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are as under:

Foralgn currency amount Equivalent amount
(inRs.)
Bajances Currency 2014 2013 2014 2013
Bank halances UsD 5.36 893 314 48,066
Remittances in Transit usD - 135,920 - 7,316,574
Receivables uso 442,859 5,113,232 26,221,706 27,52,45,300
EUR 18,091 23,213 1,474,703 15,985,395
Payables usD 151 1,341,353 8,937 73,841,470 |
GBP - 4,185 - 340,900
EUR 1,818 11,729 147,650 822,851
JPY 559,423 11,800 321,500 6,719
HKD 2,543 - 18917 -~

51. Prior period items {net) included in Statement of Proflt and Loss

{Amount in Rs)
2014 2013
Revenue from logistics operations — (4,104,580)
Cost of loglstic operations - 11,337,633
Recovery of excess pavment of Electricity duty {8,136,333) -
Net prior period expenses / {income) {8,136,333} 7,232,953
52. Information pursuant to para 5 (viil) of Revised Schedule V] of the Companies Act 1956,
a. Earnings In foreign currency {Amount In Rs)
2014 2013
Revenue from logistics operations 5,654,203 307,161,059
Revenue from Free Trade Warehousing Zone 103,140,543 899,304,671
Total 108,794,746 1,206,465,730
b._Expenditure in forelgn currency {AmountIn Rs)
2014 2013
Cost of logistics operations 11,573,248 592,271,936
Advertisement and Business prormotion - 91,629
Travelling expenses 1,938,000 1,897,756
Miscellaneous expenses 426,402 408,301
Total 11,999,650 594,670,621
€.Value of Imports on CIF basis
{Amount in Rs.}
Particulars 2014 2013
Capital goods _ = 2,681,897
Total - 2,681,897

53. Previous vyear's figures have been regrouped [/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform fto these of current year's
classification/disclosures.
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Signatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements

For M.A. Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Arshlya Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Pate) Alay S Mittal Archana A Mittal

Partner Chairman & Managing Birector Joint Managing Director

Mem. No. 032489 DIN : 00226355 DIN ; 00703208
Shyam Rathl

Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai: 8" July, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Board of Directors of
Arshiya Limited (formerly known &g Arshiya Intemational Limited)

Report on the Consolidated Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying consalidated financial stataments of Arshiya Limited (formerly known as Arshiya Intemational Limited)
("the Company") and its subsidiares {collectively referred to as “the Group™) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31,2014, the Consolidated Statsment of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the earier year were audited by the previous Auditors', whose report in respect of cartain matters
has been appropriately consldered by us,

Management's Responsibllity for the Consolidated Financia) Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a trug and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub-saction {3C) of saction 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 {"the Act") read with General Circular 15/2013 dated 13
Beptember 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes the
design, Implementation and maintenance of intarnal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit, We conductsd our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by tha Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we
camply with ethical requirements and ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free ffom material misstatement. :

An ‘audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemeant of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermnal controf
relevant to the Group's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in arder to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit aiso inciudes avaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consclidated financial statements,

We baliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficisnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for Qualifled Opinion:
We draw aftention to remuneration pald/ provided to an Ex-Executive Directar (Note No 38(c}) and an ex-Managing Director {Note No,38(s)}
which have turned out to be in excess of the limits prescribed under section 198 read with Schedule Xl to the Companias Act, 1956, as
stated in the respective notss.
Qualifled Cpinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effect of the matisr described in
Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, and based on the consideration of the reparts of the other auditors on the financlal statements of the
subsidiaries referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements glve a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles gernerally accepted in Indfa:

(@) inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the group as at 31® March, 2014:

{b) Inthe case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss of the group for the year ended on that date; and

(¢) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the group for the year ended on that date.
Emphas!s of Matter

1. The group continues to the under severe financial stress as reflected by :

(a)  Approval of Corporate Debt Restructuring.

(b}  Unpaid Trade Creditors aggregating to Rs.108,84 crores,
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() Unpaid Employees dues aggregating to Rs.12.21 crores.

(d) Overdue loans from bank and other parties aggregating to Rs.198.23 crores {Including interést accrued and due Rs.41.90
crores}.

(e) Statutory dues aggregating to Rs.42.25 crores.
- Despite the foregoing, the Accounts of the Group have been pre pared on a"Going Concem basis” in view of:
(a) Revival plans {Refer Note No. 39)
{b) The Restructuring Package under Corporate Debt Restructuring approved by the secured lenders. (Banks) {Refer Note No.40).

{c} Proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of certain subsidiaries ( Refer Note No. 49)

Other Matters

1. We did not sudit the financial statements/ financial information of certain subsidiaries of the group, whose financial statements/
financial information reflect )
total assets (net) of Rs,288.78 crores as at March 31, 2014,total revenue of Rs. Nil and net cash flows amounting to Rs.{0.31)
crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, These financial statements /
financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion, in so far as they relate to the amounts and disclosures included in respact of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

2. Changes in the Accounting Policies as referrad to in Note Ne. 32{b)(il), Note No.37 Note No. 41 and Note No. 42()) with a view to
comply with the requirements of relsvant Accounting Standards/ Pronouncernent of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
as stated in the said Notes.

3. Note No. 32{(g} regarding Fixed Assets

4. Note No. 32(b)(iv} regarding Capital Work in Progress

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of all these matters.

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Numbar 107556W

Mukul Patel
Parinar
Membership Number: 32489

Mumbai, 9 July, 2014
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Arshiva Limited (Formerly known as Arshlya Internationat limited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2014

Notes'
I. Equity and Liabllitias.
1. Shareholders’ funds
{a) Share capital 4 13.42,58,944 12,37.58.944
(k) Reserves and surplus 5 5,29,01,48,564 7.74,14,36.079
(c) Money received agalnst share warrants 4(d) 27.49 00,000 83,60,87 500
5,69,93,07,508 8,70.,12,82,523
2. Non-current Habilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 6 25,09,12,26,990 20,43,84,64,145
(b) Dafetred tax llabilities (nhet) 7 - 7.91,48,194
{c) Othar long-terrn liabilities 8 7,76,81.859 95,47.430
{d} Long-term provisiaons 11 1,21.44.,288 1,98,62,336
25,18,10,53,137 20,54,70,22,105
3. Current llabllities
(@) Short-term borrowings 9 2,80,55,23,220 3.29,66,74.026
{b) Trade payables 10 1,08,94,786,776 2,66,70,17,655
{c} Other current liabilities 10 4,16,74,37,278 5,52,13.64,644
(d) Short-term provisions 11 43,92,04,6895 9.73.45,308
8,50,16,42,169 11,58,24,01,833
1. Assets Total 36,38,20,02,814 40,83,07,08,261
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 12
{i) Tangible assets 31,03,34.87,286 23,73,85.28,234
(ii) Intangible assets €4,10,57 6889 68.14,39.672
{ill) Goodwill - 5,08,08,246
(iv) Capital work-in-progress - Tangible 5,62,04,80,843 7.35,25,90,043
(v} Capital work-in-prograss - Intangible- 39,45,700 48,65 285
37,29,89,71,718 31.83,72,61,480
{b} Long-term loans and advances 13 50,65,72,957 1,15,84,66,853
(c) Other non-current assets 14 1,22,03,003 23,60,93.200
51,87,75,960 1,39,55,680,053
2. Current assots
{a) Inventories 15 46,33,621 23,13,650
(b} Trade receivables 16 84.,06,03,189 6,23.74.45,736
(c) Cash and bank balances 17 10,10,23.624 8,36.53.741
(d) Short-term loans and advances 13 61,78,00,123 1,22,80,92,915
(e) Other current assets 14 194578 4,63.78,786
1,56,42,55,135 7,59,78,84,728
Total 39,38,20,02,514 40,53,07,06,261
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying notes to thae financial statements 1-81 1 0

As per our attached report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Patel
Partner
Meam. No.32489

Place: Mumbai
Date: 9th July, 2014

For and on behaff of the Board of Directors of

Arghlya Limited

Ajay S Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 002268355

Shyam Rathi
Chief Financial Officer
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Arshiya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International fimited}
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31* March, 2014

. Notes Year Endad 31st
Partlculars . . o YRS _ March, 2014
I. Revenus
1. Revenue from operations 18 5,16,55,72,580 41,39,58,90,727
2. Other income 19 19,81,88,365 8.84.65716
Total Revenue 5,36,47,60,945 11,46,43,56.443
Il. Expense
1, Cost of operations 20 4,45,50,85,074 8,20,06,89,896
2, Employee benefits expense 21 40,87,37,523 75.91,26.846
3. Finance costs 22 3,66,29,51,552 2,50,66,73,758
4, Depreciation and amortization expense 12 83,52,89,422 60,24,22,135
5. Other expenses 23 63,96,58,677 67,11,40,871
Total Expenses 10,00,17,23,248 12,74,00,53,506
. (Loss) for the year hefore exceptional items and tax (I-)} (4,63,69,62,303) (1.27,56,97,0663)
IV. Exceptional items (Net) 29 2,12.65,95,433 5,42,76,945
V. Prior Period Adjustments (Net) 28 1,49,13,73,795 -
VI, Loss for the year before tax {llI-IV-V) {8,25,49,31,531} {1,32,99,74,007)|
VIl. Tax expense 47
1. Short{{(Excess) provision for prior year (Net) 16,23,34,181 (1.44.967)
2. Reversal of MAT credit of prior year 12,41,76,994 -
3. Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability/Assets (7.91,48,193) (5.82,986,606)
Vil {Loss) for the year (8,46,22,94,512) {1,27,15,32,434)
Earnings per aquity share of value Rs. 2 each
Basic and Diluted Eamings per Share 35 ({136.66) (21.17)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policles
See accompanying notes to the financial staterents 1-51
As per our attached report of even date
For M. A, Parikh & Co. For and on bkehalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshlya Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W
Mukul Patel Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Mem. No.32489 DIN: 00226355 DIN : 00703208

Shyam Rathi

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date: Sth July, 2014
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31* March, 2014
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{Amount in Ra )

VearEnded 318t | Year Enaed 31at
Mareh, 2014 March, 2013
Cash flow from operating activities
{Loss) hefore tax (8,25,46,31,533) {1,32,99,74,007)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 83,52,60,422 60,24,22,135
Leasahoid improvements written off 1,11,47,526 5,42,76,945
Interast expanse 3.83,01, 47,815 2,44.11,04 831
Inierest income 31.48,814 {1,04,70,597)
Gain / Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) £1,39,54,022) 2,84,072
Adjustment of Share Issue Expenses {88,78,262) -
Profit on redemption of units of mutual funds . {7.36,286)
Anciliary borrowing costs written off 21,46,02.226 3.96,22,688
Provision for doubtfuf advances 1.48,06,800 -
Provigion for doubtful dabts 1,40,04,829 -
Bad debis 6,47,76,083 4,08,328
Exchange adjustments {nst) 7.76.70,104 295,768,612
|Operating profit before working capital changes {3.56,78,10,428) 1,82,66,04,516
Adjustments for :
{Increase)fdecreasa in inventories {23,20,07 1) {23,13,550)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivatles 561,50,99,117 (3.73.41,75,702)
Increasef{decrease) in trade and other payables (2529192378} 2,60,94,39,582
Cash generated from operations {48,42,22,658) 69,95,54,857
Direct taxes paid 28,65,11,175 {14,88.45 410}
Net cash flow from operating activities (A} (77,07,34,823) 55,06,09,447
Cash flow from investing actlvities
Furchase of fixed assets {including capital work-in-progress) {16,04,81,208) {4.41,65,89,279)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 22,02,08.013 10,386,574
Redemption of investments in units of mutual funds - 20,09,25,514
lavastment in bank depasits having original matuiity period of more than 3 months 16,00,000 2,87,33,637
Interest recéivad [31,48,814) 1,16.48 702
Net cash flow used In Investing activities {B} 5,75,77,991 {4,17,43,44,852)
Cash flow from financing activities ] )
Proceeds from issue of shares (including securities premium) 76,12,80,000 44,22 50,000
Money recelvad against share warrants {56.11,87.500) £3,60,87,500
Proceeds. from long-térm borrowings (Net of Repayments) 4,65,27,62.845 1.27,64,91,705
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (Net of Repayments) (49,11,50,805) 2,08,77.40,933
Dividend paid - (9,57,23,316)
Ancillary borrowing costs incurred - {1.64,95.800)
Interest paid {3,631 A7,815) 1,45,72.44 258
Net cagh flow from financing activities {C) 73,15,26,725 3,07,51,08,764
Net increase/{decroase in cash and cash equlvalents (A +B + C’ 1,83,69,883 {54,86,28,641)
Add: Opening cash and cash equivalents 81415413 63,00,44, 054
Closing cash and cash equlivalents 9,97,85,208 8,14,15413
Add; Earmarked bank balances 12,38,328 22 38,328
Closing cash and cash eguivalents 10,10,23,624 8,36 53,741

Notes

Pravicus year's figures have bean regrouped/ reciassified wherever nocessary to conform fo current years' classification,

As per cur attached report of even date

For M. A. Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Arshiva Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Directorg of

Mukul Patel Alay § Mittat Archana A Mittal

Parther Chalrman & Managing Director Jaint Managing Director

Mem, Mo,32489 RIN: 00226355 DIN ; 0703208
Shyam Rathl

Chief Financial Qfficer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 9th July, 2014
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1; Corporata Information

Arshiya Limited (formerly Arshiya Intemational Limited} (hereinafter refarred to as “the Paremt Company”, “the Company” or “AL"}
together with its subsidiaries {collectively referted to as *Group”).is Flagship Company of the Arshiya Group. Arshiya is a pioneering
Unified Supply Chain Infrastructure and Solutions Group headquartered in India. The Group business comprises Free Trade
Warehousing Zone (FTWZ), industrial & Distribution Hubs, Rail & Rail Infrastructure, Forwarding, Transport & Handiing, Supply Chain
Techndlogy and Managemeant Solutions.

Note 2: Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) relating to the Company and its subsidiaries are drawn up to the same reporting date
as followed by the Parent Company, i.e. 31¥ March, 2014 {Previous Year 31% March, 2013). The CFS has been prepared on the
following basis.

i} The CFS of the Group are prepared under Historical Cost Convention on going concern ‘basis In accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India and Accounting Standard — 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl}, to the extent possible in the same manner as that adopted by the parent company
for its separate financial statements by regrouping, recasting or rearranging figures, wherever considered necessary,

ii}  The consclidation of the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries is done to the extent possible on a line-by-
line basis by adding togather like items of assets, liabilities, income and expensés. Figures pertaining te the subsidiary companies
have been rectassified wherever necessary o bring them In line with the Group financial statements. All inter-group transactions,
unrealized inter-company profits and balances have been eliminated in the process of consolidation, Minority interest in subsidiaries
represents the minority shareholders proportionate share of the net assets and net income.

) The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in the subsidiaries over the Company's share of equity and reserves of the
Subsidiarles is recognized.in the financial statements as Goodwill, which is tested for impalrment on every balance sheet date. The
excess of Company's share of equity and reserves of the subsidiaries over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital Reserve.

v} The CFS have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for fike fransactions and other events in similar circumstances
axcept deviations, If any, In case of certain subsidiafes, whose financiat statements are based on the Financlal Reporing
Standards as required under the laws of the respective countries In which they are registered. However, such deviations, if any, do
not have any significant effect on the CFS.

v} The CFS includes the Financial Statements of the parent company and the subsidiaries (as listed in the table below). Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which effective contrel #& acquired and are excluded from the date of transfer / disposal.

Proportion of interest
{including beneficial interest) /

Name of the entity Inizxg’yat?:n voting power (elther directly /

indirectly or through

subsidiaries}

Direct Subsldiarles
Arshiva Hong Kong Limitad # Hong Kong 100% (100%)
Cyberlog Technologies Intemnational Pte Limited Singapore 100% (100%)
Arshiya International Singapore Pte Limited Singapore 100% (100%}
Arshiya Supply Chaln Management Private Limited$$$ India 100% (100%)
Arshiya Transport and Handﬁng Limited India 100% (100%)
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited @ India _ 100% (100%)
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited _ _ india _ 100% {100%)
Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited $ (ndia _ 100% (100%)
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited $$. | India ] 100% (100%)
Indirect Subsidiaries
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Held through Cyberlog Technologies International Pte Limited

Cyberiog Technologies (UAE) FZE U.AE, 100% (100%)
Arshiya Technologies {india) Private Limited * India 100% (100%)
Held through Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited

Arshiya Rall Siding and Infrastructure Limited India 100% (100%)

§3% 12.64% (Nil} held through Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited.

@ 527 % % (8.63%) held through Arshiya Hongkong Limited.

$ 48.33 % (48.33 %) held through Arshiya Hongkong Limited.

$$ 9.38 % (14.44 %) held through Cybsring Technologies (UAE) FZE.

* 9.89 % (9.89%) held through Parent Company.

# During the year Arshiya Hong Kong Limited disposed ¢ff its investment in Arshiya Logistics LLC Dubai.

Note 3: Significant Accounting Policles

(i) Use of estimates

The preparation of CFS in conformity with India GAAP requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses of
the year, Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to etimates is recognized prospectively in current and future
pericds.

(i) Fixed assets
{a) Tangible Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisition / installation {net of cenvat credit availed) less accumulated depreciation
and impaiment losses, if any, except land, All costs including financing costs till commencement of commerctal operations
arg capitallsed.

Land is carried at its revalued amount being the estimated market value on the date of revaluation.

(b) Intangible Fixed Assets _ _
Intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The capitalised cost of software Includes license fees, cost of
implementation and system integration services. These costs are capitalised as intangible assets in the year in which refated
software is implemented.

{c) Capltal wark-In-progress

The cost of fixed assets which are not ready for its intended use are carried at cost comprising direct cost , related incidental
expensas and atiributable interest.

(iii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing -costs that are aftributable to the acquisition or construction of gualifying asseis are capltalised till the date of
commencament of commercial cperations as part of cost of sugh assats. All other borrowing costs are charged to revanue.

(iv)} Depreciation and Amortization

A. Incase of the Parent Company and Indian subsidiaries
A.1. Frae Trade Warahousing Zone / Distripark and Logistics operations
Tangible Fixed Assets

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on a pro-rata basis on straight-line method at the rates and manner
prescribed under Schedule XIV to the Gempanies Act, 1956,
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Intangible Fixed Assets

(@) Amortisation of intangible assets other than (b) below, Is provided on a straight-line basis over a period of three to six years
from the date of its implementation hased on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be
derived from Its use.

{b) Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software (Intangible asset) including expenditure on implementation is amortised
over a period-of ten years based on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from
its use.

A.2 Rail freight and related sarvices:

Tangibie Fixed Assets

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets Is provided on a pro-rata basis on straight-line method at the rates and manner’
presctibed under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Wagoens, Brake Vans and Containers: where Depreciation is provided on "Straight Line Method' on a pro-rata basis at the
following rates from the date these assets are put to use. These rates are based on the seconomic useful life of the assets
of 20 years estimated by the management and are higher than the minimum rates prescribed by Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956,

Intangible Fixed Assets

{a) Amortisation of intangible agsets other than {b) below, is provided on a stralght-line basis over a period of three to six vears
from the date of its implementation based on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be
derived from-its usa.

(b)  Costof Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software {intangible asset) including expenditure on implementation is amortised
over & period of ten years based on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from
its use.

(c) Ralil License fees paid for transfer of Concession Agreement is amorfized over a period of twenty years, being the license
period agreement {See refer note no. 37).

B. In case of certain overseas subsidiary companies

Cenrtain overseas subsidiary companias provide depreciation on tangible fixed assets on straight line method based on the
astimated useful life of the assets as determined by the management.

C. The Group

i) Leaseheld improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.

(v} Leases

{a} Finance Tease .
Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recognized at lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Initial costs directly attributable to lease:
are recoghized with the asset under lease.
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{b} Operating lease
Lease of asgets undar which all risks and rewards of ownership are effactively retained by the lessor are classified as gperating

lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agregments.

(Vi) investments

(a) Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisltion are classified as long term and are valued at cost.
Provision for dimimition, if any, in the value of long term investments 1s mada to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

{b} Cument Investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value, compufed individually for each investment.

(v} tnventories.

Inventories ere valued at cost or net realizable (NRV), whichever is less.

(Vi") Revenue recognition
{a) Revenue from logistic operations is aceounted on the basis of date of departure of the vessel/aircraft for jobs related to export
shipments and date of arrival of the vessel/ aircraft for jobs related to import shipments, considering substantial completion of
contracted services.
{b) Revaenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms.

{c) Revenue from Handiing and other Value Added Services/Activities is recognized on the basis of loading/unicading of
container/cargo and completion of agreed contracied services

{d_)' Revenue from rail and ancillary operations are aceounted on the basis of defivery of cargo, considering substantial completion of
contracted services. While recognizing the revenue 7" of the following month:is taken as culoff date for determining the defivary of
cargo vis-a-vis completion of contracted services,

(e) Revenue from sale of user licences for software application is recognised on transfer of the title of the user licences.

(f Revenue from software development and consultancy services related to information technology is recognised upon complation of
the actual service performed.

{g) Interest and other Income are accounted on accrual basis except whera the receipt of Income is uncertain in which case it is
accounted for on receipt basis.

{h) Export benefits under Serve from India Scheme of Foreign Trade Policy are recognized when utilized.

(ix} Employee benefits
The Group has various schemes of employee benefits as per applicable local laws of the respective countries, viz., provident fund,
gratuity and leave encashment. Provident and gratuity funds are administered through Trustea / Regional Provident Fund and Group’s

contribulion thereto is charged to revenue every year. Gratuity and leave encashment are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation by and an independent actuary as at the year-end.

(X) Foreign currency transactions
A, Accounting of transactions
{a} Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the date of the transaction. Reallsed
gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{b} Foreign curency monetary assets and labilities at the year-end are transtated at the year-end exchange rates and thé resultant
exchange differenca Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{c} In respect of derivative contracts assigned to foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities, the differences due to change in
exchange rata betwean the inception of derivative contracis and date of Balance Shest and the proportionate premlum/discount for
the period upto the date of Balance Shest are recognized-in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B: Translation and exchange rates

Financial statements of overseas non-intagral operations are translated as under:

(a) Assets and liabilities at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the year. Depreciation is accounted at the same rate at which
assels are converted,

{b} Revenue and expenses are at yearly average ratas, Off balance sheat items are translated into Indian Rupees at year-end rates.
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{xi) Accounting for taxes on income

(a) Provision for Current Tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income-tax Act, 1961 and under the respective Tax Laws of
the countries in which subsidiartes operate.

(b} Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference batween taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are
measured using relevant enacted tax rates. Deferred Tax assets are not racognized unless there are timing differences, the
raversal of which will result in sufficient income or there Is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

{c} Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic benefits in the form of

adjustment of future tax liability, is recognized as an asset only whan, based on convincing evidence, it Is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with it will low to the Group and the assets can be measured reliably.

(Xii) Impairment of tangible and Intangible assets

The Group reviews the carrying values of tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment at éach balance sheet date.
An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

(xiii) Employee stock options
The Group calculates the employee stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method wharein the excess of
market price of underying equity shares as on the date of the grant of options over the exercise price of the options given to

employees under the Ernployee Stock Option Scheme, is recognized as deferred employee stock compensation expense and is
amortized over the vesting pariod. '

(xiv) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
{(a) A provision is made based on a reliable estimata when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle an obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provision is not discounted and is
determined based on best estimate required to settie the obligation at the year-end date.

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past evenis but their existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence of nen-occursence of ena or more uncertain future events nat wholly within the control of the Groug.

{¢) Contingent Assets are not recognized or disclased in the financial statements,
{xv) Eamings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

year. Diluted earnings par share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and diluted aquivatent
shares outstanding during the year, except when the resuils would be anti-dilutive.

(xvi} cCash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and
presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing actlvities of the Group.

(‘xvii) Accounting policies not spacifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles followed
by the Group,
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Arshiya Limited {Formerly known as Arshlya International Hmited)
Notes to Consolidated Financhal Statements

{Amount in Rs.)
Asat Apat

Paiticulary 31t March; 2014 | 31st March, 2013
4. Share Capital
Authorised
85,000,000 (85,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 2 each 17,00,00,000 17,00,00,000
lesued, Subscribed and Pald up
67,129,472 (61,879.472) aquity shares of Rs.2 each, fully paid up 13,42,58,944 12,37.58.944

Total 13.42,58‘944 12,37‘_581944
{a} Reconcillation of shares outstanding at the beglinning and at the end of the year _

) As at 318t Marchy 2014 Ay at: 319t March, 2013

Particulars . Number of shares | Amount (in'Rs). | Numberiofshares | ‘Amourit{in Rs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,18.79,472 12,37,58,044 5.88,29.472 11,76,58,944
Isgued During the year 52,50,000 1,05.00.000 30,506,000 61.00,000
Balance at the end of the year 6.71_&-9,472 13,42,58,944. 6.18,79.472 12.3?,581944

{b) Terms and rights attached to equlty shares

The Company has one ciass of équity share having a par value of Re.2 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitied to one vote per share. The sharsholders
who heid shams on the record date are entitlad to dividend as may be proposad by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the
ensuing Generat Mesting.

In the avent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitied io receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of ecuity shares held by the shareholders.

{c} Detalls of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company

'ﬂama.—dfifxo.?areholdér e 1
Archana Mittal 2.15,70,226 32.13% 1.88,20,225 32.03%
| Ajay S Mittal 65,00,000 9.68% 30,50,000 4.93%

(d} Issue of convertible warrants )

Tha Company has allotted 13,500,000 convertible warrants at Rs. 145/- par warrant to promotars / promoters group- on prefarential basis pursuant to 8 speclal
{resolution passed by the members of the Company ai their exira ordinary general mesting, heid on October 18, 2012, Out of the same, 52,50,600 & 306,50,000
were converled (in the ratio of 1 share for 1 warant) into equity shares of Rs. 2/~ each at a premium of Rs, 143/~ per share during the financial year 2013-14 &
2012-13 raspectively. Pending conversion of 5,300,000 warrants, amount received against these warrants of Rs, 274,960,000/ is shown as “Money recelvad
against share warrants” in the financial statements. The Proceeds from issue of convertible warrants on prefarential basis have been ufilised for repayment of
shorf-term bomowings and working capital requirements of the Company.
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Arshiya Limited (Formerly known as Arshiya International limited)
Notes to Consolideted Financial Statements

{Amount In Rs.)

5. Reserves & Sutplug
Securitles Premium Accoun

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,42,05,68,084 4,50,01,27 084
Add : On issue of Equity Shares ¥5.07 50,000 43,61,50,000

Pursuant to Schems of Amalgamation - 48,42,91,000
Belanca at the end of the year 6,17,13,18,084 §,42,05,68,084

Amalgamation Regerve *
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 1,24,80,000 1,24,80,000

Revaluation Reserve
Batance as at the beginning of the year - -

Add : On revatuation of land [Refer Note no.12(p)] 6,35,39,19,97¢ -
Balance at the and of the year 6,35,39,19,970 -
Foreign currency monetary item translation differance account [Refer note 42(i)]

Balance as at the beginning of the year {85,59,558) (85,59,558)
Less: Written off during the year 85,565,558 -
Balance at the end of the year - [85,59,558)

Foreign currency translation reserve

Batance as at the beginning of the year 11,10.88,127 7,03,67.671
Add : Adjustment made during the year {B.62,29,662) 4.07.23,456
Balance at the end of the year 2,48.50, 465 11,10,88,127 |
General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 9,40,17,534 12,83,43,158
Add : Pursuant to Scheme of Amaigamaticn - (3.43,25,624))|
Balance at the end of the year 9.40,17,5M 940,117,534
Surplus in Staternent of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the baginning of the year 2,17,18,41,8H1 3,83,33,39.701
Less: Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation - (44,99,85,376)
Loss for the year 8,46,22,94,512 1,27,15,32.434
Adjusted for Share lssue Expenses 89,78,262
Adjustment upen Disposal of Foreign Subsidiary# 1,00,70,14,606-
Balares at the and of the year (7,36,64,45489)]  2,14,18,41,891
Total 5,29,01,48,584 7,74 14.36,079 |

" As per the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhils BDFP (India) Privats Limited with the Company approved by the
Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay in eariier years, Amalgamation reserve s free for all purposes.

#Rs. 1,007 ,014,606/- represent amounts of receivable/advances reduced corraspondingly upon sale of downstream
invastment by a Foreign Subsidiary.
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Arghiya Limitect {Formerly known as Arshiya international limitad)
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

{Amount In Rs.}

ailculie
6.

ong-term borrowings
Secured
Term loan fren (Refar Note no. 40)
- Banks
- Term Lean 19,89,64,03,192 | 18,53,01,15,685 37.97.64,801 1,77.25,26,685
- Funded Interast Term Loan (FITL) 3.45,42,23,946 - 13,96,77.234 -
- Worklng ¢apita Term Loan 40,63,18,064 - 2.13.85,208 -
- Other parties 1,33,33,33.334 1,90,00,00,600 1,62,33,33,334 95,66,66,668
Vehicie loan from bank 947,637 12,49,085 3,01.427 2,70,553
Finance lease obligations - 70,909,195 206,793 1,808,505

25,09,12,26,990 | 20,43,84 64,145 2,16,46,68,797 2,72,96,53 311

Less: Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilitiss” (Refer note
10

(2,16,46,68.797}  {2,72,96,53,311)

Total 2509,12,26,900 | 20,43,84,64 145

(i) The above loans are sacured by chargas on all the present and future movable and immovable assats including intangibte assets, assignment of rights
and benefits and charges on entire Current Assets.

{ii} The above loans further secured by Joint ang several irevocable persanal guarantees! personal guarantses of Promoter Directars and shares pledged
by the Promoter Director.

(lil} Rate of intereéat on abiove loang varies from 42 % to 16.25% p.a & panal interest of 2%p.a

{iv) Rapayment Schedule of Secured Loans is as follows -

{Amount In Rs.}
e

"37.87.64,801 | | 13,96,77,234 | 2,13,85,208

2015-2016 61,63,31,265 20,69,01,234 2,13,85,208
2018-2017 1,07,33,80,286 54,08,86.808 2,13,85,208
2017-2018 1,83,90.04,080 83,77,51,305 4,27.70,417
2018-201% 1,80,57,54,090 96,19,95,528 4,27,70,417
2019:2020 2,25,11,12,215 73,65,43,026 12,83,11,251
2020:2021 2,37.28,50,251 17.01,46,045 14,96,96,459
2021-2022 2,41,82,40,751 - -
2022-2023 2,16,18,56,613 - -
2023-2024 1.87,70,32,278 - - -
2024-202% 1,80,49,04,287 - -
2025-2026 1.30.54,34,065- - -
2026-2027 28,05,02,922 - -
Total | 20,27,61,67,995 3,59,38,01,180 42,77,04,168

(v) Vehicle Ioan and financk lease cbligations are sscurad by way of hypothecation of vehicla

{vi) Period and amounts of continuing defauls in fepayment of long-term borrowings and interest (overdue) as at March 31, 2014 are as under :

0-60 days - 4,04,69.875, 4,04,89,875
61-120 days - 51,54, 188 51,54,188
121-180 days - 17.,06,277 17,0627
More than 180 Days 9,91,85997 1.87.18,185. 11,76,04,182
2. Other parties
0-60 days - 3,55,34,881 3,55,34,881
61-120 days - 34757487 347,57 467
121-180 days - 3,32.04.874 3,32,94,874
Mora than 180 Days 95,66,66,668 13,07 03,724 1,08,73 70,392
Total 1,05,58,52 665 25.93.69 596 1M ;57;22;261 |
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{Amount In Rs.)
Palﬁg l.r"a o bt :..‘.I_._._ A P R oo " [
7. Deforred Tax Liabilities (net) [Refer Note no. 48{Hi)]
Deferred tax llabitities
Fiseal allowance on fixed assels - 25:60.01 418
Total (A} - 25,69,91,416
Deforred Tax Assets
Fiscal loss carried forward - 174394211
Foreign currency monetary translation différence account - (29.09,394)
Provision for doutitful debt - 22,600,486
Cther timing differences - 41,57.019
Tota! (B) - 17,78,43,223
Daferred tax llabititles {net) (A-B) Total - 7,91,46,194
8. Other Long-term Liabilitles
Security Deposits from Unit Holders 7.76,81.859 95,47,430
Total| 7,76,61,850 95,47, 430
{Amount In Rs.)
Partloutars:, . B1st March, 2014 | $1st March; 2013
8. Short-term borrowings
Secured
Short-term loans from :
- Banks 49,50,00,00¢ 49,50,00,000
- Other parties 9,91,85,997 30,00,00,000
Working capital foan frem banks 79,49,38,221 1,34,72,26,811
Unsecured
Loan from directors 1,13,82,04,264 81.43,44,104
Inter-corporate deposits 27,81.94,738 34,01,03.11)
Totall ___2,80,56,23,220 | _ 3,29,66,74 026

and benefits and charges ¢n entire Current Assets.

by the Promater Director.
(lii} Rate of Interest on said lvan @ 14.10 p.a. and Panal Interest 2% p.a.

{i) The above joans are seoured by charges on all the present and future movabla end immovable assets including intangible assets, assignment of rights

{fi) The above loans further secured by Joint and several imevocable personal guarantees/ personal guarantees of Promoter Directors and shares pledged

{lv} Pariod and amounts of continuing defaults in repayment of short-term borrowings and interest (overdue) as at March 31, 2014 are as under :

Amount In Rs.!
Lender f period of delays Prjnclgﬂ Interest Total
1. Banks *
0-60 days - 2,41,57,57T1 2,91.67.57T1
61-120 days - 2,14.84,818 2.14,84,818
121-180 days - 2,04,26,019 2,04,26 018
|Mora than 180 days 49,50,00,000 9,32.45,510 58,82.45,510
2. Inter Corporate deposits
0-50 days - 343,493 343,453
61-120 days . 3,658,630 3,58.630
121-180 days - 5,34,452 534,452
More than 180 Days 1,25,00,000 16,068,966 1,41,06,066
Total| 50,7500,000| = 159157459 66,66 57,459
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{Amount |ﬂ _Rs_.}

K ; ',,:l\u e
o SR : i T SN : Ll
10, Other current llabliities
a) Trade payables (Refer Note no. 28, 27, 43 & 46)
- Secured 21,25,00,000 -
- Unsecured 8?.69,?’6‘??8 2.86.70,17 855
1,08,94,76,776 2,86,70,17,655
b} Other labillties )
Current matusities of long-term borrowings {Refar note &) 2,16,44,62,004 2.72,94,63,806
Current maturities of finance laase obligations {Refer note &) 2,08,793 1,889,505
Interest accrued and due on Bomowings 50,83,40,139 £6,32,43.904
Unclaimed dividend 11,89.870 11,89.870
Emgioyaes Dues 12,21,03,426 5,67,90,738
Statutory duss 42,25 84,250 42,35,56,680
Trade advances received 2,24,28,828 1,81,00,487
Interest on Delayed payment of Statutary Cues 9,74,55,195 2,26,24,554
Deposit received 2,50,90,081 2,33,55,837
Creditors for (Refer Note no, 26,27 & 46)
- Capital expenses 72,95,53,847 1,08,75,64,235
- Expenses 7.58.41,520 19,40.77,927
4,16,74,37,278 5,52,13,64,644
5£5|69|14E054 8118@3.32;299
'_L - ' > Noscufrentd -k "%
R " ehi 2oTag STt Marshigtts st
Partleulars: & - - : N i R | C ) '
I11. Provislons )
Employes banhefils . 1,21,44,2688 1,98,62,336 1.41.84,142 1,90,79,656
Mark to Market losses on derivative contracts [Refer Nota Mo, 42(ji)] - - 33,%1,57.413 4,80,08,519
Provision for tax (ret of advances) - - 86,52,178 3,02.57,133
{Othars - - 7.72,11,164 -
Yotal 1,21,44.288 1.98.62,326 43,82,04, 895 8,73,45,308
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Arshiya Uimited (Formerly known as Arshiya International Himited))
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

13 Loans and advances {Refer Note no. 27)
{unsecured considared good unless otherwise stated)
ital adv
-Consliderad Doubtfull 1,46,06,800 - - . -
- Considered Good 16,73,15,100 48,41,58.291 - -
18,19,21,800 48,41,58,291 - -
Less : Provision for doubtful capital advance {1,46,06,800) . - -
16,73,15,100 48.41,58,291 - -

Share Appfication Money Pald - - 10,00,000 -

Deposits -2,20,96,951 11,64,13,158 - 55,46,763

Othars .

Advance recoverabla in cash or kind . 12,41,55.776 4,56,581 21,9492 935 92.52,81,063

Gratuity Funded Balance.(Net) 16,23,196 -

Balances with Govemment authorlties

- Direct taxes {net of provisions) 19,14,39.129 22,64,39.557 4,98,75,860 -

« MAT credit entittement (Refer Mote no. 48(ili) - 16,46,35,802 - -

- Indiract taxes (Refar Note no. 47) - 13,45,08,943 30,36,38,049 26,95.96,775

Prapaid expenses 15,66,009 540,051 53,498,359 2,60,00,527

Staff advances - - 10,15,000 16,67.787

Claims recelvabie | - 3.23,14,470 3.55,06,624 -
Total 50,65,72,957 1,15,94.66,853 61,78,00,123 1,22,80,92.915

14. Other agsels

Interest receivable on fixed deposits - 3,750 1,94 578 3.74.404

Unamortized ancillary forrowing costs (Refer Note No, 41) - 22,65,30.794 - 4,60,04,382

Margin money deposits with banks having original maturity period of more

than 12 monthg {Refer note 17) 1,22,03.003 95,58,656 - -
Totall 1,22.03,003 23,60,93,200 1,94 578 4,63,78,786

{Amount in Re)

e

il

i
BTN . S -.:-,,:.,‘}?; '-A.'l,'.

15. Invantories

Packing Materials 46,33,621 23,13,550
Total 46,33.621 23,113,550

16. Trade recelvables (Refer Note no. 27 & 46)
{unsecured considerad good unless otherwise stated)
Debts cutstanding for-a period excaeding six months

Considered good 10,44,85,198 | 2,36,80,41,822
Considered doubtfui 1.40,04.829 40.86,268
. 11.64.90.027 2,37,21,28,090
Cther debis - considered good 73,61,17,991 3,86,94,03,914
85,46,08,018 6,24,15,32,004
Less ; Provision for doubtfut debts 1,40.04,829 40.86,268
Total 84,06,03,189 6,23,74,45,736
{Amount in Rs.}
¥ T e Currentsi., .+
17. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equlvalents
Balances with banks in currant accounts - - 9,67,28,815 6.44 44,825
Cash on hand - - 30,56,481 96,54.014
Remittances in transit ) - - - 73,168,574
- " 9,87.85,296 8,14,15413
Other bank balances )
Balances with bank in unclaimed dividend accounts 12,38,328 12.38,328
Margin money deposits with banks having original maturity pericd of more:
than 12 months 95,58,656 95,58,656 - 10,00,000
95,58,656 95,58,656 12,368,328 22.38.328
Less: Amount of depesits disclosed under other non-current assets {Refer
Note no. 14} {95.58,656) (95.58,656) - -
Total - - 10,10,23 624 8,36,53,741
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

{Amount in Ra.
Year Ended 31st Yearmﬁm%_‘
March, 2014 Maich, 2013
18. Revenue from coperatlons
Revenue from
~Logistics oparaticns 2,58,21,65,676 6,25,85,59,221
~-Rail freight and retated services 1,83,34,75,399 3.014.79.21.501
-Free Trade Warehousing cperations 84,65,89.488 2,11,40,04,952
-Sale of software - | 26,07.951
Other operating revenues - export benefits 33,442,017 17,987,102 |
Total 5,16,55,72,580 11,39,58,90,727
14. Other inpoms
Interest income . 33,33,450 1.04,70,597
Profit on redemption of units of mutuat funds - 7,36,286
Exchange difference (net) 2,05867.821 5,25,02,364
Sundry balances written back 10,70,49,400 -
Indiract incoms FTWZ 1.50,96,723 -
Excess Provision Written Back 90,27.818 -
Miscellangous Income 4:41,13,153 47,668,470 |
Total 19,91,88,365 8,84,65,717
20. Cost of operations
ILogistics operations 2.49,67,55.877 5,34,96,47,493
Rail fraight and other operating charges 1,79,53,49.083 2,47.35,03,984
Free Trade Warehousing operations 16,28,80,114 37.75,38.419
Total 4,45,50,85,074 8,20,06,89,896
21. Empioyes benefits expense {Refer Note no. 38}
Salary, bonus and allowances 38,20,60,575 71,21,41,302
Contribution to provident and other funds 77.31,505 1.40,54,790
Staff welfare expenses 1,18,45443 3,29,30,754
Total 40,87,37,523 75,91 1285846
22, Finance costs
Interest expense
- Borrowing 3,54,05,92,164 2.42,22,49,892
- Others 8,95,55,651 1,89,44,639
Other borrowing costs 3,28,03,737 6,54,79,127
Total 3,66,29,51,552 2,50,66,73,758
23, Other expenses
Rent 8,84,47,000 16,583,06,491
Rates and taxes 71,03,555 2,07,50,533
Insurance 245,74,724 2,83,08,412
Electricity charges 3,46,63,567 4,40,74,050
Repairs and maintenancs
= Building 99,18,5(1 1,68,67,733
- Others £,79,94,113 3.52,62,129
Communication expenses 1,12,06,309 2,39,96,511
Travelling and conveyance expenses 4 57,53,342 6,33,00,512
Vehicle expenses 1,00,44,005 2,38,72,822
Printing and stationery 33,588,553 58,298,542
|Legal and professional fees 11,23,12,178 7.98,82,332
Security charges 4,01,23,153 4,66,08,716
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note no. 36} 83,65,878 93,29,580
Advertisernent and business promotion expenses 87,119,435 1,93,95,880
Provision for doubtful advance 1,46,06,800 -
Provision for doubtful debts 1.40,04,829 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 1,16,66,428 284,072
Miscelaneous expenses 17,68,67,217 8,59,91,546
Total 63,96,50,877 67,11,40,871
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24. Contingent Lishilities not provided for in raspect of:

{) | Disputed income tax demands 180,123,134 122,197,838

()] Claims against the group not acknowledged as debis 518,872,956 177,906,242

| Tii}_| Guarantees/ Letter of credit issusd by banks (net of liabiliies provided] 24,400,000 53,452,503

{iv) Custom duty on pending export obligation against import of capital 250,104,211 264,878,218
goods.

v} Disputed MVAT Damand 7,722,914 -

(vi) | Security Deposifs 26,240 =

25, Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining & he executed on capital and other account and not provided for (net of atdvances paid) is
Rs. 42,079,000/- (Rs 1,142,660,296/-).

26. MSMED Act - Creditors
The Group has not received any intimation from “suppliars® regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas
Development Act, 2006 and hence the disciosures, il any, relating to amourits unpaid as at the year-and together with interast
payable as required under the sald Act have rot been given: This has been relisd upon by the auditors.

27, (i) Management's Cpinloen ~ Current Assets and Liabilitles
In the opinion of the: managernent, current assets, loans and advances and cument llabllities are approximately of the vatue stated, if
realised / paid in the ordinary course of business, Provision for all known liabilities is adequate and is not in excess of amounts
consldered reasonably necessary,

{il} Confirmations
The Greup has sert confirmatlon letters for confirming the balances as. on March 31, 2014 of trade receivables, trade payables,
advances and loansicradit facilities from banksffinancial institutions; However, certain trade receivables, trade payables and
loans/craedit facilities from certain banksfMnancial institutions are subject te confirmation arid reconciliation. The differences. if any,
will be adjusted on final reconciliation/determination.

28, Prior Period Adjustments {Included in Statement of Profit and Loss)

Revenue from logistics oparations — {4,104,580)
Refund of BMC Taxes (8.136,333) -
Cost of logstic operations - 11,337,533
Reversal of Revenue of Prior years {Refer note no. b below) 1.498,526,005 -
Software Maintenance Expenses 919,585 -
QOther Expenses 64,538 )
Net prlor perlod expenses / (income) 1,491,373,795 72,32,953 |
Notes:

a, Figures in brackets denote items of income nature,

b. Reprasents reversal of invoices raised in foreign currency on certain clients (the clients) of a subgidiary for the services agreed
to be rendered up to financial year(s) ended 31.03.2013, based on subsidiaties agreement(s) with them, as agreed sarvicas
could not be avalled of by the said clients due to certain regulatory requirement not having bean fulfilted.

The said subsidiary is advised that the relevant provisions of Forsign Exchange Management Act, 19993 (FEMA Act) requiring

regulatory approvals as ragafds write off of book debts due from clients are not applicable in case of such reversals, as the

clients did not avail of agreed services and consequently, the said subsidiary did not have enforceable claims to fecover such

debis.
29, Detalls of Exceptional items (net) are as under
Amount In R
(&) Waiver of intergst {141,707,721) -
{b} Mark to Market Losses written off (See Note no. 32_) 1 370,982 477 -~
{c) Ancillary borrowing costs written off {Sea Note no. 41) 214,602,226 -
() { easehold improvements written off 11,147,526 54,276,945
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{a) Profit/{Loss) on sale of Assets (nat) (13,954,022) -
{f) Reversal of Provisions for (in respect of its wholly owned
subsidiaries)
- Diminutign in the valug of investments in equity shares {500,000) -
- Loan given considered doubtful {99,518 300) -
{9} Write back of Managaerial Remuneration (See Note no,38(a)} (34,075,827) —
| (h} Profit on sale of a Investment by a subsidiary {2 201,280) -
| (i) Bad Debts Written Off 1,710,5613,479 -
if] Corporate Debt Restructuring Fees 64,776,063 -
(k) Write off of Capital Work in Progress 48,530,812 -
Total 2,126,595,433 54,276,945
Mote: Figures in brackets denote itéms of income nature.
30, a. Derivative contracts entered into by the Group for hadging purpose and outstanding as at March 31, 2014 ara as under:
Foreign currency amount Equivalent amount
{in Rs)
Balances Currency 2014 2013 2014 2013
Long-term UsD 51,807,026 55,356,476 2,772,660,000 3,005,484,261
borrowings

b. Details of foreign currency transactions/ balences not hedged by derivative insttuments or otherwise are as unider:

Balances Currency 2014 213 2014 2013
Bank balances UsSD 5 1,929 314 104,356
Recelvables usb 2,738,074 37,970,698 161,825,201 2,045,577,554
EUR 45,058 101,423 3,665,628 6,970,842
Payables Uso 83,657 1,418,496 4,947 378 78,030,036
GEP - 4,185 - 340,900
EUR 12,475, 20,742 1,014,581 1,442,405
JPY 569,423 11,800 321,500 6,719
HKD 2,543 - 18,917 -

31. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Information

Primary Segment Information

The Group operates in four primary reportable business segments, i.e. “Logistics operations and related services", “Free Trade
Warehousing/Distripark Operations”, “Rail Transpert Operations™ and “Software for Supply Chain and Logistic Managemant™ as per
Accounting Standard 17 - *Segment Reporting"”.

{Amount in Rs.}_ _

_I_!avonue
External sales 2,585,507,693 646,589,488 1,933,475,369 - - 5,165,572 580
(6,261,356,323) (2,114,004,952) {3,017,921,501) {2,607,951) (=) {11,395,890,727)
Other income 68,639,818 44,508,049 27,039,653 - 59,000,845 169,188,365
((-) 970,178) (58.689,060) {2,622,109) {222,033} {{-)2,567,908) {57,995,119)
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{Amount In Rs.)

Total revenue 2,654,147 511 681,087,537 1,860,515,052 - 59,000,845 535,4760,045
(6,260,386, 145) (2,172,894,011} {3,020,543,610) {2.829,987) {{-)2,567,908) {11,453,885.848)
Segmant result 125,754,205 {-1259,868,685 {-)406,596,644 {(-)22,615,076 {-¥110,484,553 (-)974,010,753
(735,589.897) {893,450,043) {24,538,823) ((-)(2,495,579) {{-}566,056,214) {1.155,026,971)
Intarest expense 3,662,951,552
{2.441,184,631}
Interest Income —
(10,470,597)
Less! 2.126,595,433
Exceptional {54,216,945)
Item
Less: Prior 1,491,373 795
Pericd ltems {—)
Tax expensei(-) 207,362,981
Gredit (() 58,441,573}
Profit / {- {~)8,462,294,514
JLoss after tax (-~1.271,532,434)
Gther
Information
Segment assets 3,708,72B.256 31,870,866,2514 7.010,149,535 $,137,877.764 8,353,213.022 §2,080.836,928
(7.920,366,292) {30,224,099,768) (7.728,490,375) {912,787,278) {5.054,650,149) {51,840,383,860)
Less: 12,608,834,114
Elimination {14,009,687 598}
Loglstic FTWZ [Distripark Rafl Transport Software Unallocated Total
Operations Operatlons Operations
Total assets 39,382,002,814
{40,830,708,262)
Segment 956,450,563 24177125623 5.666,485,157 69,838,380 4.417,722,310 35,287.422,033
linbilitias (2,676,701,734) (20,668,228,129) {6,673,466,555) (69,636,222) (6.000,623,507) {38,178,656,148)
Less: 1.604,726,725
Elimination {4,049,232,409)
Total liabillties 33,682,605,308
(32,129,423,739)
Capital Nil 245,869,329 2223.802,630 - 215,647 468,837,606
expenditura {593,869} (3.160,193,901) {574,442 873) {-} {28,612,295) (3,763,842,937}
Depraciation 2298173 402 961,969 ‘337,394 454 488,618 92,146,208 435,289,422
‘and {7.512,620) {292,500,220) {240,205,383) {1,127 .563) {61,076,349) (602,422,135)
Amortization
gXpense
MNon-cash 508,713,833 234,793,600 868,194,650 - 132,858,413 1,744,560,536
expenses / {10,788,029) {29,918 984} =) (=) (80,892,224} {121,597,237)
{income) other
than
depreciation/
amortization

Secondary segment information

Revenue

.
20

572,560

(10,612,693,766) (841,192,080} {11,453,885,846)

Carrying amount of asgets ‘36,494 083,509 2,387,919,305 39,382,002,814
(39,466,800,297) {1,363,905.964) {40,830,706,261)

Capital expenditure 468,887,606 - 469,887,606

{3.763,703,146) {138,791} {3,763,842,937§
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Notes:
() Geographical segment and its composition are India and Rest of the word.

{ii)The Group has identified India and Rest of the World as geographical segments for secondary segment reporting. Geographical sales
ara segregated basad on the location of the customer who is invoiced or in relation to which the sale is otherwise recognized.

(i} Capital expenditure includes expenditure incurred on capital work In progress and capital advances.
32. Capital Expenditure :
{a) Fixed Assuats :
In view of revival plans of the Group as referred to in Note 38, in the opinion of the management, the carrying values of the
E)::ea(IiI ::ts?:rt.s of the. Group are not lower than their recoverable amounts and hence, no provision for impairment of Fixed Assets

(b) Capital work-in-progress as at the year-end of Rs. 5,620,480,842/- (Previous Year — Rs. 7,352,530,043/) includes:

(I}  Borrowing cost {net} capitalized or transferred to capital work-in-progress Rs. NIL (Previous year Rs. 1,161,595,239/),

(i} Pro-oparative expanses of Rs. 1,411,838,017/- (Previous Year — Rs. 1,450,004,853/). Details of Pre-operative expenses.
capitalized/transferred to Capital Work-in-Progress includes:-

ARy S T3 20
rl.dituo p ar : — 2,409,3’8(}?736
Employee benefits expense : 485,453,261
Electricity charges - 13,034,410
Rent - 36,037,016
Rates and taxes - 8,221,070
Travel_ﬁng and conveyance expenses - 13,925,521
Vehicle expenses - 14,214,156
Legal and professional fees - 20,075,989
Miscellaneous expenses - 32,293,849
Security charges - 2,120,075
Gther financial charges ' - 17,519,243
Interest expense - 1.144,2256,058
Miscellaneous income - {1.807,043)
Interest on fixed deposits - (150,062)
Depreciation/Amertization expense - 10,639,712
Sub — Total ' 1,450,004,854 4,185,183,990
Less : Amount allocated to fixed assets capitalized during the year 32,566,728 2735179137
Less : Amount Written off during the year ' 5.800,109 -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,414,838,017 ' 1,450,004,854

(i) The Group has discontinued its eartier practice of charging borrowing costs as attributable to Projects -and pre-operative expenses
incurred in connection therewith as was dona in the earlier years on account of its decision to putting on hoid of the incurrence of
expenditure in relation to the project work in progressiprojects.

(iv) During the year, the Group has put on hold further capital expenditure and incurrence of gther expenses in connection therewith
due to non-optimum utilization of the existing capacity as also non-avaitability of funds for incurring the balance expenditure. The
managament of the Group expects that in near future, the Group shall be able to implement revival plans, tie up business
agreements as also the required funds which will enable it to complete the Project Work- in- Progress,
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33. Related party disclosures, as raquired by Accounting Standard 18 “Related Parly Disclosures™ as given below

. List of entities where control exists
The list of subsidiary companies Is disclosed in note 2 (iv} {b) above,

. Key management personnel
Mr. Ajay S Mittal — Chairman and Managing Director
Mrs. Archana Mittal — Joint Managing Director
Mr. V Shivikumar — Executive Director (resigned w.e.i. 14.05.2012)
Mr. Sandesh Chonkar — Chief Financial Officer & Executive Director (resigned w.e.f 21.8.2013)
Mr. Suhas Thakar - Executive Director {(w.e.f 01.06.2013) (Resigned w.e.f, 31.03.2014)

L] Relative of Key Management Parsonnel
Mr. Ananya Mittal — Management Trainee (Business Developmant)— W.e.f. (01-04-2013

L Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives
Bhushan Steels Limited, Mega Managemant Services Private limited, Arshiya Lifestyle Limited.

Note:

The related party relationships have been determined by the management on the basis of the requirements of the AS-18 and the
same have been relied upon by the auditors.

The nature and ameunt of transactions with the above retated parties are as follows:

{Amount In Rs.}

od _ 4
: gemen nter ¢!

lI!*;. | T E v SR --Tﬂdlh' ; i n

e R e T T Falatives s el X "
Revenue from operatlons - 566,803,194 566,803,194
=) (863,950,842) {863.950,842)
Managerial Remuneration 12.475.136 - 12,499,136
{75,344,515) () (75.344,515)
Recovery of RemLmneration 50,860,229 - 50,860,229
(Refer Noté No. 38) (=) (=) (=)
Rent Paid _ - -
(1,788,771) =) (1.788.771)
Interest Expenses _ _ -
(6,225,480} () {B,225,480)
Loans and advances taken 790,901,523 - 790,961 523
(1,171.862,063) (=) (1,171,862,053)
:.oans_md. advances taken repaid 467,041,363 _ 467,041,363
adjusted (357,517,949) (=) (357.517.949)
Is_sue of Equity Shares on conversion 761,250,000 _ 761,250,000
of warrans (442,250,000) () (442,250,000)
Money received against warrants 200,062,500 _ 200,062,500
(836,087,500) (=) {836,087,500)
Share Application Money given - 1,000,000 1,000,060

() _ ) - |

- utstandlng balances
Trade receivables

(= (17,071,405) {17.071,405)
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Loans, advances and deposit received 1.138.204.264 _ 1,138,204 264
{814,344,104) - (814,344,104)
Advances from Customer - 408,415 408,415
) ) (=)
Share Application Money given _ 1,000,800 1,000,000
=) ) -}
Note: The following transactions constitute more than 10% of the total related party transactions of same type

sampen

_ ounl in Rs.)

= ; S Name SLE R T T gl
Revenue from Operations Bhushan Steels Limited 566,803,194 863,950,842
Managerial Remuneration Mr. Ajay S Mittal - 34,075,827 |
Mrs. Archara Mittal - 16,784,402
Mr.Sandesh R Chonkar - 14,939,773
Mr. ¥ Shivkumar — 9,179,817
Mr. Suhas Thakar 11,458,469 -
Reversal of Managerial Remuneration | Mr. Ajay S. Mitial 34,075,827 -
Mrs. Archana Mittal 16,784,402 -
Interest paid Mrs. Archana Mittal - 6,225,480
Rant paid Arshiya Lifestyle Limited — 1,788,771
Loans and Advances taken Mr. Aj_ay S Mittal 172,734,331 184,000,000
Mrs, Archana Mittal 618,167,192 787,809 553
Mr. Ananya Mittal - 199,962 500
Loans advances taken repaid/adjusted | Mrs. Archana Mittal 402,822,195 275,867,949
Mr. Ananya Mittal 64,218,168 81,650,000
Issue of equity sharas on conversion Mr. Ajay S Mittal 500,250,000 -
of warrants
Mrs. Archana Mittal 261,000,000 —
Mr. Ananya Mittal - 442,250,000

1

[ Moneyreceivad aa]st warrants

1 Mr. ja

Private Limited

itta 4,312,500 | -
Mrs, Archana Mittal 195,750,000 -
Mr. Ananya Mittal - 836,087,500
Share Application money given Mega Management Services 1,000,000 -
Private Limited
OQutstanding balances as on March
| 31,2014 . -
Trade receivables Bhushan Steels Limited - 17,071,405
Loans, advances and deposit taken Mr. Ajay S Mmal' 410,827,664 302,312,500
Mrs. Archana Mittal 727,376,600 512,031,604
Money received against warrants Mr. Ajay S Mittal 206,025,000 836,087,500
| Mrs. Archana Mittal 68,875,000 - -
| Advances from Customers Bhushan Steels Limited 408415 | -
Shara Application money given Megé Management “Services i.OO0.000 -
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34. Disdosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 19 — Leases

a. Finance Lease:
The Group has acquired vehicles under finance lease: Details of lease rentals payabla are as follows:
{Amount in Rs.)

“Minimum fease payment | ' 1,080,852 |

{216,720) (7.003,763) -

Less: Finance charges payabls in future 9.927 143,316
{27.215} {804.478) -

Present valle of the lease rentals 206,793 947,636
(189,505) {7.099,195) -

b. Operating Lease
R In respect of assets taken on cancallable operating lease

The Group has taken certain offices and equipments on cancellzble operating lease, which are renewable on a periodic basis at the
option of both the Jessor and the lessee. Rental payments under such lease ars Rs. 60,570,897/- (Rs. 164,777,795/}

1. In respect of assets taken on non-cancellable operating lease

The Group has taken office premises on non-cancellable operating lease arrangements for a period of 5 years. The operating lease
rental payments/provisien under non-cancellable agreements aggregate to Rs. 63,801,813~ (Rs. 66,383,894/-). Details of contractual
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are given below:

Future minimum lease rental paymants
- not later than one year 34,251,232 137,310,312
- later than one year but not later than five years 42,517,533 366,732,953
- later than five years - 106,215,079
Total 76,768,765 610,259,244
fll. Total Operating Lease rental payments in respect of operating leases recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year is Rs,

124,472,710/~ (Rs 231,161 689/-) and capitalized during the year is Rs, Nil (Rs 36, 037,016},

35. Earnings per share has begn computed as under:

| L CAR RN -
D IR IR o ol 1 AT T Sl T BT - T PRPRTPRTRITH H
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (Amount I Rs,) (8.462,284,512) {1.271,532,434)
Weighted average number of shares (Numbers}) 61,922,623 60,074,540
Nominal value per share {Amount in Rs.} 2 2
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted (Ameunt in Rs.) {136.66) {21.17)

36. Payment to Auditors

Audit Fees 3,544,728 5,056,920
Other Service 600,000 -
Certification Fees 67.978 269,080
Reimbursement of axpense - 82,579
For Subsidiaries
Audit Fee 2.743,554 2,819,523
Other matters 1 ..409.618_ 1,101,488
Total* 8,365,878 9,329,590
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*includes Rs. 2,312,707/- {Previous Year Rs. 8,329,690/-) paid 10 pravious Auditor.
37. Concession Agreement

{} One of the subsidiaries have acquired Pan india license from Indian Rallways for operation of iransportation of
containerized cargo for a pariod of twenty years at a cost of Rs, 5¢ Croves, '

(it} The said subsidiary used to amortize the cost of the license based on matching concept of revenue upto 31st March, 2013.
However, with a view to amortize the license cost in consonance with Accounting Standard 26 — Accounting for Intangible
Assals, the said subsidiary has, with effect from, current year decided to amortize the same over a period of 20 years
equalty. Accordingly, in the current year, the said subsidiary has amertized Rs. 73,197,602/- including Rs. 48,197 ,602/- for
prior years. Due to this, the charge on account of amortization for the year is higher by Re. 48,197,602/-,

38, Remuneration paid or provided in accordance with section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the directors is as under;
(Amount In Rs.)

¥ iF1 J&[ﬁi.jl 201394
Saianies and Al owanass 8,232.500 46 142,500
Perquisﬂes - 51,147
Contribution 10 Provident Fund 7.800 4,317,480
Retireament benefits 4234 836 49,102
Total 12,475,136 50,560,228

{a) The Chairman and Managing Director of the Holding Company decided not to draw any remuneration for the financial years 2012-2013
and 2013-2014. Consequently, the Board of Directors. of the Holding Company at their meeting held on 2™ April, 2044 decided that the
Holding Company's application to the Central Government for approval of excess remuneration of Rs, 340.76 lacs provided in the
financial year 2012-2013 be withdrawn and accordingly, the entire remuneration amounting to Rs. 340.76 lacs pertaining to financial
year 2012-2013 has been recovered during the year and shown as "Write Back of Managerial Remuneration™ and no provision has
been made for the year ended 31* March, 2014.

The Soard of Directors of the Holding Company at their mieating held on 2™ April, 2014 at the Instance of the Chalirman and Managing
Director has revised his remuneration to Rs.1,000/- per month, effactive from April, 2014,

(b} In One of the subsidiaries remunsration paidiprovided amounted to Rs. 16,784,402~ for the financial year 2012-13 uplo
30th Septernber, 2012 |.e, date on which the Ex-Managing Ditettor resigned. The szid remuneration was in excess: of the fimits
gpecified under the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 due to inadequate profits requiring the approvals of tha Central
Government and the shareholders. However since then, during the year, the Ex-Managing Director has repaid the antire amount to
the said Subsidiary Company which has been shown under the head Other Income.

In view of the same, the said Subsidiary Company has not sought the approvais of the Central Government and Shareholders.

{c} Inview of absence of profits in Holding Company as also the Holding Company not being able to repay its debts and interest payable
thereon to lenders, the remuneration paid/pravided to Mr. Suhas Thakar, Ex-Executive Director, turned out to ba in excess of limits
prascribed under section 198 read with Schedule X! of the Companias Act, 1956. The Holding Company is in the process of filing an
application to the Central Government for approval of excess remuneration,

{(d) The retirement benefits paidfpayable Rs. 4,234,836/ includes Rs. 1,016,667/ paid/payable to the Ex-Managing Director of a
subsidiary.

{e} One of the Subsidiaries had paid remuneration of Rs. 12 080.726/- (excluding Gratuity and Leave Encashment) to its
Managing Director for the period from 1* October 2011 to 14" May 2012 as against the Central Government's approval for Rs.
7,507,438/-, The excess remuneration of Rs. 4,573,288/ paid to the Ex-Managing Director is held by him in trust for the said
Subsidiary Company pending recovery.

39, Revival] Plans

The managernent of the Group Is in the process of restructuring its business operations by -
* expanding the business volumes,
* converting Free Trade Warehousing Zonas into Sector Specific Special Econornic Zones,
* establishing an {inland Container Depot,

tying up the requisite funds for the said purposes.

The above steps shall enable the managernent to improve Group's Net worth and its ability to discharge its ‘debts/liabilities in near
future,
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40.  Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)

During the year, Secured Lenders {Banks) of the Group have approvad the restructuring package under “Corporate Debt Restructuring
Package” {COR), which inter-alla provided for:

{a} @) Reschedulement of the Principal amounts of the loans and dates thereof,
{it) Funding of unpaid interest on the Term Loans ranging from Qctober 2012 to March 2015.

{ii) Waiver of all liquidated damaqes.-‘penal chargesfpenal interest/excess interest i.e. in excess of documented rate of all the
facilities from the cut-off date 1 Oclobar, 2012 till the impleémentation of the package.

{b) Secured Lenders have a right 1o recompanse.
{c) The CDR as aforesaid has been racognized in the Accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2014 whereby —

(i Balance standing to the credit of interast accrued and due on loans (nat of walver) as of 31% March, 2013 and interest for the
year aggregating to Rs. 359.40 crores have been transferred to Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL).

(i) Interast on Secured Loans of Rs, 14,17 ¢rores waived by tha Secured Lenders (Banks) has been disclosed in the Statement of
Profit & Loss as “Exceptional ltem”.

{d) Financial impact, if any, in the nghts of Secured Lendars (Banks) to recompense shall be accounted upon crystallization of such
rights.

41. Unamortized Expenditure

Ancillary costs.incurred in connecticn with the arrangement of borrowings were amortized over the tenure of borrowings till previous
year. This year, the Group has written off Rs. 272,535, 976/- in respect of the same to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
as the said costs are period costs. If the Group had coentinued the practice, the charge for the current year in respect of the same
would have been lower by Rs. 229,832,363/~ and the loss for the year lower by Rs, 229,832,363/,

42, Mark to Market:

{y This year, the Holding Company has changed its -accounting policy of capitalising / deferring its Reserve for Mark to Market
Losses (MTM} on its derivatives (for conversion of rupee loan lability into foreign loan) as done hersto before following
announcement by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on “Accounting for Derivatives” by charging MTM losses relating
to earlier years in the Consolidated Statemenl of Profit & Loss. Due to the said change, an amount of Rs. 383.08 lacs from
tangible assets (net of depreciation} and Rs.85.60 Lacs from Fereign Currency Translation Reserve Account have been charged
to the Consolidated Statément of Profit and Loss for the year, which have been shown ag *Exceptional lterm”.

(I} Fusther, during the year, an.amount of Rs. 3,231,14 lacs in respect of MTM losses upon determination of fair market value of
derivatives -entered into by the Helding Company has been charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Holding Company is of the view that MTM loss has to be worked out taking inte account the spot exchange rate(s) on the
reporting date as it is commilted to continue derivative contracts till their maturity and hence, applying the fair market values
presuming that the derivative coniracts would be cancelled on the reporting date, shall not reflect tha correct financial position.

However, the Banks who have entered into derivative contracts with the Holding Company have, intimated that the logs on
account of MTM is Rs. 7,088.73 lacs as upto 31st March, 2014-as against the amaount of Rs. 3,391.57/- lacs determined as per
the Holding Company's view,

(i} ¥ the Holding Company had continuad ta follow tha policy of deferring the write off of MTM losses, the charge for the year would
have been lower by Rs. 3,134,32 lacs.

43, Proceedings agalnst Group
Cerlain lenders and ereditors have filed winding up petitions/ cases / other legal proceedings for recovery of the amounts due to them
which are at different stages before the respective judicial forums / authorities.. Claims by the said lenders and creditors have been
contested by the Group in those proceedings and not acknowledged as debts. It is not possible at this juncture to estimale the
financial implications of such claims.

44, Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya FTWZ Limited and Arshlya Domastic Distripark Limited

The Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Domestic Distripark Limited with the Holding Company became
effective from 4™ January, 2013, The entire undertaking of the transferor companies including all assets, liabilities and reserves
vested in the Holding Company on the appointad dated, i.e.1™ April, 2012 for which necessary impact had been glven in the accounts
for the. year ended 31* March, 2013, Howsver, certain assels belonging to the amalgamating companies have yet not been
transferred in the name of the Holding Company. 95
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45, Disclosure pursuant te Accounting Standard 15 (Revised} — Employee Benefits

a. Brief descriptions of the plans
The Group's defined contsibution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance where the Group has no further
obligation beyond making the contributions. The Group's defined benefit plans incude gratuity. The employees are also erititled
to leave ancashmerit as per the Group's policy.

b. Defined benefit plan — Gratuity (Fundad)
{Amount in Rs)

Particulars 2014 2013
L.Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 9.29% 8.00%
Rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% | 10.00%
l.Change in defined beneflt obligations
Liability at the beginning of the year 24,123,879 46,121,497
Interest cost 1,928,910 4,875,050
Current service cost 7.407,067 14,583,302
Liability transferred infout (net) _ - 474,305
Benefits paid (1,438,848) (7.426,155)
Actuarial {gain} / loss on obligations {15,060,547) (34,614,120)
Ligbility at the end of the year 16,961,464 24,123,879
M.Fair value of ptan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 9,101,252 15111718
Expected return on plan assets 791,808 1209608
Contributions - 74,357
Benafits paid {1,438,846) {7.426,155)
Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets {791,808} 41,724
Eair value of plan assets at the end of the year : 7,662,406 9,101,252
IV.Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets 781,808 628,358
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets (791,808) 41.724
Aclugl return on plan assets - 670,082
V.Liabhifity recognized in the Balance Sheat
{Liability} at the end of the year (16,961,464} {24,332,469)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year " 7,662,406 8,890,662
{Liability} recognized in the Balance Sheet {9,299,058) {15.443,807)
VLPercentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan
aguets
Insurer managed funds 106% 100%
Vil.Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 7,407,067 15,848,025
Interest cost 1,928,910 3,920,327
Expectad return on plan assets {791,808} {1.299,808)
Net actuarial (gain} / loss to be on obligation (14,268,739} (34,655,844}
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (5,723,570) 16,387,100}
Vill. Balance Sheet reconcitiation
Opening net liability 15,022,627 31,009,779
Expenses as above (5,723,570} {16.387,100)
Employers Confributions : 785,980 103,788
Net Transfers from Other Companies (785,979) 296,160
Closing net liability 9,299,058 15,022,627

IX. Expected employers contribution in hext year

As per gciuarial valuation report ) 9,721,027 16,890,447
X. Experience adjustments

On plan liability {(gain) / loss (14.079,767) (35.281,591)

On plai asset (loss} / gain . {791,808) 41,724
Nota: The above information is in respect of Holding Company and it's Subsidiary Companies viz Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limited, Arshiyva
Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited, Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited and Arshiya Ratl Infrastructure Limited.
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¢.  Leave Encashment {unfunded}):
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2014 2013
LActuarial assumptions _
Discount rate 9.29% 8.50%
Future salary rise 7.00% 7%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10%
l.Change In definesd benefit obligations
Liability at the beginning of the year . 23,097,366 37,601,038
interest cost 1,847,790 3,086,688
Current service gost 4,860,330 11,779,038
Liability transferred infout (net) - 392,917
Benefits paid {15,394,014) (29,629,040}
Actuarial {gain} / loss on obligations {4,073,798) (1.023,275)
Liabllity at the and of the year 10,337,675 23,097,366
Ili.Liability recognized In the Balance Shest’
Liability at the end of the year 10,337,675, 23,097,366
Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 10,337 675 23,097,366
IV.Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Curmrent service cost 4,860,330 12,461,988
Interest cost 1,847,790 3,203,738
Nat actuarial (gain) / loss {(4,073,798) {1,023,275)
Expanse recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,634,322 14,642,451
V.Balance Sheet reconciliation
Opening nst lability 23,097,366 37,891,038
Expenses as above 2,634,322 14,642 451
Benefits Paid {15.394,014) (29,629,040)
Net transfer infout - 392,917
Closing net liability 10,337,675 23,097,366
V1.Experience adjustments:
On pian liability (gain) / foss (3,424,342) {1.550.763)

Note: The above information is in respect of Holding Company and it's Subsidiary Companies viz Arshiva Northemn FTWZ 1.imited, Arshiya
Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited, Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited and Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited.

46.  Logistics Qperations _
The Holding Company has decided to phase out its logistics operations. In the wake of said decision, the Holding Company assigned
certain outstanding book debts aggregating to Rs, 262.66 crores and certain outstanding frade payables aggregating to Rs. 262.12
ciores in respact of its logistics operations for the period upte December 31, 2013

Such book debts and trade payables aggregating to Rs. 5.72 crorés and Rs. 5.71 crores respectively in respect of Its logistics
operations putstanding as on 31st March, 2014 have been assigned on 30th June, 2014 which shall be accounted in the subsequent
yedr,

47.  Indirect Taxes Recelvable

(i} As per the notification dated 16th May, 2013, issued by the government of Maharashira, MVAT exemption/refund Is available to
SEZ Developer after 15th October, 2011 {Record date}. However, the Group has claimed refund of Rs. 17.43 crores in respect of
transactions prior to record date. The Group is of the view that the state government may exempt it from local taxes, levies and
duties on goods required for authorized operations by a Developer, Accordingly, thase accounts reflect a sum of Rs.17.43 crores
as refund receivable on account of Maharashtra VAT, In ¢ase the refund is not granted, the necessary adjustment entrigs will be
recorded in the year in which finality is reached.

(iiy In respect of one of the subsidiaries, Uther Loans. and Advances include:

(a) Refunds receivable in respect of VAT, Service Tax, Local Entry Tax and Service Tax in respect of pricr years aggregating to
Rs. 14,270,271/ as claimed by the subsidiary for which Crders are awalted.

() Refund of Service Tax in respeci of Financial Year 2010-2011 for Rs. 4,210,469/~ for which appeal is pending with
Commissioner of Appeals, Cantral Excise.

{c) Refunds of Excise Duty, VAT and CST aggregating to Rs. 17,024,884/ for the Financial Year 2010-11 for which the appeals
are pending with the respective Appeliate Tribunats.

The Management is of the view thal the refunds claimed as above are considered good for recovery.
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48,

U]

)

(i)

49,

(a}

(k)
{i)
(ii}

Taxation

The Tax provision if applicable is computed in accordance with the Tax Law of India and the respective countries in which the
subsidiaries operate.

‘Short/{Excess) provision for prior year (net) Rs. 16.23 crores comprises of Rs. 0.51 crores being write back of tax provisions
relating to prior years and provision of Rs. 16.74 crores relating to Financial Year 2012-2013.

The Provision for the financial year 2012-2013 is a consequence of the Holding Company not being able o pay the Tax Deducted
at Source in respect of certain expenses and certain statutory liabllities on or befara their respective due dates resulting into higher
taxable income requiring additional tax pravision therefore.

In view of substantial losses incumred as also uncertainty of the period by which the said losses expected to be recoup the group
has reversed the Deferred Tax Liability/Deferred Tax Liability and written- off MAT cradit entitlement.

Scheme of Amalgamation of Subsidiaries

The Board of Directors of tha Asshiya Northern FTWZ Limited and Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (amalgamating
companies) approved their amalgamation with Arshiya Transport Handling Limited (amalgamated company), The Board of
Diractors of Holding Company in capacity share holders of respective Subsidiaries Company have given their approval to the said
scheme.

The Scheme inter-alia provides that:

On and from 01.01.2014 {the appointed date), the entire businesses and the whole of the undertakings of the Company as
"Going Concemn® with all assets, properties and liakiiitios shall stand transferrad and vested in the amalgamated company.

Issue and aflotment by the amalgamated company of 1 (one) fully paid equity share of Rs. 10/- each for every equity share of Rs.
10+~ each hetd by the shareholders of the amalgamating companies as consideration.

(iii) Transactions between the appointed date and effective date of the amalgamating companies shall be for and on behalf of the

{c)

50,

51.

amelgamated company,

The Scheme has been filed with Hon, High Court of Bombay on 27.023.2014 and s pending for approval.
Goodwill

During the year, the Group has written off goodwill aggregating to Rs. 59,898,246/, as Depreciation and Amertization expenses in
the Statement of Profit and Loss which arose upon consolidation of subsidiaries in the past.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current years classification
fdisclosures.

Slgnatures to Notes forming part of Financial Statements
For M. A. Partkh & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Limited
Firm Reg. No. 107556W

Mukul Patel Ajay 8 Mittal Archana A Mittal
Partner Chairnan and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Mem. No. 032489 DIN: 00226355 DIN: 00703208

Date: 8% July, 2014
Place: Mumbal
Shyam Rathi
Chief Financial Officer
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Email ID:

1

Name of the member (s):

1/We, being the member{s) hoiding

PROXY FORM
[Form No, MGT-11}

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

[Pursuant to Sec 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19{3} of the Comparies

{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Registered Address;
Folio. No.f Client IC;

MName! .o

Address;

.......... E-mail (d..ciniern

Signature

or failing him/her

[ E: Ty o

Address:

E-mall Id.c. ...

Signature.

or failing him/her

Address:

E-rhall 18......vuro

Signature

or failing him/her

As mry / our proxy to attend and vote (ona pall} for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company, to
bé held on Wednesday, the 10th day of September 2014 at 3.00 p.m., Hall of Culture, Nehru Centre, Dr, Annie Besant Road, Worll, Mumbai- 400

D18 and af any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

**1/We wish my abave proxy(ies) to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

shares of the above named company, hereby appoint.

Resolution | Resolutfons Optional
No
Ordinary Business For Agalnst
1 .
Adoption ef Annual Accounts of the Company as on March 31, 2014
(Ordinary Resclution).
i
Re-appointmant of Mr. Ajay 5 mittal who refires by rofation (Ordinary
Resolution].
3
Appointment of M/s. M. A Parikh & Co,, Charlered Accountants, as Auditors
of the Company ang fixing iheir remuneration (Crdinary Resolution)
Special Business
F
Appointment of Prof. Ganeson Raghuram, as an independent Director.
{Ordinary Resolution)
5
Appointment of Me. Ashish Boiragra, as an Independent Director [Ordinary
Rasolution).
B
Appointment of Mr, Rishabh Shah, as an Independent Director{Crdinory
_Resolytion].
7
Appointment of, Mr, Mukesh Kocker {DIN: 01549098]) as on Independent
Director[Ordinary Resolution).-
2
Cregtion of charge on the assets of the Company under Section 180{1) ()
of the Companies Act, 2013{Special Resolution).
9 . . .
Borowing Limits of the Company under Section 180(1}(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 [Special Resolution).
10

Investment Limits of the Company under Section 184 of the Companies Act,
2013 (Special Resolution).
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Signed this day of. 2014,

Signature of shareholder{s}

Signature. of first Proxy holder Signature of second Proxy ficlder Signature of third Proxy holder

**This is only optional Please put a ¥in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. Alternatively you may mention the number of
shares in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vote, if you leave all the columns blank against any or all the resolutions
your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate,

Note:

1. This form of proxy in arder to be effective should be duly comptéted and deposited either at the Registered Office of the Company not less than
48 haurs before the commencement of the meeting. :

2. A proxy need not be a member of the company .

3, Incase the appointer is a body corporate the praxy form should be signed under its sea! or be signed by an office or an attorney duly authorized by
it and an authenticated copy of such authorization shoutd be attached to the proxy form

4. A persun can act as a proxy on behalf of such number of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten parcent of
the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. Further a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the:
Cempany carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shal! not act as a proxy for any other pérson or Member.

5. Incase of joint holdets the signature of any one holger will be sufficient but names of all the jeint helders should be stated.

100 :






—,’.-.{gcmd-u T

w.oaltrle s -

e T T oW .



